TORBAY COUNCIL

Wednesday, 9 June 2021

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
A meeting of Licensing Sub-Committee will be held on
Thursday, 17 June 2021
commencing at 9.30 am
The meeting will be held in the The meeting will be held in the Town Hall for

decision makers and all other interested parties are invited to attend via Zoom
(meeting joining details can be found below)

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82303342149?pwd=enBDb241SEVGTU5mRFg4UkdCMnVhdz09

Meeting ID: 823 0334 2149
Passcode: 152228

One tap mobile
+441314601196,,82303342149+#,,,,*152228# United Kingdom
+442034815237,,82303342149%#,,,,*152228# United Kingdom

Members of the Committee

Councillor Dart
Councillor Douglas-Dunbar

Councillor Mills

Together Torbay will thrive

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device
or Blackberry Playbook. For information relating to this meeting or to request a
copy in another format or language please contact:

, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk

(1)



https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82303342149?pwd=enBDb241SEVGTU5mRFg4UkdCMnVhdz09

(a)

(b)

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
AGENDA

Election of Chairman/woman
To elect a Chairman/woman for the meeting.

Apologies
To receive apologies for absence, including notifications of any
changes to the membership of the Committee.

Minutes
To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of a Sub-
Committee held on 20 May 2021.

Declarations of interests

To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of
items on this agenda

For reference: Having declared their non pecuniary interest
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the
matter in question. A completed disclosure of interests form should
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect
of items on this agenda

For reference: Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the
item. However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter. A
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting.

(Please Note: If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.)

Urgent items
To consider any other items that the Chairman decides are urgent.

Quay Nightclub 26 Victoria Parade, Torquay TQ21 2BD

To consider an application for a Variation to a Premises Licence in
respect of Quay Nightclub 26 Victoria Parade, Torquay TQ21 2BD.

(2)

(Pages 5 - 8)

(Pages 9 - 99)



Instructions for the press and public for joining the meeting

To meet Covid-19 secure arrangements this meeting will be held via
a hybrid system with the actual decision makers e.g. members of
the Cabinet and key officers meeting in person, at the Town Hall,
Torquay. All other people which includes persons who have
registered to speak, are encouraged to attend remotely via Zoom.

People will not be prohibited from attending meetings in person but
where that number exceeds our maximum Covid-19 secure
numbers, the meeting will be adjourned to enable the meeting to
continue safely in an alternative location.

Where persons would like to attend meetings in person, it is
requested that they notify our Governance Support Team on
(01803) 207087, so that arrangements can be made to ensure
meetings are held, in accordance with Covid secure guidelines.

If you are joining remotely, via an iPad you will need to install Zoom
which can be found in the App Store. You do not need to register
for an account just install the software. You only need to install the
software once. For other devices you should just be taken direct to
the meeting.

Joining a meeting remotely via Zoom

Click on the link provided on the agenda above and follow the
instructions on screen. If you are using a telephone, dial the Zoom
number provided above and follow the instructions. (Note: if you
are using a landline the call will cost up to 13p per minute and from
a mobile between 3p and 55p if the number is not covered by your
inclusive minutes.)

You will be placed in a waiting room, when the meeting starts the
meeting Host will admit you. Please note if there are technical
issues this might not be at the start time given on the agenda.

Upon entry you will be muted and your video switched off so that
only the meeting participants can been seen. When you join the
meeting the Host will unmute your microphone, ask you to confirm
your name and update your name as either public or press. Select
gallery view if you want see all the participants.

If you have joined the meeting via telephone, your telephone
number will appear on screen and will be displayed for all to see
until the Host has confirmed your name and then they will rename
your telephone number to either public or press.

®3)



Speaking at a Meeting

If you are registered to speak at the meeting and when it is your turn
to address the Meeting, the Chairman will invite you to speak giving
the Host the instruction to unmute your microphone and switch your
video on (where appropriate) therefore please pause for a couple of
seconds to ensure your microphone is on.

Upon the conclusion of your speech/time limit, the Host will mute
your microphone and turn off your video.

Meeting Etiquette for Registered Speakers - things to consider
when speaking at public meetings on video

Background — the meeting is public and people will be able to
see what is behind you therefore consider what you will have
on display behind you.

Camera angle — sit front on, upright with the device in front of
you.

Who else is in the room — make sure you are in a position
where nobody will enter the camera shot who doesn’t want to
appear in the public meeting.

Background noise — try where possible to minimise
background noise.

Aim to join the meeting 15 minutes before it is due to start.

(4)



Agenda Iltem 3
TORBAY COUNCIL

Minutes of the Licensing Sub-Committee
20 May 2021
-: Present :-

Councillors Atiya-Alla, Ellery and Mills

Election of Chairman/woman

Councillor Ellery was elected as Chairman for the meeting.

Minutes

The Minutes of the meetings of the Sub-Committee held on 20 February, 21 May,
18 June, 23 July, 6 August, 8 October, 19 and 26 November, 3 and adjourned
meeting on 3 December, 10 and 21 December 2020, 14 January, 18 February and
8 April 2021 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

No 18, 18 Esplanade Road, Paignton, TQ4 6BD

Members considered a report on an application for a Premises Licence in respect
of No.18, 18 Esplanade Road, Paignton.

Written Representations received from:

Name Details Date of Representation

Police Representation objecting to the | 22 April 2021
application on the ground of
‘The Prevention of Public
Nuisance’ and ‘The Prevention
of Crime and Disorder’.

Public Representation objecting to the | 22 April 2021
Protection application on the ground of
‘Public Safety’ and ‘The
Prevention of Public Nuisance’.

Members of Representation objecting to the | 27 March, 6 April, 15,
the Public application on the ground of 16 and 18 April 2021
‘The Prevention of Public
Nuisance’.

Additional Information:

Prior to the Hearing the Applicant requested the following documents be
circulated:

Page 5



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 20 May 2021

e Proposed additional conditions to be added to the Licence, if granted;
e Plan showing internal dimensions of the premises; and
e Photos showing the outside space and exits.

In addition to the above, during the Hearing the Applicant’s suggested the
following changes/additional conditions that they would be happy to be added to
their Licence, if granted:

e removal of off sales from the licence;

e to change the ratio of SIA Door stewards from 1 for every 100 persons to 1
for every 75; and

e to make the smoking area/beer garden no gathering after 1am and limit of
maximum of 20 persons.

Oral Representations received from:

Name Details

Applicant’s The Applicant’s presented their application and responded
to Members questions.

Police The Police Representative presented their objection to the
application and responded to Members questions.

Public The Public Protection Officer presented their representation

Protection in respect of the application and responded to Members

Officer guestions.

Members of the | The two Members of the Public presented their objections to

Public the application.

Decision

That the application for a Premises Licence in respect of No0.18, 18 Esplanade
Road, Paignton be refused.

Reasons for Decision

Having carefully considered all the written and oral Representations, Members
unanimously resolved to refuse the application before them.

In coming to that decision, Members considered the Independent Noise Report
and Noise Management Plan submitted by the Applicants’, dated 7" October 2019
and were impressed and pleased to note that they had thoroughly addressed the
issue of potential noise outbreak from inside the premises. This coupled with the
reassurances given by the Public Protection Officer that he had no concern in this
regard, as was the case when the application was previously considered by a
Licensing Sub-Committee hearing of the 24" October 2019, satisfied Members
that noise outbreak from inside the premises would be eliminated by these
measures.

However, on the evidence before them, Members were not able to gain the same
level of reassurance they required in respect of ensuring that ‘The Prevention of

Page 6



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 20 May 2021

Public Nuisance’ licensing objective was promoted, when determining an
application for a 3am licence.

Members had careful regard to Torbay Council’s Licensing Statement of Principles
P22, Paragraph 4 which states “Where applicants are completing Operating
Schedules, they are expected to have regard to the location of the proposed or
actual premises. In particular, consideration should be given to whether proposals
may have a disproportionate impact in residential areas or near to sensitive
premises such as nursing homes, older people’s accommodation, hospitals,
hospices, schools, childcare facilities or places of worship”.

In doing so, Members noted that the immediate vicinity in which the premises were
located, being surrounded by both private and commercial residential properties
and determined, notwithstanding that contained in the Applicant’s Dispersal Policy
and that put forward by their representative at the hearing which included
amendments to the original application, these residents would suffer a
disproportionate impact, were a 3am licence be granted to these premises, in this
location.

Members noted the submissions of the Interested Parties in that they had learnt to
live with a 1am licence, albeit noise associated with these premises operations
caused them and their guests disturbance beyond the closing time of 1.30am and
to extend this known nuisance by a further two hours, seven days a week, would
in Members opinion, undermine ‘The Prevention of Public Nuisance’ licensing
objective. This echoed the submissions of the Public Protection Officer which
stated that the current 1am licence has achieved a balance of acceptability
between the residential community and the hotelier community and licensed
premises; and that since a 1am licence was in operation, complaints about noise
or anti-social behaviour had diminished.

Members further noted, with concern that the Applicants’ has omitted to engage
residents in the immediate vicinity in respect of this new application, some of
which had made a representation in respect of the Applicants’ previous application
for a 3am licence, despite knowing who these were. Had they done so, Members
were of the view that this would have assisted the Applicants’ in either tailoring
their application to address these concerns or to reassure residents that a
nuisance would not occur. Instead, when considering the evidence before them,
Members determined that little regard had been given to these residents in what
they saw as a high likelihood of nuisance occurring.

Looking in more detail at the Dispersal Policy and the changes to the premises
external layout which sought to address patrons leaving the area via Kernou Road,
Members had specific regard to the submissions of the Public Protection Officer, in
that it was his opinion that this Policy did not offer anything new that has not
already been tried before and failed. Members also noted that despite this Policy
being in place, Responsible Authority Officers had observed first hand, its
implementation not being observed by patrons leaving the premises. In Members
opinion, the insistence of staff and SIA door stewards trying to implement this
Policy, could in itself lead to additional disturbance by those patrons whilst under

Page 7



Licensing Sub-Committee Thursday, 20 May 2021

the influence of alcohol, wanting to choose an avenue of travel which is contrary to
any direction given.

In respect of the internal layout and the concerns raised by the Police regarding
pinch points, Members noted the revised plans showing minor widening of the
corridor, an increase in the number of ladies toilets to six and the intention to have
SIA Door Stewards at either end. However, Members were not satisfied that this
had changed significantly from what was there previously. In forming this opinion,
Members determined that there was still an issue of concern where patrons are
gueueing to use the toilets and those passing between the bar areas, particularly
given the Applicants’ proposed capacity of over 400 persons. In their oral
submissions, the Applicants’ tried to address how the flow of this area would be
managed to avoid conflict between such patrons but failed to provide sufficient
detail on how this would be effectively managed, with the other pressures intended
to be placed on the SIA Door Stewards. In Members opinion, additional persons
in this area, could contribute towards pinch points and gave Members further
concern.

Whilst acknowledging the offer by the Applicants’ to remove off-sales from the
licence and add conditions to change the ratio of SIA Door stewards from 1 for
every 100 persons to 1 for every 75; and to make the smoking area/beer garden
no gathering after 1am and limit of maximum of 20 persons, Members remained
concerned over how these premises would be managed and controlled with a 3am
licence, given the proposed static position of SIA door stewards and the additional
tasks being given to them in managing operations and what would happen to
those static positions and tasks, should an incident occur inside the premises
which required an immediate SAI response. This left Members with the view that
the evolving proposals put forward by the Applicants’ at the hearing, were not
robust enough to reassure them that a 3am licence would not have a detrimental
impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives and nearby residents.

In concluding, Members gave careful consideration as to what if any conditions
could be added by them, as an alternative to refusal. However, Members resolved
that with the lack of robust detail around specific numbers and locations of SIA
Door Stewards, management and supervisory staff and how they would be utilised
when responding to any incidents arising inside the premises whilst maintaining
the demands of other duties, the minimum physical change to the internal layout of
these premises in respect of pinch points, the human nature of individuals under
the influence of alcohol and compelling them to follow direction and the history and
geographical location to which these premises are situated, making it a high
probability of disturbance from noise and anti-social behaviour, they could not be
satisfied that this could be addressed via conditions to enable a 3am licence and
therefore maintained that a refusal was appropriate and proportionate in these
circumstances.

Chairman/woman

Page 8



Agenda Item 6
TORBAY COUNCIL

Briefing Report No: Public Agenda Item: Yes

Title: Licensing Act 2003 — An application for a Variation to a Premises
Licence in respect of Quay Nightclub 26 Victoria Parade, Torquay
TQ21 2BD

Wards Affected: Tormohun

To: Licensing Sub On: 17 June 2021
Committee
Contact Officer: Amanda Turner
Telephone: 01803 208112
Y8 E.mail: Licensing@torbay.gov.uk
1. Key points and Summary

1.1 To consider and determine an application, in respect of the Premise detailed
above, for a Variation to a Premises Licence.

1.2  The application relates to all the Corporate Priorities within the Community Plan.

1.3 The matters raised relate to the Licensing Objectives “The Prevention of Crime
and Disorder”, “Public Safety” and “The Prevention of Public Nuisance”

1.4  The matter must be considered on its own merits having received details of the
issues arising either at a hearing or by written Representations if all parties have
agreed that a hearing is not necessary. Having regard to the Representations and
issues arising, a decision must be made to take such steps as are appropriate for
the promotion of the licensing objectives. These are:-

(a) to modify the conditions of the licence, or
(b) reject the application in whole or in part, or
(c) to grant the application as applied for

For this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered
or omitted or any new condition is added.

1.5 Reasons for the decision must be given for inclusion in the appropriate Notices
required to be served on the Interested Parties and Responsible Authorities at the
determination of the matter.

forward thinking, people orientated, adaptable - always with integrity.

Page 9



2.1

Introduction

An application has been made under Section 34 of the Licensing Act 2003
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Act’) for a Variation to a Premises Licence. Details
of the application are shown in Appendix 1.

A brief description of the proposed Variation is as follows:-

To increase the hours for Live Music indoors by 3 hours every day extending the
time from midnight until 03:00. The premises is currently licensed for Live Music
indoors from 10:00 until midnight seven days a week.

To increase the hours for Recorded Music indoors by 3 hours every day extending
the time from midnight until 03:00. The premises is currently licensed for
Recorded Music indoors from 10:00 until midnight seven days a week.

To increase the hours for Performance of Dance indoors by 3 hours every day
extending the time from midnight until 03:00. The premises is currently licensed
for Performance of Dance indoors from 10:00 until midnight seven days a week.

To increase the hours for anything of a similar description to live music, recorded
music or performances of dance indoors by 3 hours every day extending the time
from midnight until 03:00. The premises is currently licensed for anything of a
similar description to live music, recorded music or performances of dance indoors
from 10:00 until midnight seven days a week

To increase the hours for Late Night Refreshment indoors by 3 hours every day
extending the time from midnight until 03:00. The premises is currently licensed
for Late Night Refreshment indoors from 11pm until midnight seven days a week.

To increase the hours for the Supply of Alcohol, both on and off the premises, by
3 hours every day exceeding the time from midnight until 03:00. The premises is
currently licensed for Supply of Alcohol on and off the premises from 10:00 until
midnight seven days a week and from noon to midnight on the terraced area only.

The applicant has written the following description of the proposed variation which
is shown on page 4 of the application form:-

1. “Variation to licensing hours to 10:00 to 03:00 daily for the following licensable
activities — Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Anything of
a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music of performance of Dance
and Supply of Alcohol (all indoors).

Variation to licensing hours to 23:00 to 03:00 daily for the Late Night
refreshment licensable activity.

Removal of the provision for the Recorded Music licensable activity outdoors.
Variation of opening hours of premises t010:00 to 04:00 daily.

Amendment to Licensed Plan

Removal of Annex 2 conditions and replacement with new Operating Schedule
conditions

Please note that fire safety equipment is not yet installed and so is not shown on
the proposed plans. The applicant is working with Consultancy and Design UK
who are advising on all fire safety issues and final fire safety plans will be made
available to the fire authority in due course’.

Page 10

no

o0k w



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

A copy of the current premises licence showing the licensable activities,
timings and conditions is shown at Appendix 2 of this report.

A copy of the premises plan is shown at Appendix 3 of this report.

The exemptions under the Live Music Act 2012 apply to this licence.

Torbay Council as the Licensing Authority is satisfied that the Applicant has met
the administrative requirements of Section 35(1) of the Act but is unable to issue
the Variation to the Premises Licence, as relevant Representations have been
received from members of the public and Responsible Authorities. The Licensing
Authority is also satisfied that the Representations were received within the
appropriate time-scale, have not been subsequently withdrawn and are not
vexatious or frivolous.

We have received a Representation from the Police in relation to the
Licensing Objective “The Prevention Crime and Disorder” and “The Prevention of
Public Nuisance”. This is shown as Appendix 4.

We have received a Representation from Public Protection in relation to the
Licensing Objective “Public Safety” and “The Prevention of Public Nuisance”. This
is shown as Appendix 5.

We have accepted 2 Representations from members of the public who are
objecting to this application. The Representations relate to the Licensing Objective
“The Prevention of Public Nuisance”. These are shown as Appendix 6.

There have been no Representations received from any other Responsible
Authority or any other Interested Party other than those mentioned above.

The Licensing Authority is required to conduct a hearing by the provisions of
Section 35(3) unless all parties agree that this is not necessary.

Appropriate Notices have been issued to all parties, as required by the Licensing
Act 2003 (Hearing Regulations) 2005, including, where appropriate, details of the
Representations and the procedure to be followed at the hearing.

If the application is refused, in whole or in part, a Right of Appeal to the
Magistrates’ Court is granted by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 1 of
Schedule 5, to the Applicant.

If the application is granted, a Right of Appeal to the Magistrates’ Court is granted
by Section 181 of the Act and, by Paragraph 4(2) of Schedule 5 to :-
(a) The applicant for the variation of the licence against any decision to modify
the conditions
(b) Any person who made a relevant representation in relation to the application
who desires to contend
() that any variation made ought not to have been made, or
(i) that, when varying the licence, the Licensing Authority ought to have

Page 11



modified the conditions of the licence or ought to have modified them in a

different way.

2.8  Following such Appeal, the Magistrates’ Court may:-
(a) dismiss the appeal,
(b) substitute for the decision appealed against any other decision which could
have been made by the Licensing Authority, or
(c) remit the case to the Licensing Authority to dispose of it in accordance with the
direction of the Court, and may make such order as to costs as it thinks fit.

Steve Cox

Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)

Appendices

Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6

Application form.

Copy of the Premises Licence

Plan of the Premises

Representation from the Police.

Representation from Public Protection.

Representations from members of the public objecting to this
application.

Documents available in members’ rooms

None

Background Papers:

The following documents/files were used to compile this report:

The current Premises Licence for the above Premise.

Torbay Council Licensing Policy 2021-2026.

Page 12



ﬁpp%’\di v 1

Agenda Iltem 6
Appendix 1

Torbay
Application to vary a premises ficence
Licensing Act 2003

For help contact

Bnss i fmerere Foarlonns pveves §ole A7 PUET I PN, P
hitpadiionnsiorbavgoy e ConecilincenisTrading

Telephone; 01803 208025

* required information

Section 1618

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference Not Currently In Use

Your reference CDH/QUA3186/0001

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

® Yes (" No
Applicant Details
* First name iThe Quay Nightciub Ltd
* Family name ]The Quay Nightclub Ltd
* E-mail :

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[1 Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

(& Applying as a business or organisation, inciuding as a sole trader

" Applying as an individual

Applicant Business

{s the applicant's business & Yes {" No
registered in the UK with
Companies House?

Registration number

Business name

VAT number -

Legal status Flease salect...

Page 13

This is the unigue reference for this
application generated by the system,

You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them, It
is passed to the authority.

Put "no” if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or
work for.

Include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an Individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional in this form.

If the applicant's business is registered, use
its registered name.

Put "none” if the applicant is not registered
for VAT,

& Guesn's Printer and Contrafier of HMSO 3009

R



Continued from previous page...

Applicant's position in the
business

Home country United Kingdom

Registered Address

Building number or name

District

i
Street [
!
City or town l

County or administrative area E

Postcode !

Country [United Kingdom

Agent Details

* First name iChris E
* Family name iHart E

# E-mail

Main telephone number

Other telephone number

[1 indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:

{&  Anagent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

{"  Anprivate individual acting as an agent

Agent Business

Is your business registered in & Yes .
the UK with Companies

House?

No

Registration number

Business name

VAT number -

Legal status Please select...

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

Address registered with Companies House.

include country code.

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure,

Note: completing the Applicant Business
section is optional In this form.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none” If you are not registerad for VAT.

Page 14

sedvs Printer and Controlier of HMSO 2000




Continued from previous page...

Your position in the business

The country where the headquarters of your

Home country United Kingdom f business is located.
Agent Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.
Building number or name IWoiEens At Harbourside 67 l
Street fThe Terrace [
District l l
City or town ITorquay f
|

County or administrative area [Devon

Postcode [TQT 1DP
Country {United Kingdom f

APPLICATION DETAILS

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the licence has effect or to
vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to make that type of change to the premises licence,
you should make a new premises licence application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

I/we, as named in section 1, being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the
Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in section 2 below,

¥ Premises Licence Number  [PLO865

Are you able to provide a postal address, 0S map reference or description of the premises?
(& Address - 0OS map reference (™ Description

Postal Address Of Premises

Building number or name  |Quay Nightclub |
Street |26 Victoria Parade [
District I ]
City or town |Torquay |

|

County or administrative area !Devon

Postcode 1TQ1 2BD E

Country !United Kingdom [

Pramises Contact Details

Telephone number

Page 15

O Cuean's Printer and Coatroller of HMSO 3509



Continued from previous page...

Non-domestic rateable

value of premises {£) IB’EO

Section 3518

VARIATION

Do you want the proposed
variation to have effect as & Yes " No
soon as possible?

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the
introduction of the late night levy?

 Yes & No You do not have tc_J paya feeif Fhe only
purpose of the variation for which you are
applying is to avoid becoming liable to the
late night levy.

if your proposed variation

would mean that 5,000 or

more people are expected to ==

attend the premises at any [:::[
one time, state the number

expected to attend

Describe Briefly The Nature Of The Proposed Variation

Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which
could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to

provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies, you must include a description of where the place will be and its
proximity to the premises.

Variation to existing Premises Licence to provide for -

1. Variation to licensing hours to 10:00 to 03:00 daily for the following licensable activities - Live Music, Recorded Music,
Performances of Dance, Anything of similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music of Performances of Dance, and
Supply of Alcohol {all indoors). '

2. Variation to licensing hours to 23:00 to 03:00 daily for the Late Night Refreshment licensable activity.

3. Removal of provision for the Recorded Music licensable activity outdoors.

4. Variation of opening hours of premises to 10:00 to 04:00 daily.

5. Amendment to Licensed Plan.

6. Removal of Annexe 2 conditions and replacement with new Operating Schedule conditions.

Please note that fire safety equipment is not yet installed and so is not shown on the proposed plans. The applicant is
working with Consultancy and Design UK Ltd who are advising on all fire safety issues and final fire safety plans will be
made available to the fire authority in due course.

Section4of 18

PROVISION OF PLAYS

Will the schedule to provide plays be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

" Yes & No

on50f18

PROVISION OF FILMS

sove Brintor and Coamtratlor of MO 9085
er's Printer and Canrrofler of HMSG 2009



Continued from previous page... See gquidance on reguiated entertainment
g

Will the schedule to provide films be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

" Yes (& No

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

Ses guidance on regulated enterainment

Will the schedule to provide indoor sporting events be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

" Yes {& No

Section7of18
PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

& guidance on reguilsted entertainment

Will the schedule to provide boxing or wrestling entertainments be subject
1 tochange if this application to vary is successful?

" Yes & No

'_-Sectlon 8o0f18
PROVISION OF LIVE MUsIC

See gd%ér CE O feay sted entertainment

Will the schedule to provide live music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successful?

o Yes " No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY o Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start }10:00 l End {e.g. 16:00) and only gi_ve details fortht? days
. — B e P
TUESDAY
Start | 00 End @:
Start [:j End [::]
WEDNESDAY
Start End
Start [::j End [:::]
THURSDAY

Start End
Start [::] End [—::E

Page 17

Cotrolier of HMSO 2108



Continued from previous page...

FRIDAY
Start f —
Start [::j End E:j

SATURDAY
Start End
Start [:::] End E::I

SUNDAY
Start
Start [:j

Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors or both? ~ Where taking place in a building or other
structure select as appropriate. indoors may
& Indoors (" Qutdoors " Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

For exampie (but not exclusively] where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those
listed, above below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

P.ROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

Ses guidance on regulated entertainment

Will the schedule to provide recorded music be subject to change if this
application to vary is successfui?

(& Yes " No

Standard Days And Timings Page 18

Ousen's Printer and (onfro

RS0 2008




Continued from previous page...

MONDAY

start [ |
TUESDAY

Start E:]
WEDNESDAY
THURSDAY

st [ ]

FRIDAY
SATURDAY

start [ ]
SUNDAY

Start | |

(¢ Indoors

(" Outdoors

-

" End

End [03:00

End

End

End

End

- i

Will the playing of recorded music take place Indoors or outdoors or both?

Both

Provide timings in 24 hour clock

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
to be used for the activity.

Where taking place in a building or other
structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.,

state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively} whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

@ Quean's Pringer and Zontrofler of HMSO 20060




Continued from previous page...

i |

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listad
above, list beiow.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 100f 18
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

See guldance on regulated entertainmernt

Will the schedule to provide performances of dance be subject to change if
this application to vary is successful?

{.®Yes " No .
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start l'EO:OO End (e.g., 16:00} and oniygi_ve details for tht? days
- — S i Al
TUESDAY
Start [: End E:::j
WEDNESDAY _
Sta;rt End
Start [:] End E::]
THURSDAY
Start End
Start [::] End [:::]
FRIDAY
Start End
Start [:::I End [:
SATURDAY
Start End
Start E:j End ::!

Page 20

i

s Quenn's Printer and Controlier of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Start [10:00

Will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other

structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
& Indoors {"  Outdoors (" Both include a tent,

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively} whether or not music will be amplified or unampilified.

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance.

For example {but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months,

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of dance at different times from those listed
above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.q. Christmas Eve.

Section 110f 18

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

See guidance on regulated entertalnment

Will the schedule to provide anything similar to live music, recorded music or

performances of dance be subject to change if this application to vary is
successful?

= Yes £ No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

_ Provide timings in 24 hour clock
End 03:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days

I of the week when you intend the premises
Start E End E::] to be used for the activity.

Page 21

Start |

inter and Controdler of BRSO 2008



Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY
WEDNESDAY
Start End
THURSDAY
Start End
Start [ ] end [ ]
FRIDAY
Start End
B D
SATURDAY
SUNDAY
Start End [03:00 |

Provide a description of the type of entertainment that will be provided.

Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
& Indoors " Qutdoors {" Both inciude a tent,

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations for entertainment.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.
Page 22

s Printer and Controfier of HMSO 2009

S Gus




Continued from previous page...

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for entertainment at different times from those listed above, list
below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 120f 18

PROVISION OF LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will the schedule to provide late night refreshment be subject to change if
this application to vary is successfui?

e ves R Ne

Standard Days And Timings

MON
DAY o Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start I23:00 i 103 {e.g., 16:00} and only give details for the days
: ——— of the week when you intend the premises
Start [ ? End E } to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY

Start End
Start [::] End

WEDNESDAY

Start End
Start [:] End

THURSDAY
Start End
Start ! End
FRIDAY
Start End
Start [: End
SATURDAY

Start [23:00 End [03:00
Start E:] End

S ueen's Printer ang Controller of MMSD 2000



Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Will the provision of late night refreshment take place indoors or outdoors or
both?

{# Indoors  Dutdoors " Both

Where taking place in a building or other

structure select as appropriate. Indoors may
include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively} whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

State any seasonal variations.

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the provision of late night refreshment at different times from
those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will the schedule to supply alcohol be subject to change if this application to
vary is successful?

(¢ Yes { No

Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY

: . _ Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start [10:00 End [0300

(e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days

of the week when you intend the premises

to be used for the activity.

Page 24

qintar and Controtier of HSD 2009



Continued from previous page...

TUESDAY
WEDNESDAY
Start
stat ||
THURSDAY
Start [ ]
FRIDAY
SATURDAY
Start
Start [ |
SUNDAY

Start ;
Start [:]

Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption?

{" Onthe prémises (" Off the premises

State any seasonal variations.

o [

&  Both If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
is for consumption away from the premises
select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

For example (but not exclusively} where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed above,

list bejow.

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Page 25

& Cuesn's Privder anc Controlier of FBASO 2600




Continued from previous page...

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children.

Provide information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may
give rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for
example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

None

Section150f18
HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Provide timings in 24 hour clock
Start ITO:{}O End [@: (e.g. 16:00) and onlygi.ve details for tha? days
= — S e
TUESDAY
Start L End
Start E:::} End [::]
WEDNESDAY
Start !10;00 |
Starti | |
THURSDAY
Start @:
Start i::j
FRIDAY
| Start -0: B End o
Start [:j End
SATURDAY

Start
Start [::]

End

End




Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Start [10:00

Start ! End

State any seasonal variations,

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed above, list below.

For example (but not exclusively}, where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be removed as a consequence of the
proposed variation you are seeking.

The Variation application includes the proposed removal of all Annexe 2 conditions and replacement with the proposed
new Operating Schedule conditions.

B4 | have enclosed the premises licence

[] 1have enciosed the relevant part of the premises licence

Reasons why | have failed to enclose the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence,

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)
List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

Page 2/

S Guess's Printer angd Controfisr of HMSO 2008



Continued from previous page...

b} The prevention of crime and disorder

1. CCTV cameras are installed both internally and externally to cover all areas of operation and the immediate vicinity.

Signage indicating that CCTV equipment is in use and recording at the premises is displayed at the front door and
throughout the premises.

2. All cameras shall continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and for two hours after, and all footage
will be stored and made available to the Police or Licensing Authority for 28 days thereafter.

3. Senior management will be trained in the use of CCTV.

4. Management training is conducted through continuous assessment throughout employment. Bar staff training is carried
out on site by management through a ‘train to train’ initiative, including the use of outside contractors where appropriate.

5. Alt employees undergo appraisal and performance reviews periodically through their employment with us and this is
used primarily to identify further training where necessary.

6. All staff will be trained in the sale of alcohol, provision of entertainment and late-night refreshment, with a robust
induction program to include an understanding of both licensing laws and company policies regarding the sale of alcohol.

7. All staff will be trained with respect to underage sales, including Challenge 25, with training updated as necessary when
legislation changes and including training in how to refuse sales to difficult customers

8. All staff will be trained with respect to drunken or vulnerable customers including the correct protocoi regarding
informing security and management.

9. All staff to be trained in drug awareness,

10. The Staff training record is kept and maintained within the Quay Nightclub's Fire Manual, located at the reception desk
and is available to Licensing Authority or Police force upon request.

11. The Premises operates a zero drugs policy which applies to all staff, patrons and guests.

12. Signage is displayed at the front door and throughout the premises advising those attending, that the Police will be
informed if anyone is found in possession of controlled substances or weapons.

13. Where there is reasonable suspicion that drugs, defined as Class A, B or C controlled substances under the Misuse of
Drugs Act, or weapons are being carried, the security staff must ensure that the outer clothing, pockets and bags of those
entering the premises are searched by door security personnel. In any event where controlled substances or weapons are
found, management or secusity must immediately inform the Police.

14. Drugs and weapons seized will be placed in a locked receptacle set aside for this purpose, in the main office. The means
for securing or unlocking the receptacle will be retained by the premises licence holder or the designated premises
supervisor or in their absence any other responsible person. A record shall be made of the seizure, the time, date and by
whom, and to whom the items were handed on to, in a bound book specifically kept for that purpose, kept within the
locked receptacle in the main office. The book will be produced to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a
constable upon request.

15. All incidents must be recorded immediately in the incident and Refusal book, located at the front desk and made
available to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or the Police immediately upon request.

16. Toilet checks are carried out by employees at least once every hour in all trading times, These checks help ensure that
no itlegal activities take place in these areas and the date and times of all checks will be recorded in a book kept for that
purpose to be produced upon request to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or a constable.

17. Signage is displayed in the toilet areas advising patro%@@ﬁ@@s are conducted regularly, and that CCTV isin

S Chuesn's Printer angd Zontroller of HMEG 2090




Continued from previous page...
operation.

18. Harm reduction information is displayed on the rear of all toilet doors and within the venue, with contact details of local
services available,

19. Searches shall only be conducted by same sex searchers.
20. Random searches will be carried out.
21. Any body search or bag search must be made by the Security Staff, in clear view of the CCTV cameras

22.5Signage is displayed at the front door and throughout the building, advising all customers not to leave any belongings
unattended.

23. A cloak room is provided for customers to safely store bags, coats and other belongings. The correct ticket must be
presented to collect items from the cloakroom.

24. Any Lost or Found property on the premises, or items not collected from the cloakroom at the end of the evening must
be stored in the cloakroom and logged in the lost and found register located in the cloakroom.

25. The Door Admission Pblicﬁ) includes Chéilehge 25 (Proof onge Poiitjf), dress c.od.e,. bag search, zero drug policy. The
policy will be advertised online, on flyers and advertisements and displayed at premises entrance, Company policy is to
eject or refuse entry to anyone not meeting the Door Admission Policy, or who is known to be aggressive or violent.

26. Attempted use of ID which is fake, or appears to be fake or altered in any way, shall be dealt with in line with Police/
PDVLA/Passport agency policy.

27. A Challenge 25 Policy is operated at all times for entry and supply of alcohol. All Employees and Door Supervisors are
trained to ask any customer who appears under the age of 25 to provide a valid form of ID.

28. Identification bearing the customers photograph, date of birth and integral holographic mark or security measure must
be produced before allowing entry and where it is not, entry shall be refused. Suitable means of identification would
include PASS approved proof of age card, photo-card driving licences and passports.

29. Our Challenge 25 Policy is actively promoted. Every customer that is refused entry will be logged in the Incident and
Refusal Book.

30. The Designated Premises Supervisor will keep an 'incident/refusals logbook’ in which full details of all incidents are
recorded. This shall include details of any refused sales and shall give details of the persons involved, incident description,
time and date, actions taken and outcome. This shall be completed as soon as possible and, in any case, no later than the
close of business on the day of the incident. The logbook will always be kept on the premises and shall be made available
to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or the Police when required.

31. During trading hours, all storage and ancillary areas will be locked and alarmed. Outside of trading hours, but during
office hours, only the office area and front door are to be unlocked. All other club areas must remain locked. Cash and stock
on site will be kept at an operating minimum.

32. Door Supervisors shall be on duty at the premises on each trading day from first opening until one hour after closing.

33. All door supervisors on duty at the premises must wear a current identification badge, issued by the Security Industry
Authority or any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority, in a conspicuous position to the front of their
upper body.

34.The premise licence requires that the DPS, or in his/her absence other responsible person to identify by name, those
persons performing duty as door security personnel to an authorised officer of the Licensing Authority or the Police.

Page 29

2 Cueen’s Printer and Contratler of HMSG 2008




Ceontinued from previous page...
35. Security on site should be at the ratio of 1:75,1.€.; one security stai member {0 75 CUSTOIners.

36. Door supervisors will be permanently stationed at each entrance/exit [excluding fire exits] to the premises.
37. All door supervisors shall be capable of communicating instantly with one another by way of two-way radio.

38. Security Shift Registers and Security Staff Registers (see below) will be maintained and made available to the Licensing
Authority or Police upon request.

39. The Security Shift Register will include the following details for all Security Staff on duty for each shift:

- Full name

- SlA Certificate number and or badge number, or registration number of any accreditation scheme recognised by the
Licensing Authority (including expiry date of that registration or accreditation),

+ Thetime they began their duty

+ The time they completed their duty.

«  Staff Signature

40. The Security Shift Register is to be kept at the front reception desk all times and shall open to inspection by authorised
officers of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon request.

41.The Sééurify Staff Réig'istét'r will include t'he.fo.i.ib.v.vihg details .fo.r.a[%. S.e(ﬁurit.y Staff contracted to work at the Quay
Nightclub:

Name
« Date of birth
« Address

- {Contact telephone numbers
+  SIA Certificate number, or registration number of any accreditation scheme recognised by the Licensing Authority.
- Commencement date of performing duties at the premises.

42. This register is available for inspection by authorised officers of the Licensing Authority or a constable upon request.

43. The Premises shall maintain a subscription to the NiteNet communication system.

44.The Premises shall not engage in irresponsibie or ail-inclusive drinks promotions.

45. The Premises shall maintain a full range of non-alcoholic soft drinks, juices and “Mocktails” with a visible presence.

46. The 'drinkaware.co.uk’ logo or similar message e.g. ‘please drink responsibly’ will be present on all promotional material.

47.The Premises shall maintain a Policy setting out procedures in the event of mass public disorder, which shall be
included within training for all staff and security staff, which shall include the following provisions -

» Ali entertainment will cease, and house lights will be lit up.

- Alt drinks service will stop.

- The appropriate emergency services will be informed, as will the NiteNet radio system.

- The Head of Security will determine what route is best for an evacuation of the premises and Security Staff will impiement.
« Staff will remain or relocate to behind bars or in staff only areas such as the staff room,

- Any vulnerable or injured patrons will be taken to the safe area and attended to by a Manager.

+ The Head of Security will risk assess and evaluate how best to proceed with any external issues arising outside the
premises, locking the building down if safe to do so, with assistance from the Security and Management team.

« No clean down of the premises will take place until the Police have authorised.

¢} Public safety

1. At no point will the capacity of the Premises exceed 80P, with dogrstaff using clickers or other suitable equipment to

1 uvu A\ A4

RENIEE I

Printor angd Controfler of HMS0 2008




Continued from previous page...

record customers entering and exiting the premises. Tn addition to customers, any Ive calculation of capacity figuresis fo
include alf staff members, contractors, performers or other visitors either on site, or due on site during any shift.

2. The capacity figure will always make allowance for advance bookings.

3. Any queue that may form outside the Premises will be monitored by door security staff to ensure there is no
overcrowding. Any cordons or barriers that may be required will be installed at the approval and recommendation of
Torbay Council.

4. All employees will be trained in what to do in the event of a fire and the majority of employees are fire safety trained.

5. All employees and SIA supervisors will be made aware of their responsibilities in the event of a fire evacuation. A
management fire evacuation policy is in place.

6. Any outside contractor will read and sign a contractor's safety rules policy.

7.The premises will maintain a detailed Fire Log Book and Maintenance Record as per the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety)
Order 2005, and is available on request by relevant authorities. All process and procedure relating to fire safety will be
detailed in the Fire Log Book.

8. All fire exits are checked da'i!y and must always remain ci'eér, free and accessible.

9. Alt equipment is maintained and in a safe condition in accordance with the Electricity at Work Regulations 1989.
Electrical safety procedures form a part of the overall health and safety management system.

10. Toughened/polycarbonate glass will be used and there will be risk assessment of the need for plastic containers for
specific events.

11. There will be regular clearance of all bottles, glasses and mugs from the bar, toilet areas and other external areas of the
building and its premises.

12. Staff (and security if present) also have a responsibility for the clearance of any glassware found either on the floor or in
a hazardous position, both inside and outside the venue,

13. All staff will be reminded to look out for and remove any hazard that could constitute a risk to fellow staff or customers
which could include spillages, broken glassware, bottles or hazards on the floor.

£

14. Customers will be advised that they are not allowed to take any glassware from the premises to minimise the areas at
risk of spillages and breaking incidents,

15. First Aid points are located at reception, cloakroom and the lower office,

16. No less than two qualified first aiders will be on the premises during trading hours. The General Manager/Designated
Premises Supervisor will be a qualified first aider.

17. All staff will have basic health & safety training upon induction. All management and employees are also trained in
health and safety to a level required by their job responsibilities.

18. No chairs or tables will be placed within one metre of the upstairs balcony, and security staff will supervise this area to
ensure no customers are climbing or otherwise in breach of health and safety provisions,

19. Air conditioning and ventilation will be maintained and kept to a high enough standard so that internal temperature
regulation shall not be reliant upon opening doors thereby causing the risk of noise pollution.

20. Annual certification regarding the safety of the suspended fibrous plaster ceiling will be completed, with
documentation made available to the licensing authoritP @@ @dst.

o Crimeny's Printer and Controller of HRS0 2009




Continued from previous page...

21. 5lips and trips will be monitored throughout the building regularly and documented in the accident book.

22. Allfloor coverings are assessed for suitability and are slip resistant to minimise any potentiai slips and trips. The non-slip
floor coverings will be monitored regularly for signs of wear and tear.

23. A telephone with direct communication to a local taxi firm shall be available in the reception area of the Quay club. This
area will be supervised by staff at all times to control any user issues and control queuing fluidity.

24. The Premises will maintain a designated ‘pick up area’ a short distance from the entrance of the Quay Nightclub which
will be supervised by a member of security to control any queuing or logistical issues that may occur minimising any
potential crime and disorder or noise issues. The security personnel must be clearly identifiable wearing a fanyard and
florescent clothing and be in constant communication with the security team at the Premises, via two-way radio. The
system will assist with a “safe path home” to customers and security will remain in place until the last person using the
service has been picked up. At this point there will be a risk assessment of any vuinerable people left in the vicinity. The
“safe path home” service will be fully promoted throughout the Premises.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

1. The Premises will operate a 'no re-entry’ policy, to prevent people from gathering on the street, smoking or socialising.

Any patrons leaving the premises after 2am will not be permitted re-entry. No new patrons wili be permitted entry after
2am.

2. Clear notices will be displayed at all points where customers leave instructing them to respect the needs of local
residents and leave the premises and the area quietly.

3. Music will not be played at a level that will cause unreasonable disturbance to the occupants of any properties in the
vicinity. A sound limiter has been voluntarily installed and set at a level appropriate to ensure guality entertainment within
the premises, without disturbing neighbours. The level set is as recommended by an acoustic assessment taking into
account volume and nature of music to be played and noise leakage from the Premises. The sound limiter is inaccessible to
the DJ and can only be altered or removed by a qualified sound technician.

4. All doors to the premises must be kept closed at all times, with the exception of the main entrance on Victoria Parade
during trading hours. The reception lobby door must never be ‘propped open’, in order to minimise any sound escaping
via the entrance door.

5. All speakers and sound amplification are located inside the Premises. No speakers or amplification may be taken to any
exterior areas. Speakers and ampiifiers are permanently positioned in a way designed to maximise customers enjoyment,
while eliminating any external disturbance and cannot be moved or repositioned.

6. Internal bins will only be emptied outside between the hours of 08.00 and 21.00.

7. During trading hours, waste bins will be placed at the front door for patrons to use, and after the premises closes for the
evening and patrons ushered away from the area safely, any street litter will be removed by staff, so that other business
operators in the vicinity are not affected by litter outside when they open their premises in the morning.

8. No accumulation of combustible rubbish, dirt, surplus material or stored goods shall be permitted to remain in any part
of the premises except in an appropriate place and of such quantities so as not to cause a nuisance, obstruction or other
safety hazard.

9. During the last half hour of trading, the service points in each bar will be reduced and some reallocated to collect giasses
or work in the cloakroom. This will assist customer departure and reduce the potential for people to carry glassware out of

the premises. Staff will also encourage customers to finish their dripks and prepare to leave in plenty of time. The ability to
r JL




Continued from previous page...
purchase drinks via any in house app will be unavalilable within the Iast hour of trading.

10. Notices will be placed in the foyer request exiting customers to leave quietly and to respect neighbours and their
properties.

11. Customers will be directed by staff and signage towards the hallway leading to the main entrance/exit on Victoria
Parade.

12. Staff (and door staff where appropriate} will be present both at the entrance to that hallway and at the end of the
hallway where it opens into reception and onto Victoria Parade. At which point, staff (and door staff where appropriate) will
encourage customers to disperse in an orderly and staggered pattern onto Victoria Parade and the waiting transport
options available as quickly and quietly as possible.

13. The smoking area will be monitored at all times by security staff with a minimum of one SIA staff member being present
at the smoking solution to ensure that customers do not behave in a noisy, rowdy or offensive manner.

14. Clear notices will be displayed at prominent positions in the smoking area requesting that customers respect the needs
of local residents and behave in a quigt and orderly manner.

15. A 'traffic light’ decibel measurement system is installed at the entrance/exit to the smoking area to measure sound
levels outside. The noise level is closely monitored and should the volume in the smoking area reach certain levels, security
staff will investigate and take measures, either through verbal warnings or removali of patrons from the smoking area.

16. The Premises will limit the use of the smoking area to no more than 20 people, with a "one in, one out" policy, adopted
by a supervising security staff member, manning a closed door.

17. Qutdoor lighting will be positioned so as to limit any intrusion into residential accommodation in the vicinity whilst
maintaining an adequate level for Health and Safety. No additional lighting may be moved to the smoking solution
without a risk assessment.

18. Vaping is permitted on the premises on the Second Floor only. This prevents ‘Vapers’ from having to leave the premises
and 'Vape' outside, while protecting most customers on the dance floor and main bar areas from the vapour and odour of
‘Vapers'. Regular air changes combined with the height of the ballroom ceiling will be sufficient to allow any vaping by-
products to dissipate naturally.

e) The protection of children from harm

1. There will be in place a written age verification policy in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol, which will specify a
Challenge 25 proof of age requirement. This means that staff working at the Premises must ask individuals who appear to
be under 25 years of age, attempting to purchase alcohol, to produce identification. The only acceptable identification
documents will be:

- A photo driving licence

- A passport

- Anidentification card carrying the PASS hologram

Unless such identification is produced the sale of alcohol must be refused. This policy will include documented steps taken
to prevent adults from purchasing alcohol for or on behalf of children under 18. Challenge 25 training will take place for
staff and Challenge 25 promotional items, posters, flyers etc will be displayed around the premises.

2. The 'Refusal and Incident Book' will record details of anyone who has been refused entry or service as a result of an age
challenge. Such information will be shared with other local operators.

Raae-33

~J

£ Crueeys Prirder arad




Continued from previous page...

NOTES ON REGULATED ENTERTAINMENT

In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:

Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08:00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience
does not exceed 500.

Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in community premises between 08.00 and
23.00 on any day provided that the audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the
screening from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such screening abides
by age classification ratings.

Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided
that the audience does not exceed 1000.

Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment: no licence is required for a contest, exhibition or display of Greco-Roman
wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not
exceed 1000. Combined fighting sports ~ defined as a contest, exhibition or display which combines boxing or
wrestling with one or more martial arts - are licensable as a boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an
indoor sporting event.

Live music: no licence permission is required for:
“a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, on any premises.

a performance of ampiified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell
alcohol for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a workplace that is not
licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hall,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b} the organiser gets consent far the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises
of (i} a local authority, or (ii) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500,
and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: {i) the local
authority concerned, or (i} the school or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for:

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on premises authorised to sell aicohol
for consumption on those premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a church hall, village hal,
community hall, or other similar community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell
alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the
performance from a person who is responsible for the premises.

any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a
local authority, or (i) a school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b}
the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant premises from: (i) the local authority
concerned, or (i) the school proprietor or (jii) the health care provider for the hospital.

ar Cumen's Frinter and Controller of HAAS

Page 34




Continued from previous page...

® Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the

audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance which amounts to adult entertainment remains
licensable.

s Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, with no limit on
audience size for:

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority where the entertainment is provided
by or on behaif of the local authority;

0 any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health care provider where the
entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the health care provider;

0 any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the entertainment is provided by or
on behalf of the school proprietor; and

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling entertainment) taking place at a travelling
circus, provided that (a) it takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, and
(b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for more than 28 consecutive days.

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complate the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.
Variation Fees are determined by the non&nbsp;domestic rateable&nbsp;value of the premises.

To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at hitp://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00

Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00

Band C - £330017 to £87000 £315.00

Band D - £87001 to £125000 £450.00*

Band E - £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premises rateable value is in Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee
Band [ - £87001 to £125000 £900.00

Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

If you own a large premise you are subject to additional fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time
Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00

Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,0600.00

Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00

Capacity 20000-28999 £8,000.00

Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00

Capacity 40000-49995 £24,000.00

Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00

Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00

Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00

Capacity 80000-89995 £56,000.00

Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

# Fee amount (£) 190.00
ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS

Page 35

w uean's Prindar and Controfler of HMSO 2009



Continued from previous page...

Address

Building number or name

District

l
Street ]
|
City or town ]

County or administrative area ]

Postcode i

Country EUnEted Kingdom E

DECLARATION

I/WE UNDERSTAND THAT IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE

© STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON
SUMMARY CONVICTIONTOAFINEOF ANYAMOUNT. |
information held by Torbay Council complies with and is held in accordance with the UK Data Protection Act, 1998. The
information that you provide on this form will only be used in the processing of the application form, and will only be

* disclosed where necessary under any appiicable legislation and certain circumstances should the application be

successful such as publication of business details on a public register, it may also be shared for the purposes of
enforcement.

You have the right to access your personal information. If you wish to access your personal information or exercise any of

. yourrights under the legislation then please contact Torbay Counci® s Information Governance team on 01803 207467,
Further information can be found on the Information Governance pages on Torbay Counci@ s internet pages at www.
torkay.gov.uk

. Information may also be shared for the prevention and detection of crime, for example with the police and other agencies
as required by law, such as the Audit Commission under the National Fraud Initiative data matching exercise.

“ 1 have gained permission from all licence holders in making this application

[} Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name i |

* Capacity i !

Date (dd/mm/yyyy) i

Once you're finished you need to do the following:

1. Save this form to your computer by clicking file/save as...

2.Go back to hitps://www gov.ul/aoply-for-a-licence/nremises-licence/torhay/change-1 to upload this file and continue
with your application.

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

Page 36

i Cusen's Printer and Controlier of HMB0 2009



Continued from previous page...

IT15 AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY
CONVICTION TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Page 37

s Printar anad Tonsrolier of MBS 2008




. ltem 6
Appendiz 2 Adenda it

Torbay Council
Licensing & Public Protection
Town Hall

Castle Circus

Tarquay

TQ1 3DR

Part 1 - Premises Details

OSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES; OR IF NON

The Quay Nightclub

26 Victoria Parade, Torquay, TQ1 28D.

ERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED TH
Not applicable

- LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LIC|
- a performance of a play

- an exhihition of a film

- an indoor sporting event

- a boxing or wrestling entertainment

- a performance of live music

- any playing of recorded music

- a performance of dance

- entertainment of a similar description to that falling within a performance of live music, any playing of recorded music or a
performance of dance

- entertainment facilities for making music

- entertainment facilities for dancing

- entertainment of a similar description to that falling within entertainment facilities for making music or dancing
- provisicon of late night refreshment

- the sale by retail of alcohaol

L

THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE GARRYING BUT

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
A. Pedormance of a play (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
B. Exhibition of films (Indoars)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight

New Years Eve from the end of permitted hours until the start of permitted hours on New

Years Day.
C. Indoor sporting event

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
D. Boxing or wrestling entertainment (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight

Priniad by LalPac on 21 May 2021 at 11 48 ”l""”“""mmmmﬁlllm "H] PLOBSS/S55300  Page 1 of 10



\ES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES

Activity (and Area if applicable) Description Time From Time To
E. Performance of live music {Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
F. Playing of recorded music (Indoors & Outdoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
G. Performance of dance (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
H. Entertainment of a similar description to that falling within E, F, or G (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
t. Provision of facilities for making music {Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
J. Provision of facilitiss for dancing {Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
K. Provision of facilities for entertainment of a similar description to that falling within | or J (Indoors)

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight
L. Late night refreshment (Indoors) . L . .

Monday to Sunday 11:00pm Midnight
M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises

Monday to Sunday 10:00am Midnight

Monday to Sunday Noon Midnight Terraced area only

Description Time From Time To

Monday to Sunday 6:00am Midnight

- WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHO HER THESE ARE ON'AND | OR OFF SUPPLIES
- M. The sale by retail of alcohol for consumption ON and OFF the premises

Part 2

» TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCI

The Quay nghtclub Limited 26 Victoria Parade, Torquay, Devon, TQ1 2BD.

- REGISTERED NUMBEH

LDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE-APPLICABL]
The Quay Nightclub Limited 12101245

Licence No. PA3547 Issued by Torbay

Printad by LalPac on 21 May 2021 at 1146 m”mlIllmlmm'ﬂlﬁlmm{mm " m PLOBES/S5300  Page 2 of 10



Blofer e

Steve Cox
Environmental Health Manager (Commercial)
21 May 2021

Printed by LalPac on 21 May 2021 at 1148 mmmIllmmmmmﬂ!"m" m PLOBESISE300  Page 3 of 10



1)

4)

5)

B)

ANNEXE 1

MANDATORY CONDITION: WHERE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

premises:-

Ne supply of aleoho!l may be made under the premises licence:-
{a} ata time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or

(b} at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his/har personat licence is
suspended.

Evary supply of aleohol under the premises licence must be made or awthorised by a person who holds a psrsonal
licence.

{1} The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or participate in any
irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2} In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or substantially
similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohal for consumption on the

{a} games or other activities which require or encaurage, or are designed to require or encourage, individuals to:-
(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on the premises
before the cessation of the periad in which the responsible person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or
{ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a ime limit or otherwise);

{b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to tha public orto a
group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing
objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol ar any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the purchase and
consumplion of alcohol over a period of 24 haurs or less in a manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a
licensing objective;

{d} selling or supplying alcohol in assaciation with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity of, the premises
which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects
of drunkenness in any favourable manner;

{e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other parson is unable to
drink without assistance by reason of disability).

The responsible person must ensure thal free potable water is provided on request to customers where it is reasonably
available.

{1} The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification policy is
adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.

(2) The designated premisas supervisor in relalion to the premises licence must ensure that the suppiy of alcohol at the
premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.

{3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of age (or such older
age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their
photograph, date of birth and either:-

{a) a holagraphic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

The responsible person must ensure that:-

(a) where any of the fallowing alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises (other than alcoholic

drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is
available to customers in the following measures:-

Printad by LaiPac on 21 May 2021 at 1148 Im”m"u”mmﬁlmmml " ||| PLOBES/SS400  Page 4 .0i 10



(i) beer or cider: 2 pint;
(ii} gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(iii) stil wine in a glass: 125 ml;

(b} these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed matarial which is available to customers on the
premises; and

{c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohal to be scold, the custamer is
made aware that these measures are available.

Minimum Drinks Pricing

1) A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the premises far a price
which is less than the permitted price.

2) For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1
{2) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcohalic Liquor Duties Act 1979
(b} “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula F' = D + (DxV)_
| Whe.ré:-

(i} P is the permitted price

(i) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the date of the
sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax were charged
on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises licence:-
(i} The holder of the premises licence
(i) The designated premisas supervisor (if any) in raspect of such a licence, or
(iii) The personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohal under such a licence:

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises certificale, any
member or officer of the ¢lub present on the premises in a capacily which enables the member or officer ta prevent the
supply in question; and

{e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act 1994,

3) Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from the paragraph) not be a whole
number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-
paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4} {1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b} of paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”)
would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day’} as a result of a change to the rate of duty
or value added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which take place before
the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.

MANDATORY CONDITION: EXHIBITION OF FILMS

1} Where the film classification body is specified in the licence, admission of children must be restricted in accordance
with any recommendation made by that body.

2} Where -
{a) the film classiiication body is not specified in the licence, or
{b) the relevant ficensing authority has notified the halder of tha licence that this condition applies to the film in

question,

admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any recommendation made by that licensing authority.

Printed by LaiPas on 21 May 2021 at 148 ||||m”mmmmmmmmmm PLOBBS/S5300  Pags 5 of 10




Printed by LatPac on 21 May 2021 al 11:48

General

1.

1.

5.

1.

1.

2.

In the case of the aforementioned conditions

“children” means persons aged under 18; and

“film classification body” means the person or persons designated as the authority under section 4 of the
Video Recordings Act 1984 (authority to determine suitability of video works for classification).

ANNEXE 2

CONDITIONS CONSISTENT WiTH THE OPERATING SCHEDULE

There shall ba no access to the lerraced area ather than through the premises.

The prevention of crime and disorder

A CCTV system of an evidential standard must be installed to the satisfaction of the Police and the system shall be in
operation whenever events are being held at the premises. All recordings from the system must be kept for a period of
14 days. The Police shall have access to recordings at any time and downloaded footage shall be provided within 7
days of any request. .. o L A o o o

The terraced area shall be cleared of all drinks no later than 10.00pm.

S1A door stewards shall be on duty for the duration of any events at a ratio of 1:100 persons and there must be at least
one female steward on duty.

All drinks shall be provided in plastic/polycarbonate vessels whenever events are being held at the premises and no
drinks will be served in glass bottles from which it is intended or likely that a person shall drink.

No drinks shall be taken onla the rear terrace whenever events are being hsld at the premises.

Public Safety

No table or chairs will be positioned within 1 metre of the balcony rail during svents.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance -

The number of persons using the rear terrace shall be limited to no more than 20 after 11.00pm,

At all times the terraced area is open after 10.00pm during events, the area shall be directly supervised by an S1A door
steward who shall ensure as part of their duties that excessive noise is not generated by patrons using this area so as
not to unreasonably disturb nearby residents.

Noise from the premises shall not be audible within any dwelling with windows open for normal ventilation, aspecially
aiter 11.00pm. This shall be assessed from the boundary to the nearsst residential properies on all sides of the
licensed premises. The criteria that shall be applied are:

(i) before 11.00pm noise emanating from the premisas shall not be clearly distinguishable abave ather noise.

(ii} after 11.00pm noise emanating from the premises shall not be distinguishable above background levels of noise.
{iii) the Local Autharity shall reserve the right in casas of tonal noise, and where premises are attached to others, to
make further assessments from within residential property.

The volume of amplified scund used in connection with the entertainment provided shall at all times be under the
control of the Management and the controlling mechanism shall be operated from a part of the premsies not accessible
lo the public.

A senior member of staff (Manager) shall assess the impact of any naise activities on neighbouring residential
premises at the start of any activity or entertainment and periodically throughout the activity or entertainment to ensura
levels of noise have not increased.

The premises licence holder shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that stafi leaving the premises do so quietly so
as not to disturb nearby residents.

(g LSS0 Page el 19




~ ANNEXES confinusa

7

None

PLANS

Entrances must be prowdeé with lobbies with automnatic door-closers. The lobbies are in use throughout tha time of
sntertainment.

The Protection of Children from Harm

1. The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy and any person appearing under the age of 25 shall be requested to
produce an approved form of photgraphic id.

2. Whenever events are being held at the premises, the Challenge 25 policy will be carried out at the entrance to the
premises and all persons identified as being under the age of 18 years will be identified and the door steward shali
place an arm band around their arm.

ANNEXE 3

CONDITIONS ATTACHED AFTER A HEARING BY THE LICENSING AUTHORITY
ANNEXE 4

Copy attached to Licence.

Printed by LatPac on 21 May 2021 at 1148 !E"m”u“"mﬂﬁﬁlmm}mm " m PLOSE5/55300  Pags 7 of 10




Agenda Item 6

Agornciv 3. Appendix 3
RED OUTLINE = —
PROPQSED '
LICENCED AREA
Exit 2t Ground Lovel to Beocen Hi
1 N CELLAR
j Ny
| =31=] BACK OFFICE OFFICE
. i
STAFFROOM™
2m CASH OFFICE
P
0 m >
! QUAY NIGHTCLUB LTD
B 26 VICTORIA PARADE
NrEcermon | || TORQUAY TR 2BD
|
n ]
AR GROUND/MEZZANINE
ENTRANCE LEVELS
] FOYER i
SCALE 1180
CANOPY
VICTORLA PARADE

Page 45



1
.I&I
oglil Fvos ”
VOO 1S ] AT
) geeesse
agz oL AvnDEol |
Saveivd VIiEOLOIN 22
Al SNTI2LHEIN AvND

Page 46

1 Mojpg podies) g UMag a5
,.q,., ) .
.jl—ll—]_lr_l—_._|<
A 1 " L~
]
SDNACT dIA “ _
i m _
] o
ﬂ wsg | atd
- n_./ o HOOEEINYD wvd |Feos o
- - | -1
Moy uodion 7 u..,..m
2 .
uwmoe] kwg n
m(mm FONNCT dIA ‘
_ m L
_ SHLOOE dA CEis

L
e Wz
e
an

V3dVY Q3ON3ID1T a3S0d0ld = INILNO a3y



ANODIVE

d0LJ00x

L]
el

4n

YEElL A NODTVvE

W LOZ

T ANQDIVE
Wi

ANODIVE

F0vaREL
OMHAOIWS

< wog ?

VIUVY A3ON33171 A3SOd0Hd = INITLNO a3

20074 ANOD3IS

dg LOL AvNoDEO0L
2AveEvd ViZOLDIA 22
ALl 8NTISLHSIN AvND




Agenda Item 6
Appendix Lt Appendix 4

From: SMART Julie 50403 <Julie. SMART@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk>
Sent: 17 May 2021 12:09

To: Licensing; Clarke, Sarah

Suhject: QUAY NIGHTCLUB, 26 VICTORIA PARADE, TORQUAY

Attachments: Quay Nightclub Supporting Documents.pdf

Good afternoon

| refer to the application for the variation of the premises licence at the Quay Nightclub, 26 Victoria Parade, Torguay,
TQ1 28D, submitted by the applicant, The Quay Nightclub Ltd. The directors of this company are Ms Kirsti Garnet-
Thomas and Mr Adam Hamade.

This premises is situated within the Cumulative Impact Area outlined within your Cumulative Impact Policy 2021-
2024. This policy was subject of an evidential review in 2020 and at that time Torbay Council was satisfied that the
data provided by the police and authority, continued to identify the area as being subject to high levels of alcohol
related crime and public nuisance. Your findings also demonstrated that the policy should only apply to ‘vertical
drinking estahlishments’, off licences and late-night refreshment premises. Your policy seeks to reduce crime,
disorder anti-social behaviour and public nuisance within the CiA, but to support and encourage businesses with a
focus on providing food, léisdre, sports, community and family oriéntated activitigs where alcohol is ancillary to the
provision of these facilities, which have little or no negative impact on the licensing objectives. [t is the intention of
the applicants to run this premises as a nightclub and this type of premises is classed by the police as high risk in
terms of its association with crime, disorder and public nuisance.

In refation to the lower part of the CIA (the harbourside, Torwood Street and Fleet Street area) | have prepared the
attached document (Page 1) which shows the closing times of all premises in that area where vertical drinking is
permitted. This shows there are 31 such premises, and 21 of those are authorised to sell alcohol after

midnight. Bearing in mind that this part of the ClA is approximately 0.5 miles in diameter, the police consider that
the concentration of late-night premises within this area is already high.

The Premises

This premises was a nightclub from at least the 1960's up until May 2014 when the licence was transferred and the
premises became a gym. At that time a variation was submitted to reduce the sale of alcoheol from 0200 hrs on
Mondays and Tuesdays, 0230 hrs on Wednesdays and 0300 hrs on Thursdays to Sundays until 0000 hrs daily.

Between 2000 and 2014, whilst employed by the police in the licensing department, | can advise you that the
premises regularly came to police attention in relation to crime and disorder issues, and from 2008 (when | was
appointed a licensing officer) | have been responsible for dealing with the management of this premises in relation
to any concerns identified there. | therefore have detailed knowledge and experience of this premises.

| have prepared a dacument outlining the levels of recorded crime at this premises from 1996 to date, which is
attached for your information (Pages 2 - 13) and | have broken this down to each individual operator throughout
that time. As you will see from 2010 to 2014 there were 2 operators, one of which only operated the premises for a
period of approximately 4 months and the other for a period of approximately 6 months. From my dealings with
these companies | am aware that, despite both being experienced operators and owning nightclub premises in other
parts of the country, they struggled to attract sufficient customers to make the business viable.

In respect of the layout of the premises | can advise you that there have previously been concerns at this premises in
relation to the stairwells from the dance floor to the balcony area. You will note that these stairs turn back on
themselves and at this point they are wider on one side than the other. This can be problematic when there are
large numbers of persons within the premises as theyﬁﬂdgcﬂ\gbecome congested and when persons are

I



intoxicated or wearing high heels this also causes difficulty negotiating this type of staircase. In the past door
stewards have had difficulty physically removing troublesome individuals from this area if they.are not willing to
leave of their own accord, and there have been complaints of assault by stewards in these areas, which are also
difficult to ensure adequate CCTV coverage due to their design and poor lighting.

The Applicants

Mr Hamade has advised me that he has no experience of working in or managing a licensed premise and he does
not hold a Personal Licence.

Ms Garnet-Thomas has provided a comprehensive curriculum vitae to me, which shows that her experience in the
flicensed trade is limited to being a croupier/inspector for a casino company based in London from 1995 to 2004, as a
manager in a bar in Australia from 1992 to 1995, and part time/casual employment as a waitress/bar
attendant/barista over the last 30 years. Ms Garnet-Thomas obtained a Personal Licence in August 2019,

Dealings with the Applicants

In August 20189 | was contacted by Mr Hamade who indicated that he was aware of the Cumulative Impact Policy but
wanted to know what the possibility of obtaining an extension to the hours of the premises would be before he
signed a lease for the premises. At that time, he provided me with an operating schedule for consideration.
fn response to Mr Hamade’s email | replied that | thought it was unlikely that the police would support a 3.00 am
licence at the premises as this would lead to an increase in crime and disorder within the CIA. A copy of that email,
together with the operating schedule is attached, for your information (Pages 14 — 19).

On 20 September 2019 myself and Mr Karl Martin, Public Protection Officer of Torbay Council, met with Mr Hamade
and Ms Garnet-Thomas at the premises. | have attached the notes that | made immediately after that meeting
detailing the discussions that took place (Pages 20 — 22).

On 1 October 2019 the police received a Temporary Event Notice for an event at the premises from 0000 to 0300
hrs on 1 November 2019, 2 November 2019 and 3 November 2019.

On 2 October 2019 Mr Martin emailed Mr Hamade and Ms Garnet-Thomas outlining that he had concerns in
relation to the structure of the building, in refation to the absence of a safety certificate for the ceiling and the
height of the balcony handrail, together with the lack of an acoustic report. These matters had been discussed with
the applicants at the meeting in September 2019. Due to his concerns Mr Martin recommended that they withdraw
the TEN. On 3 October 2019, as the TEN had not been withdrawn, Mr Martin objected to the TEN which | believe
was subsequently withdrawn by the proposed premises user.

In October 2019 | was contacted by a solicitor acting on behalf of the applicants, who wished to meet at the
premises to discuss a proposed application. Despite emailing the solicitor advising him that | was happy to meet
with him, he never got back to me with any proposed dates.

On Friday 27 December 2019 | was off duty eating a meal at a licensed premises on Victoria Parade when the door
steward at that premises advised me that the Quay Nightclub had been open on a Saturday night before Christmas
as he had seen people coming and going after midnight but he did not see any door stewards on duty. He also
mentioned that the police had attended as it appeared that a window had been smashed at the premises. A short
time later, on Victoria Parade, a DPS of another licensed premises approached me and advised me that he was
aware that the Quay Nightclub had been open on Saturday 21 December 2019 as he had seen people entering.

On my return to work in January 2020, | noted that | had received an email from PC Geake informing me that on 21
December 2019 police received information from the CCTV Control Room that numerous people had been seen
entering the Quay Nightciub but no door stewards were visible. | was further advised by PC Harvey that he and PC

Page 49
2



Geake had attended the Quay Nightciub between 2336 and 2354 hrs that night. PC Geake’s email is attached (Page
23}

On 31 December 2019 | sent an email to Ms Garnet-Thomas and Mr Hamade advising them that | had received a
report in relation to their premises and wished to meet with them on 9 January 2020. Ms Garnet-Thomas
responded to my email that the building was not in a suitable state to open, although they had allowed 6-10
builders to have a few drinks in the premises until about 11pm as they had worked hard to reach a deadline.

On 9 January 2019 myself, Sgt Curtis and Mr Martin attended the premises and met with Mr Hamade and Ms
Garnet-Thomas. { made notes in relation to the discussions that took place that day, a copy of which is attached
{Pages 24 — 25).

On 13 May 2020 | was forwarded an email from Mr lan Westwood, Revenue Coordinator of Torbay Council Revenue
and Benefits, in which he stated that he had received a complaint and enguiry from a local MP as a result of Ms
Garnet-Thomas applying for a business grant based on the fact that the premises had been unable tc open and
trade due to Coronavirus Regulations. This grant had been refused by Torbay Council. Within his email Mr
Westwood sought any information to indicate that the premises had been open to the public, or otherwise. In
response to this email | provided Mr Westwood with information in relation to PC Geake’s visit on 21/12/19 and a
paragraph from Ms Garnet-Thomas' email in relation to this matter in which she stated "{'m not 100% sure what the
below relates to, as we are nowhere near close to being able to trade, and are aiming for an Easter opening. The
premises is currently a building site as we refurb internally and repair the roof and ceiling and on the 21* Dec we
broke up for Christmas”. 1 also provided information in relation to the work | had seen in progress within the
“building Guring my Visit on 8 January 2020, -« U U

On Saturday 13 June 2020 | was off duty at home when | received a telephone call from an individual advising me
that the Quay Nightclub Facebook page contained a live-stream of a DJ event taking place in the premises, and this
person stated that within the live-stream persons were seen drinking alcohol in the premises. On this date, due to
the Coronavirus Regulations, restricted premises were not allowed to open for the consumption of food and drink
on the premises as we were in lockdown. | subsequently looked at the live-stream on Facebook and noted persons
going behind the bar and coming from that area with what appeared to be alcoholic drinks. As a result of this |
contacted the Duty Inspector at Torquay Police Station with a request that officers attend to establish what was
taking place.

On 14 june 2020 | received an email from PC Thomas informing me that he and anocther officer had visited the
premises as a result of my request. The front door of the premises was locked but they entered via a rear fire
escape. Within the building they found, Ms Garnet-Thomas, and several other people. Ms Garnet-Thomas stated
that they were live streaming entertainment to promote the premises, whilst having a few drinks with friends and
family.

On Friday 19 June 2020 myself, Sgt Curtis and Mr Martin met with Ms Garnet-Thomas and Mr Hamade at the
premises in relation to this matter and | made notes of this meeting, which are attached (Page 26).

On 8 July 2020 | received an email from Mr Hamade in which he stated that the ceiling had been certified and he
was checking that everything was in order to allow the premises to do a live-stream on the Saturday night. Mr
Martin responded to this email requesting that Mr Hamade forward him the certificate once he had received it and
advising him to ensure that he complies with the Covid-19 guidance.

Later that day Mr Hamade again emailed me asking if there was anything further that | required, and | responded
reiterating that he should comply with the coronavirus restrictions and guidance, and reminding him that licensable
activities could not take place due to the change of layout of the premises from the approved plan. A copy of that
email correspondence is attached (Pages 27 — 29).

On Monday 13 July 2020 | found that Mr Hamade had emailed me on Saturday 11 July 2020 asking for my position in
relation to him and his friends drinking in the premises on Saturday night, indicating that he thought it wouldn’tbe a
problem providing alcohol was not sold. | subsequently responded to this email, advising him that the coronavirus
regulations in force at that time only allowed one household to meet indoors but the rule of 6 applied outdoors, and
| advised him to read the guidance on gov.uk and refresh his memory on the restrictions. A copy of this emaii is

attached (Page 30). Page 50



On 28 August 2020 | received information that Mr Hamade was due to hold an 18" birthday party for his son at the
premises during the evening of Saturday 29 August 2020. | passed this information to the Sector Inspector for
Torquay, with a request that officers attend on that night and report their findings to me. At that time the
Coronavirus Regulations allowed certain licensed premises to provide food and alcohol for consumption within a
Covid secure premises, providing that all persons were seated and served by waiter/waitress service with the rule of
6 applicable indoors but nightclubs were not permitted to open.

I subsequently received an email from Sgt Davies who attended the premises on 29 August 2020. He found that Mr
Hamade was inside but no party was taking place. Sgt Davies’ email stated that there were no Covid measures in
place at the premises such as signage, hand sanitiser, direction arrows, one way systems etc. | discussed this matter
with Mr Martin and he informed me that he had visited the premises during the afternoon of Friday 28 August and
did not witness any Covid measures in place.

On the evening of Sunday 30 August 2020 myself, Mr Martin, Mr O'Shea {former Principal Licensing Officer of
Torbay Council) and Councillor Darling were visiting premises on Torquay Harbourside when we spoke to a person
who toid us that the Quay Nightclub had been open on Friday 28 August 2020, that loud music could clearly be
heard coming from the premises and this could be felt vibrating through the walls. This person stated they had
checked their CCTV system which showed persons leaving the Quay Nightclub at 3.00 am on the morning of
Saturday 29 August 2020.

On 19 February 2021 | was advised by Mr Martin that he and another member of staff from Torbay Councii had
““attended the Quay Nightclub on Saturday 13 February 2021, where they witnessed Mr Hamade and several other
males in the immediate vicinity of the premises. At that time the Coronavirus Regulations required that all
restricted businesses {including nightclubs) must close and remain closed for the consumption of food and drink on
the premises. Mr Martin was therefore concerned that the premises may have been used for the consumption of
food and drink. As a result of receiving this information | requested that officers monitor the premises over the next
weekend.

On Sunday 21 February 2021 | received an email from Sgt Davies indicating that he had visited the premises on both
Friday 19 and Saturday 20 February 2021, and he stated that he could see lights on within the building but on
knocking on the door no one answered.

On Wednesday 24 February 2021 Mr Martin sent an email to Ms Garnet-Thomas and Mr Hamade concerning the
above information and Ms Garnet-Thomas subsequently responded to this email. Mr Martin also had a discussion
with Mr-Hamade concerning this matter and he then sent a further email to Mr Hamade and Ms Garnet-Thomas, a
copy of which is attached (Pages 31 —33). As a result of Mr Martin’s investigation into this, | believe that CCTV was
in place at the time of his and Sgt Davies’ visits, but | am not aware of the outcome of these enquiries, although Mr
Martin may be able to update you.

The Application

F have considered the application in conjunction with the Torbay Council Licensing Statement of Principles 2021 -
2026 and am of the opinion that, whilst appearing comprehensive, it is lacking in sufficient measures to promote the
licensing objectives the prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of public nuisance as recommended within
your policy.

| will now highlight some of the concerns identified in respect of the proposed operating schedule but | will expand
on this at the hearing:

1. The CCTV condition does not specify that the guality of the images will be of an evidential standard and
capable of providing facial recognition in all lighting conditions, whether there will always be at least one
member of staff on duty who will be able to use the system, whether the system will be continually

Page 51



monitored by staff during key periods, whether they will have adequate USB’s af the premises to provide
downloaded footage and that footage will be provided to the police within an appropriate time period, i.e.
24 hrs.

2. Staff training will be carried out on site by management by a ‘train to train’ initiative. What does this mean?

3. The conditions in relation to drugs indicate that the police will be informed if anyone is found in possession
of controfled substances which is not satisfactory due to the demand this will place on the police. The police
usually only wish to be informed if drugs are found in such quantities that it is suspected that the individual
may be dealing in drugs. The drug conditions also state that a lockable receptable will be present at the
premises, but the police recommend the purchase of an approved drugs safe with a key being held by the
police to ensure all contents are probably collected and destroyed.

4. Searches will only be carried out by persons of the same sex. The availability of female door supervisors is
significantly less than male supervisors. What measures will be in place should a female supervisor not be
available?

5. Door supervisors — Whiist the application makes several references 1o door supervisors there is no mention
of any risk assessments to determine the numbers reguired.

6. The application states that toughened/polycarbonate glass will be used and there will be a risk assessment
of the need for plastic containers for specific events. it furthers states that there will be regular clearance of
all bottles, glasses and mugs from various parts of the premises. The police do not consider that the
proposed conditions are adequate to prevent incidents involving glasses/bottles.

7. The applicants have stated that they will operate a dedicated pick up area for their customers which will be
manned by a door supervisor. Whilst this appears to be a good idea, | am concerned that this is not a role
that the premises should be responsible for. Where will the pick up point be located? Has authority been

- givern by the appropriate department of Torbay Council to use a dedicated area? Are there implications for
other road users? What are the insurance implications? Taxi Marshals have been used in Torbay in the past,
but it is an expensive initiative and there have been issues with security companies not being able to supply
supervisors to undertake this role. As the proposed condition does not state the time period that this will
facility will be in place, if the licence is granted, the condition will be applicable throughout the time the
premises are open, again demonstrating that the applicants have not fully considered the impact of this
proposal.

in respect of the plan of the premises, you wiil note that there are no kitchen facilities and it therefore appears that
the premises will not be providing food, again confirming that this will be a vertical drinking establishment falling
within your Cumulative impact Policy. You wili also note that the applicants intend for licensable activities to take
place within an area marked ‘cellar’. 1 would be gratefu! if the applicants could clarify their intentions in respect of
this area.

Conclusion

Ms Garnet-Thomas has indicated that she does not intend to be at the premises at key trading times, but will
monitor the premises from her home, and Mr Hamade has stated that he wili not be responsible for the day to day
management of the premises. They will therefore be heavily reiiant on their DPS to manage the premises. At the
current time Ms Garnet-Thomas is the DPS, but | have been advised that a Vary DPS application will be submitted in
due course.

There have been severai occasions when the premises have been used by the applicants to socialise with the
builders, and entertain friends and family when there was no ceiling safety certificate and the premises have been in
a poor state of repair or subject of building work/refurbishment thus potentially putting those individuals at risk of
harm. The premises have also been used in breach of the Coronavirus regulations and guidance, which the
applicants had little understanding of, which raises concerns regarding the applicant’s future compliance with
legislation and conditions imposed an the licence, if granted.

in respect of the planning consent for this premises, this was changed in 2014 from a nightclub to an amateur boxing
venue/gym. Mr Martin has raised this matter with thpaagiéarg?)n several occasions and on 9 January 2020 we



were advised that this matter had been addressed. However, a check on the Torbay Council website on 11 May 2021
shows that no such application has been made by the applicants. This raises concerns regarding the accuracy of
information provided by Ms Garnet-Thomas and Mr Hamade.

My experience with the applicants over almost 2 years has shown that from the outset they have had no clear
business plan in respect of the management of the business, other than the premises being used as a

nightclub. They have been heavily reliant on myself and Mr Martin to provide advice and guidance, with Mr
Hamade indicating that he thought | would supply him with a list of matters to deal with. However it is apparent
that when advice has been provided they have not taken heed of it. For example, despite repeatedly being advised
from the outset that it is unlikely the police or Mr Martin would support their application due to the impact the
premises will have on crime, disorder and public nuisance within the CIA, they have continued to carry out work
within the premises with no application being submitted. The obtaining of a suitable premises licence or provisional
statement to allow the premises to operate as a nightclub should have been the applicants’ priority before they
commenced any work at the premises. This demonstrates their tack of problem solving skills, as they were informed
of a major obstacle to their business plans but failed to take steps to address this issue at the earliest opportunity
and it therefore raises concerns in respect of how they will deal with problems in the future.

In respect of the applicants, due to the issues and concerns experienced to date, which have taken place whilst the
premises have not even been open for business, the police have serious concerns in respect of the applicants’
management of the premises, if this application is granted, as they will be responsible for a high risk late night
premises.

itis also apparént from my discassions with the applicants that they have struggled to finance the refurbishment of
the premises, including key items such as CCTV and sound equipment. This causes concern as to whether they will
have sufficient funds available to sustain the business in the future, particularly as other operators have failed to run
a viable business at this premises. My experience of this in the past has shown that corner cutting tends to take
place, particularly in relation to the provision of door supervisors, and operators who are desperate for trade tend
to lower their standards in order to attract more customers, which has a detrimental impact on the licensing
objectives,

In respect of the application, although appearing comprehensive, it does not adequately deal with the matters
identified in your policy and falls short of the standard expected by the police in respect of a high-risk vertical
drinking establishment within the CIA. In respect of a nightclub premises crime and disorder is inevitable despite
the number or content of conditions included on the licence, although it is difficult to predict what the level of crime
or disorder will be.

To summarise, the likelihood of crime and disorder at the premises is high, the application does not contain
satisfactory measures to promote the licensing objectives and the police have no confidence in the applicants’
ability to manage this premises in a manner which will support the licensing objectives. The police therefore object
to the granting of this application and recommend that the application is refused.

I would take this opportunity to remind you that Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places a
responsibility of the local authority to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder, including anti-
social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local environment.

if t can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Kind regards

Julie Smart
Alcohol Licensing — Torbay and South Hams

Julie sman @ devonandeormwall.onn.police uk
07921 933974

Page 53



How to cantact the police — ChckBaUCal
Includes: onling crirme reporting, 101 email, help from other oreanisations, community messaging, British
Sign Languags videos, third party reporting, Polics Enouiry Offices

In an emergency always call 999

R R Rt R R R g L L g R o S S A L T R g PR g s Ty wpay

This e-mail is intended for the named recipient(s) only and may contain privileged informatiorn, which is protected in
law. if you have received this e-mail in error, please contact the sender o advise them and delete this e-mail.
Unauthorised use, disclosure, copying or distribution is prohibited.

AR ARk kA kA E R AR E AR AT AR TR AR NN Rk AW hd b drdk e R R kA s v o e e e

E-mail should not be regarded as a secure means of communication, we take all reasonable steps to ensure that e-
mails are protected from malware, but cannot accept liability for any loss or damage, howsoever arising, as a result of
their ransmission to the recipients’ computer or network.

LRAEL IS AR SR Rt L s R L L L R R T L g R T g R A TR

For more information, or to contact us, please visit us at www devon-comwalloolice uk or www dorse! oolica.uk or e-

mait 131 @devonandcornwall prrunalice. uk or 107 Sdorset.nnn.oolice uk

Page 54



Page 55



Tz/v0/0€ paiepdn uawnaog

00Z0 | DEE0 | OSE0 | 0070 | OEEO| 00Z0 | OFED puUBiIS 841 9T-GT 'S91EA TE
00Z0 | 00ZO | 00ZO | OQOTO ! OOTO |, OQTO| 0010 opeied ueliEnen 0g
0£20 | 0£Z0 | 08Z0 | OEE0 . OET0 | OEI0 | OQ€I0 62
0£Z0 | OEZ0 | 0fe0 | O0EZ0 | OETO | 0QfC0| 070 8z
p0sa | 00S0 | 00SO | 00SO | 0050 | 00s0 | 00S0 1T
Q£Z0 | OEZ0 | OFZ0 | OFcO | OEED | 0€L0| OO 9¢
DEZO | OEZ0 | OfZ0 | OFZO | OET0| OfL0 | O€T0 apeied UBUBNEA 7 ZelyS 57
0DE00 | OS00 | OE00 | OECO | OS00 [ 0%00{ OF00 apeled BUOIIIA §7 '5|{8UU0Q,0 SNWesS 4
SIS0 | STE0 ¢ STEQ | GTE0 | STED | SIED | STE0 9pEBJE BLIOIIA £ Haddad pue Jjes £z
0F00 | OTED | OEE0 | Q€TO | OETO| OF0D | OfF00 188415 123]4 SUBpJeD JBJUIM Uonnjonsy 4
O0cz | 0£z0 | OgeC | OBC0 | O£EZ | OEEZ | OEEC 188415 UBMS Ti7-0F [U3PJeD o0y 4
0000 | Q00O | 0000 | 000G | GOGO | GOGO | QOO0 apeieg ueysneA T ‘0zzaid 0z
0£Z0 | OEZ0 | 020 | OFECO | OEZ0 | 0FZ0 | 0LCo 18315 POOMIOL £ BE1ISad 6T
OEE0 | OOY0 | OEE0 | OFEE0 | OEE0 | OEE0 !  OQfE0 188415 POOMIOIIT ‘BUBT HIed 3T
0E00 | OEQQ | OO0 | O£00 | O£00 | Q€00 O£00 apesed UBYEneA €T ‘168 9J8) 2UOYSHO iT
OE00 | OE00 | OE00 | O€00 | QE00 | OE00 | 0£00 apeJed ELOPIA ¥I-vT 5,nN1 9t
Of£7 | OFEZ | OSEZ | OLEC  DEEe | OLEL | OFgT 3pEiEd BUOIMA £7 ‘9SNOYIYET] ST
OEE0 | OEE0 | OEED | OFELO | OSE0| OEL0 | OQEL0 189415 1994 T UBUIg pueed:s.af I
0£00 | OE00 | OE00 | O€EN0 | QSO0 | O0EOO | OO0 Aenp suaeanp ¢ ‘1egd 93] SYoe[ €T
0E00 | DE0O | 0500 | OF00 | QSO0 | OE00 | Q00 auetled 9 ‘lBA BY3 uj 810H 71
OSE0 | OEEO | DEE0 | OFL0 | OEE0 | OSEQ | OgL0 ABM 128[1 'SUBPLED JaIUIM 9BuUiD UsRiD T
OSE0 | OSE0 | OEE0 | O0€E0 | 0EE0 | O0EEQ | OFEE0 3199415 POOMIOL OTAIpUNOY 0T
0E00 | OE00 | 0E00 | OL00 | OL00 | Q€00 | 000 apeJBd BLIOIDIA 5T ‘MOD 1ed 6
0000 | OE00 | OE0D | O€00 | OEOO | 000 | 000 sueY jaeg OT-8 Sy uoAsd 8
0010 ¢ 0020 | 00ZO 00TO0 | 00TO 00To 0010 138415 POOMID L £7 18MO1 H20|D 4
OETO | OEE0 | OEE0 | OQEE0 | QEED | OEI0| O€I0 SpRIEd BMOIJIA 6T-8T MEgQRUUID 9
OEO00 | OEOD | OECO | OQFCO | OE00 | OO0 | 000 1S9/ PECY |[iH SUOPpRIY §-§ ‘ssaid JepiD g
0E00 | OFT0 | OETO| OE00: OE00| O0E00 . Q00 13841513814 8-9 xueg ¥
OEE0 | OEE0 | OSEQ0 | OEED | OEE0 | OF£E0 | OEL0 3pelEd BLOIIA 87 5,08 BUI 01 )2ET 5
0EE0 | OEE0 | OEE0 | OFECO | OEE0 | OEE0 | OFEQ 1931$ POOMIOLTOT 'SBPEIRA R Y T
00€E0 | OOED | O0SO | OOE0 | 000! QOQED | O0E0 pUBIS 9YL 7T 04ieg pue ajddy T
NNS | LvS| [¥4 | SHNHL | @am | 53Nl NOW

LOOHIIM (ANF 1S 13374/3AISUNOSUVH) VANV LOVAWI FALLVINND AVAOHOL JHL NI SISINHYd TISNADIT YOI SHNLL DNISOIO

Page 56



YIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOHA 143H1L 00'TO 9661/90/5T 6S1ET 966T/90/7T | 96/5T9ER0/HD o€
AL 0 NOLLNDAXI NI ITEVISNOD V 151534 / I2NY1ISH0 SZ:00 966T/50/97 ST00 966T/50/92 |  96/ZEHERG/YD 67
ONIANIA AG 14IHL ONIGMTINI - HIHLO - 143HL 00°TO 5661/S0/2T 0€7Z 966T/50/TT | 96/096280/4D 8z
AINIINFHLM WHYH ATIQ09:SNOA3IND - 8T NOILD3S Z1:00 9661/5G/v0 0€€7 966T/G0/E0 | 96/919280/4D Jid
ANIINIHLM WHVH AT1Q08 SNOA3ND - 8T NOILD3S TO00 966T/10/82 0E:€7 966T/V0/LT 1 96/9¥5280/4D 9z
WHVH AHA0E TYNLIY WIHL ONINOISYIIO AGIYIHL NOSYAd V¥ LTNVSSY 02:€¢ 9661/v0/LT ST'€7 966T/P0/LT 1  96/7S0E80/HD 14
WYYH ATIA0E TYNLDY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AIHIHE NOSHAd ¥ LINVSSY SETT 966T/P0/L2 | 96/LTYTRO/HD v
WHVH ATI0E TYNLOV WIHL SNINOISYIIO AGTHAHL NOSYId V L1AVSSY S:00 9661/70/1T DE£:00- 966T/¥0/TC | 96/S6T280/4D 4
&0/1/5%

YLV 350 - NISTH SIYNNYD - 8 SSYT10 40 9NYHA AITIONINDD ¥ 5535504 05€T 966T/V0/ET SEET 966T/FO/ET | 96/LT0T80/UD Tt
WYYH ATIA0E TVALDY WIHL ONINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSYId v L1NYSSY ST'EZ 966T/Y0/ET DTIET 966T/PO/ET |  96/0T0Z80/YD ¥4
ONIGNIH A8 14THL DNIGNTINE - ¥IHLO - 143HL ST:00 966T/70/90 1000 9661/¥0/90 | 96/86LT80/4D 0z
WHVYH ATIAOE TYNLIV WIHL ONINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSHAd ¥ LINYSSY 0S'€7 966T/£0/67 | 96/929180/4D 6T
WHYH ATIGOE 1VNIDV IWIHL SNINCISVII0 AG3HIHL NOSYId vV LINVSSY 02:€2 966T/€0/ST 00:€Z 966T/E0/ST | 96/2.T180/dD 81
WHYH ATIC0E 1YN.LOV WIHL DNINOISYIIO AYIHIHL NOSHId ¥V 1INVSSY 02:€7 9661T/€0/5T DOEZ 966T/E0/ST | 96/£/T7T80/HD LT
ONIGNIZ A8 L4THL ONIGNTIN] - ¥3H10 - 143HL ST:00 9661/£0/F1 SHET 966T/S0/ST | 96/6LET80/4D 91
ANIENIHLIM WYYH ATIQ0E SNOATIND - BT NOILD3S St:00 966T/€0/60 0€:00:-966T/€0/60 | 96/660T80/4D ST
INZLNI LNOHLIM WHYH AIQ0g SNOAINMD LNENE/ ONNOM 0T:00 966T/E0/20 | 96/£06080/4D YT
WHYH ATIT08 TYNLOV WIHL ONINOISYIDO A93YIHLE NOSHId ¥ LINYSSY SYIET UBBT/T0/YE | 96/0TL0B0/D £t
WHVH ATIAOE TYNLOY WIHL ONINOISYIIO AGIHIHLE NOSHId V L1NVSSY Ov:£Z 9661/20/tT O%:€2 966T/C0/¥T |  96/60/080/4D T
NHVH A1Q08 VALV IWIHL DONINOISYIDO ABTHIHL NOSHId V LINVSSY OF'€Z 966T/20/LT OE'€Z 966T/20/LT |  96/90S080/4D 1T
WYVH ATIG0E TYNLDV WIHL DNINOISYIDO AHIHIHL NOSHId ¥ 11NVSSY OFiET 966T/70/LT OE:ET 966T/20/LT |  96/Y0S080/4D oT
NMONYINN INTVA Y 40 ALYId0Yd IDVINYG / ACYLSIG 6E1ET 966T/20/10 DE'ET 966T/70/T0 |  96/990/80/4D 6

JINITOIN NOADYD OL /40 _
Y34 3SNVD OL INILNI HLIW NOILYLNISTHAIY JT9ISIA AVIdSIT / 3LNG141SIa 00D 9661/T0/T0 |  96/L9.930/4D 8
INHAVIIHAIAY - 9 S5V 40 9NYG GITIOUINOD ¥ 553550d Ov:00 966T/C0/T0 |  96/55/980/4D L
WHYH A11C03 TvNLOV WIHL DNINOISYID0 ABIHIMHL NOSHIAd V LINVYSSY £1:00 966T/20/10 G0'00 S66T/Z0/T0 | 96/226980/4D 9
WHVH ATIZOE TVNLOY INIHL ONINOISYII0 AG3HAHL NOSHId ¥ L1NVSSY £1:00 966T/20/T0 G000 966T/20/T0 |  96/vFi980/4D 5
WHVH ATIA0E TVNLOV INIHL ONINOISYIIO0 AIHIHL NOSYAd v LINVSSY €1:00 966T/20/10 S0:00-966T/20/10 1  96/T16980/4D ¥
LNFINI LNOHLUM INHYH ATIGOR SNOATIND LD14NI/ GNNOM 00:€2 9661/10/92 Stizz 9661/10/9C | 96/959580/4D 3
NHVH AHAOE TYNLOY NIHL ONINOISYIIO AGIHIHL NOSHAd ¥ LTNYSSY 02:00 9661/10/12 0Z:00 966T/T0/TC | 96//95¥80/4D z
WHVH ATAOE TYNLIY INIHL DNINOISYIIO AGIHIHL NOSYId ¥V 11NVYSSY 0110 966T/10/3T OTTO 965T/T0/8T |  9B/TTZERD/MD T

SIAIND 68 = B66T AVIN Ol 866T AUVNINVYI — AZLIM

1202 01 966T A3QUOI23Y STINIYMD ~ 3AVHYd VIHOIDIA 92

Page 57



NHYH ANAO0E 1I9NL0V WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSHId V LINVYSSY STT0 L66T/L0/ET T0:00 Z66T/L0/ET | L6/EES080/HD 79
EMIINI HLIM WYVH A11008 SNOAJNMD - 8T NOLLDIS GET0 L66T/L0/E0 STI0 LG6T/0/€0 |  £L6/7852080/¥D 9
ANZLNS HLIAN INHYH ATA08 SNOATND - 8T NOIID3IS 00:TO LB6T/L0/E0 0S:00 L661/£0/20 | £6/19Z080/4D 09
WHVH A1008 TVNLDV WIHL ONINOISYID0 A8IHIHL NOSHId V LINYSSY Sv:00 £G6T/S0/T0 |  L6/TL¥6L0/4D 65
IHYH ATIC09 TYNLOV INIHL DNINOISYID0 A83YIHL NGSHId V LINVSSY 0Z00 L66T/90/T0 OT:00 ZB6T/80/T0 | L6/T9P6L0/4D 25
AMVH ATIGOE TYNLOY WIHL DNINOISYID0 AGF3HL NOSHAd vV LINVSSY 10:00 £661/50/vC 0S'€Z LB6T/SO/ET | L6/9LT6L0/HD L5
ONIGNIE A8 143HL DNIGION] - 43HL0 - L43HL 00:T0 L66T/70/0T 0E:00 LB6T/YO/0T |  L6/STPBLO/YD 99
WHYH AT1009 TYNL0V WIHL DNINCISYIDIO AG3YIHL NOSEId ¥V LINVSSY 0T:00 L66T/VO/LT LE/0SERLO/UD g5
JONIFTOIA INOADYHd 0L/ 40
¥v34 ISNVYI OL INTLNI HLIM NOILVLINISIHATY J14ISIA AV1dSIA / 3LN8ILSIT S0:70 LB6T/E0/0E 05:00 ZB6L/E0/0E | £L6/EV8LL0/HD ¥9
IWHVYH ATHA0E VN1V INTHL ONINOISYII0 AGIHTHL NOSHAd ¥ LINVSSY 00:00 LB6T/E0/0E ST:00 LB6T/E0/0E | L6/6E8LL0/dD 34
NAONINA INTVA Y 40 ALYId0Ud IDVINYA / A0Y1S3d GSET /66T/E0/TT 0S:€7 /G66T/E0/TE | L6/TL8LL0/4D 75
NHVH ATIQ0E TVNIDY IWIHL DONINOISYID0 Ag3HIHL NOSHId ¥V 1INVSSY $5:I00 L66T/€0/0T 0E:00 LB6T/E0/0T | L6/v0SLL0/4D 18
IINTTOIA DICAOHd OL /40 _
HY34 35NV OL INILNI HUIM NOILYLNISIYdIE FT8ISIA AV1dSId / ILNEINLSIA 00:TO L66T/E0/60 | L6/B9ELLO/MD 0s
DNIANID AT 149HL ONIGNTONI - YIHL0 - 143HL 0£:00 L66T/T0/ET 1000 £661/20/52 |  £6/9%0LL0/49D 6t
INHVH ATIO0E TYNLDY IW3HL ONINOISYID0 ABIYIHL NOSHId V LINVSSY Gi°€T LG6T/C0/S0 |  L6/0LEVS0/HD 8f
WHVH ATG08 T¥YN1OV WIHL ONINOISYII0 A3HIHL NOSHd ¥ LINVSSY .00 L66T/T0/TT 0F:00 /66T/I0/TT | L6/8958L0/4D Ly
DNIAONH A8 L4IHL ONIAMIOND - ¥3HLO - L43HL ST:T0 £66T/10/10 0077 L66T/10/€0 | L6/60¥¥80/HD 9t
ONIANH A 143HL DNIGNTIONE - WAHLO - 143HL 0£:€7 966T/LT/VT 00:€Z 966T/CL/ve | 96/£6¥380/HD Sy
JTHHIA - NAMONINA IMIYA Y 30 ALHId0OYd 3DVINYA / AO¥LS3d ST:00 9661/TT/1T 1000 966T/7T/T¢ | 96/TBEBRD/UD 724
ONIONIH AS 143HL ONIGNTINI - 43HLO0 - L43HL 0E£:Z0 966T/TL/80 65°TT 966T/7I/L0 | 96/v60880/4D £f
T86T 1OV ONILIZJHILNAOD GNY AYIDU04 - NIOD
GIL03L0Yd V S0 LEJHILNNOD ¥ SYA LI DNIMONY DNIHL V¥ ANIINGD SV SSVd ST:E7 966T/TT/v0 002 966L/71/¥0 | 96/L86£80/4D 47
NHYH ATA09 TYNLDV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AS3HIHL NOSYId V- LINVSSY ” 0€:00 966T/0T/LZ |  96/¥T6980/HD Ty
ONIGNIH A8 L43HL ONIGNTON - ¥3HLO - L43HL 05:T0 9661/60/1¢ 0£:T0 9661/60/TC | 96/05S1980/4D or
39V 40
SYVIA 9T HIAO NYINOM NO LINVSSY INIDIAN! (#0/S/T 340438 I LLINWOD) 0E:00 9661/60/80 10:00 9661/60/80 1 96/€6L980/4D 6E
INILNI HLIM WHVYH ATIQ08 SNOAZIYD - 8T NOILDAS 00:TQ 9661/80/0T SH:00 966T/80/0T | 96/TITSB0/HD 8¢
WHYH ANA0E TVNIDY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AgIYIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVYSSY 00:£¢ 9661/80/€0 0E:ZC 966T/80/50 | 96/TL6¥80/4D LE
WHYH ATIA0E IVNLIV AIHL DNINDISYII0 AG3HIHL NOSHI4 ¥ L1NVYSSY §€:00 966T//0/0T 50:00-8661/20/0Z |  96/9tSY80/YD 9¢
IWHVH ATI008 TYNLOY WIHL ONINOISYID0 ABIHIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVSSY 0T'I0'9661//0/8T |  96/66¥¥80/4D g¢
ONIANID AG LA3HL ONIGNTONI - YIHLO - 149HL 0E:10 966T/L0/ET 0E:00 966T/L0/ET 96/.05H80/4D e
YINGI - ¥ SSY1D 20 9NYA Q3 TI0ULINOD V §53550d 500 966T/L0/L0 |  96/60Z80/4D €¢
YINGW - ¥ SSYTD 40 DNHA AATIOHINGD ¥ ATddNS G0:00 966T/90/€7 | 96/3SBERD/HD 43
L LINYSSY NOWWDD Ov:00 9661/90/2C 0£:00 966T/90/Z2 | 96/076580/4D TE

Page 58



_ 19V 40
SHYIA 9T H3A0 NYINOM NO LINYSSY INIDIANI (#0/S/T 340439 GILLHAINDD) ST:EZ 000Z/80/60 0€:2Z 000Z/30/60 | 00/F95920/4D g
WHVH ATIAOE TVNLDY INTHL ONINOISYID0 A93HIHL NOSYId V 11NVSSY 0g'Ze 000T/¥0/91 S¢'ZZ 000Z/¥0/9T |  00/00VELO/HD 3
INYYH AT1008 YN0V WIHL ONINOISYII0 Ag9IHIHL NOSHId ¥ L1NVYSSY GE:9T 000Z/€0/9¢ ST:EC 0007/€0/ST |  00/tvTELO/¥D ¥
ONIGNIZ A8 143HL ONIGNTIONE - HIHL0 - 143HL O0'ET 000C/20/LT 00'2Z O00Z/20/LT | 00/Z9STLO/HD €
ONIONIH AS 143HL ONIAQITIOND ~ IHLO - 14THL 0T:ZZ 0007/10/cE 0177 000T/TO/ET 00/£508£0/40 4
ONIGNI4 AE 143H1 ONIGNTION] - 43HI0 - 143HL TE:00 666T/CT/S0 0£:00 666T/ZT/50 | 66/996€80/4D T
_ STNIYD €61 = S00Z 1SNDNV OL 666T HIAGWIDIA — 99 3LNOY
NYYH ANGOE TYNLOY IWTHL ONINOISYIIO AGTHIHL NOSYHId v 11NVYSSY 00'T0 666T/20/1T 00:22 666T/20/0T | 66/6059£0/4D ¥T
ONIGNH A9 143HL ONIANTONI - H3HLO0 - 143HL O£:10 6661L/20/90 0£:00 6661/70/90 | 66/006€80/4D £T
 LINVSSY NOWIWOD ST'I0 6661/10/TE §5:00 666T/T0/TE | 66/ZTSZ80/4D 7T
 IINYSSY NOWWOD Sti00 666T/I0/€2 | 66/7ES080/4D 1T

NISTY SIGVNNYD
-~ € SSY1D 40 9NHA QATIOYLNOD ¥ A1ddNS OL INIINI HLIM S535504d GS'ET 666T/T0/T0 0S:£7 666T/I0/20 | 66/SP68L0/4D 0t

. 60/1/5T
3LV ISN - NISTH SIEHYNNYD - 9 S5Y10 40 DNHA gITIOULNOD ¥ 5535504 GSIET B66T/T0/C0 09°€7 666T/I0/20 | 66/VE8BLO/YD 6
ONIANIZ A8 143HL ONITATONE - ¥3HLO - 143HL G0'T0 666T/I0/10 00:€7 866T/ZL/IE | 66/8/2780/4D 8
ONIONI AS L43HL ONIGNTIDNE - ¥3HL0 ~ 143HL 00:TO 866T/ZT/ET StiE7 866T/TZT/CT | 86/T6LSBO/UD L

60/1/5¢
4314V 35N - NISTY SIEYNNYD - § SSY1D 40 SNHA AITIOULINOD ¥ 5535504 65:€7 866T/ZT/S0 | 86/vL6¥80/4D g
ONIAGNH A8 L43HL ONIONTONG - ¥3HLO - 143HL 0£:9T 866T/IT/0F DE:0T 866T/IT/0E | 86/5T0580/4D g

ONITIIMG
LON DNIGTNG - NAAONANN 3NTVA Y 40 ALY3d0OUd A9YNVA / ADYLSI] : LT:00 866T/TT/87 | 86/¥8/¥80/¥D t
ONIANI AS L43HL ONIAMIONE - ¥9HL0 - 143HL 0£:T0 866T/0T/ST GT'T0 866T/0T/ST | 86/558EB0/Y¥D 3
ONIAONI AS 143HL ONIGNIDNL - ¥3HLO ~ 1H3HL 0€:TO 866T/0T/5¢ 6T:I0 866L/0T/SZ |  86/¥S8E80/YD T
ONIANH Ag L43IHL DNIGNTINI - ¥3H10 - 143H1 0£:00 8661/80/0¢8 00:£C 2661/80/62 | 86/08TTRO/YD T
” STINYD ¥ = 666T AHVYNYGId OL 866T LSNDNV — O HvE
WHYH ATIIOE TYNIIV WIHL DNINOISYII0 AGIYIHL NOSHId ¥ LTINVYSSY 05:00 866T/90/70 0£:00 8661/50/70 | 86/6088L0/4D 69
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHL INOYH4 143HL S0'T0 866T/¥0/6T 00'I0 8661/¥0/6T | 86/00SRLO/YD 89
ONIANI A8 £43HL ONIQMTINI - ¥3HLO - 143H1 SPE0 866T/E0/80 | 86/1952L0/4D L9
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHE WOHS 143HL DE'CT BE6T/E0/L0 00:77 866T/E0/L0 | 86/0£SLL0/4D 99
INFLNI INOHLIM WHYH AHO0Y SNOATIYS 1IN / ONNOM 0E:00 £66T/TI/T0 S0:00. L6BT/TT/T0 | £6/¥SOES0/HD 59
WHYH A11Q08 TVNLOV WIHL DNINOISYIZ0 AGIHIHL NOSYHId ¥ LINVSSY ST:00 L66T/60/L0 ST:00 [66T/60/L0 | £6/788180/4D #9
WHVYH AC09 TYNIDV INFHL SNINOISYII0 A93HIHL NOSHId ¥ LHNVSSY 0£:€7 Z66T/80/90 ST'E? L66T/80/90 | £6/0TSTRO/HD €9

Page 59



ONIANIH AS LJ3HL DNICMIING - ¥3HLO - 143HE 00:T0 700T/60/92 00T Z00Z/60/Sc | <CO/PESYEO/ YD oF
WUVH A11G0% TVN10Y WIHL ONINQISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSH3d V LINVSSY 007 TOOZ/60/ST S9'TZ 200Z/60/ST | Z0/TETVRO/HD 6E
WHVH ATIG0% TYNIOV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYHEd V LINYSSY 0€:Z¢ 700Z/60/80 G177 700Z/60/80 | ZO/TTOVE0/HD 8t
ONIaNId A8 L43HL ONIGNTION] - Y3HLO - 143HL 00:zZ TOOT/60/T0 05Tz T00Z/60/10 7 ¢0/96LEG0/HD LE
ONIANIH AZ 133HE DNIQMTINE - YIHLO - 143HL STz T00T/80/vT 0017 200Z/80/vZ | TO/YDSE60/HD 9f

ONITTEMA
LON ONIGTINE - NAONINA INTVA V 40 AL¥3d0Yd I9VNVA / AOHL53C QETO Z007/80/61 Gt:TZ TOOT/80/8T | TO/98YEE0/YD qg
ONIONID AHE 143HL ONIGMIONT - YIHED - 43HL 0010 200Z/80/81 65:€7 7007/80/LT | 7O/TBTEBD/HD PE
NUYH A0 TYALDY WIHL DNINOISYID0 AG3YIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVYSSY 95:€7 200Z/80/0T 09:€Z Z00Z/80/0T | ZO/LEOEGO/HD €€
ONIANE AB 143HL DONIANTONI - YIHLO - 143HL 00:00 z00Z/86/0T Goieg z007/80/60 |  7O/BTOEBO/MD 43
NYMYH ATIa08 VALY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSHId V LINVSSY GE:00 200Z/L0/L0 0£:00 ZOOZ/LO/L0 | TO/ESLTE0/HD TE
YIHLONY 40 NOSYId FHL INOYL 143HL 00:TO 200T/80/9T 6S:€7 ¢00Z/90/ST | TO/EKOTH0/HD 0t
YIHLONY 40 NOSHAd IHL WOHA 143HL 65-€7 Z00Z/90/10 0E:€Z Z00Z/90/T0 | TO/TLLOBD YD 62
WHYH ATIG0E TYNLOY NTHE DNINOISYIO0 AgIHIHL NOSYH3d V LINVYSSY $T:E7 200Z/S0/ZC 0777 200Z/s0/Zz | TO/TLEQGO/YD 8T
- IINYSSY NOWWOD YEET Z00T/50/7¢ 00:ZF Z00T/S0/TT | TO/OLEDEO/ YD 1T
ONIANID AG LIIHEL ONIGOTIN - YIHLO - L43H) 0G°€0 Z00T/50/60 0500 200Z/50/60 | Z0/T¥6680/4D 9%
ONIAONIH A8 1I3HL ONIGNTINI - ¥3HLO0 - [43HL 00:T0 TO0Z/50/50 T0:00 ZOUZ/S0/S0 |  Z0/ST6680/dD ¥4
INHYH ATIGOT TYNLIOY INTHL ONINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVYSSY GOTe Z00Z/¥0/8T §5:07 200T/¥0/82 |  TO/¥¢9680/4D ve
HIHLONY 30 NOSHId IHL WOHL L43HL pE:ZT 00T/ /Y0/E0 00°7Z Z00TZ/b0/c0 | Z0/0SL880/4D €T
ONIGNI A8 143HL ONIQNIINT - YIHLO - 143HL 00:10 Z00ET/v0 /0 00'€0 ZOOZ/¥D/E0 | T0/294880/4D 7z
C 1INYSSY NOWINOD 5700 2007/€0/0T 0£:00 ZOOZ/E0/0T |  ZO/SET8BO/HD Tz
YIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL NOYS LI3HL 00:TO TOOZ/T0/TT 5500 200Z/20/Te | €0/959480/4D 0z
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHL INOHL 143HL 00:TO 100Z/90/ET 0£:00 TO0Z/50/€C | TO/89ZELO/HD 6T
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOHY L43HL BSIET TO0Z/S0/9T 00:ZZ 100Z/80/9T | TO/0SEZL0/MD et
1INVSSY NOWINOD 0E:07 T00Z/P0/62 62:07 100Z/v0/6¢ | 10/996TL0/HD LT
ONIGNIS A L43H L DNIGNTIN| - YIHLO - L43HE 0E:E7 T00Z/€0/0E 0t 7¢ 100Z/E0/08 |  TO/6LTTLO/YD g1
YIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHL INOY- 143HE DETT TONT/e0/sT 0E:TZ TO0Z/E0/s¢ | TO/8TOTLO/HO 51
INHYH ATIQ09 YN0V WIHL ONINOISYID0 A83HIHL NOSY3d v LINVSSY S¥:00 TO0Z/E0/5C 0€:00 TO0Z/E0/s |  TO/¥00TLO/ YD ¥
ONIANId AG L43HL DNIANTINL - ¥3HLO - L43HL 0E:00 TO0Z/I0/81T 00:Ze TO0T/T0/4T | TO/YSYELO/ YD £

: DNITEMA
LON DNIGHNE - NMONINN 3NTVA ¥ 40 ALHIE0Ud 3OVIANVE / AQ¥LSI] 96:10 000Z/TT/91 70°T0 DOOZ/TT/9T |  O0/F006L0/¥D T
HIHLONY 40 NOSHZd SHL INOY: 143HL 0T:T0 000Z/60/0T 00'T0 000Z/60/0T | 00/9LELLO/HD 1T
ONIANIE A L43HL ONITNIONL - ¥3HLO0 - 143HL 0£:ZT 000Z/60/€0 Sp:1Z 0002/60/€0 | 00/6TZLL0/4D ot
ONIANIH AG L43HL ONIGNTONI - Y3HLO - L43HL 0€:ZT 000Z/60/€0 GviTZ 000Z/60/€0 |  00/T2TLL0/4D 6
1INVYSSY NOWIWOD FTIEZ 0002/80/60 00'€Z 000Z/80/60 | 00/LZG9L0/4D g
LINVYSSY NOWINDD ST:E? 0007/80/60 00'€7 000Z/80/60 | OO/8T6LL0/HD L

Page 60



- 1INVSSY NOWWOD D00 YOOZ/E0/LE DU6T YOOZ/Z0/iT 1 ¥O/B6V960/4D 7L
_ $53Y1S1a
HO WEYTY LNIINSSYHYH ISNVD OL YNOIAVHIE / SGYOM ONINILYAYHL 35N TIT0 y002/20/91 00°TO $00Z/70/FT 1 ¥0/856560/4D 1L
_ $534151d _
HO WHYTY INJNSSYHYH 3SNYD OL UMOIAYHIE / SGYOM DNINILYIYHL 35N ZTT0 +00Z/Z0/VT D010 YOOe/To/vl Y0/656560/4D 0L
ONIANI A9 153HL ONIQMIONT - Y3HLO0 - 143HL ST:T0 ¥002/20/L0 0£:00 ¥00T/C0/L0 T vO/ELTSB0/4D 69
HIHLONY 40 NOSYHId IHL INOHS 143HL 00°TZ ¥00T/T0/81 00:0¢ v007/T0/8T | ¥0/vZTO0T/ YD 89
ONIANIE AS LZTHL SNIGNTONI - Y3HL0 -~ 143H1 0T:20 +00Z/10/10 00:20 v00Z/T0/I0 | v0//6E20T/ 4D &}
WHYH ATIG0Y YN0V IWIHL ONINOISYII0 AG3HIHL NOSHId ¥ L1NVSSY 0T:TZ £00Z/TI/6T 05°0¢ E00T/CE/6T | €0/T0LE60/YD 99
- 1INVSSY NCIWINGD SETT £00Z/TT/9T QF:27 £00¢/TT/9T |  ED/ETES860/UD g9
NAMONXNN IIVA V 40 ALHId0OYd IDYINYT / A0Y1SId Q€TI0 £007/TT/9T ST TO €00%/TT/9T 1 £0/159860/4D 9
ONIAONI Ag 143HL ONIGNTON| - HIHLO0 - 143HL ST:T0 £00Z/T1/60 0€:7Z £00T/TT/80 | €0/6v1860/4D €9
DONIANIH A8 L43HL DNIGRIONT - H3HL0 - Ld9HL §SI€T £007/0T/0T 00'€Z €007/0T/0T £0/028L60/4D 79
ONIANI AS 193HLE ONIGNTONT - Y3HLO0 - 143HL 00:TT £00Z/0T/S0 S TZ €007/0T/SO | £0/TBEL60/HD 19
YIHLONY 40 NOSYH3d HL NOYS 143HL 00°€7 £00Z/60/LT 00:6T £00¢/60/12 | E0/TETLE0/UD 09
WHVH AHQ08 YNV INIHL ONINOISYID0 AGFHIHL NOSY3d ¥ LINVSSY 0eize £00z/80/9t 00:ZZ £002/60/9¢ | E€0/9TTLE0/4D 6%
L THNVSSY NOWINOD ST I7 £00Z/60/9T ST TZ €007/60/97 | £0/880L60/4D 85
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL NOHS 143HL 0S:TIC £00Z/60/T 0£:TZ £007/60/vT | £0/008960/4D /5
3V 119Nd W NI ATHIAHOSIE ONY AINMYA DE00 £00Z/60/%T 62:00 £00Z/60/VT 1 £0/959960/¥D 95
HIHLIONY 40 NOSHId JHL WOYd 143HL Q€TI0 £002/60/TT 0€:77 £007/60/0T | €0/L£9960/4D G5
WHYH A1G09 TYNIDV IWIHL DNINOISYII0 AGIYIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVSSY 0110 £007/60/L0 00-TO €00Z/60/40 |  £0/765960/4D ¥5
ONIANIZ AH 143HL ONIGNIONT - Y3HL0 - 143HL 00°TT £00T/80/1€ 0£:TZ £00T/80/1E | E0/6/7960/4D €5
ONIGNIS AS LJ3HL DNIGNIIN] - HAHLO - LT L BEIZZ £00Z/80/%7 QETZ €007/30/¥C | £0/SP0960/4d 75
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHL WOYHS 143HL 00:1Z £00Z/80/v% 0€:07 £00Z/80/v7 | £0/000960/4D 18
60/1/5¢
Y314V 35N - NISTYH SIGVNNYD - 8 5SY12 40 DNYJ 3TT08LNOD V S53550d LETTT £002/80/LT L0°TZ €00Z/80/41 | €0/ETRSE0/YD 0s
ONIGNIH AG 143HL ONIGNTON - YIHL0 - 193HL DOT0 €00Z/S0/0¢€ DE:00 E00T/SO/0E 1 E0/OBTEGD/YD 6Y
ONIGNIH A9 143HL DNIGATON - YIHL0 - 143HL 0g'TT £00T/50/8T 00:27 £00Z/S0/8T 1 E0/8L8760/4D gt
INYYH ATIA0T TYN1OV WML ONINOISYII0 AG3HIHL NOSHId V. L1NVSSY St:00 £00T/20/20 0500 £00Z/70/T0 T £0/LbTL60/4D Ly
ONIONIE A9 L43HL ONIGATONT - YIHL0 - 143HL 0710 £007/10/0¢ 00:'TO £00Z/10/0E 1  £0/855960/4D 9ir
ONICNIE AE 143HL ONIQIONE - YIHIO0 - 14HL 0030 Z00Z/ZT/Te Q£€T T00T/TT/IT 1 70/866960/4D 3
: ONITTEMA
LON DNIGTING - NMONNNN 3NTVA Y 40 ALY3d0Yd IOVINYG / AOYLS3A G0:ZT TOOZ/ZT/ST 00:ZZ TOOT/TE/ST |  TO/ET8960/4D a4
INYVH ATIQ08 TYNLIV WIHL ONINOGISYII0 A93YIHL NOSYId ¥ 1INYSsY 0S:€2 Z00Z/1T/80 O €7 TODT/TT/80 1 ZO/TEBSE0/4UD £F
ONIONI A8 143HL ONIGOTONT - H3HLO - 143H1. ST:00 Z00T/TT/T0 6S:E7 TOOZ/OL/1€ | TO/TLSS60/4D A%
STIEC TO0T/0L/8T QL2 ¢00Z/0T/8T | 20/T6IS60/4D Tt

WHVH ATIA0E VNIV W3HL ONINOISYI30 ABIHIHL NOSHId ¥ 11NVSSY

Page 61



INUVH ATIA0E TYNLOY WIHL ONINOISYII0 AG3HIHL NOSH3d V LTNVSSY Sy 1T YO0T/TL/59T 0€: Tz ¥00Z/1T/97 | ¥0/650%60/43 1 vOT
WHYH ATIG0E VN1V WIHL DONINOISYID0 AG3¥IHL NOSHId V LINVSSY StiTz t00Z/11/5¢ OETz vOOZ/TT/9r ¢  PO/0LOSE0/MD | EOT
WHVH ATIA0E VALY INFHL ONINOISYIDO0 Ag3uIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVSSY 0g:0¢ v00Z/11/9T 00:07 $00T/TT/92 | vO/EI0S60/4D | TOT
NEYH AIG08 VALY WIHL ONINOISYII0 AGIYIHL NOSYHId V LINVSSY 00:ZZ v00Z/TI/9¢ 00°6T Y00Z/TI/9¢ | ¥0/0L8960/4D | TOT
WHYH ATI004 TYNLOV IWIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSYId V L1INVSSY 0E 10 YO0Z/11/1e 0E:00 YOOZ/IT/TZ | vO/OvSY6e0/4d 1 00T
ONIGNI AG 143HL ONIQNTONE - ¥3HLO - 1H43HL SHiEz +00T/TT/90 0E€7 vOOZ/IT/90 | v0/8Y¥SOT/HD 66
INUYH ATIAOE 1YNIOY WIHL DNINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYHId vV LINVYSSY 0€:Z7T 00Z/0T/1E cz:ze v00Z/OT/IE | HO/TVESOT/HD 86
NHVH AT1008 1YLV WIHL ONINGISYID0 AgTYIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVESY 7T:2Z ¥00Z/0T/1E 0Z:2Z Y00T/OT/IE | O/P8TISOT/HD LB
DV1d D1190Nd ¥ NEATHIGYOSIA ONY JINNEA LTBT v00Z/0T/6T ST:6T ¥Y00Z/0T/62 | ¥0/LTISOT/UD 96
FTYNEH ¥ NO LINVSSY TWNX3S 50:00 ¥00Z/01/01 ccer p00z/0T/60 | vO/VOVYOT/¥D 56
ONIAN AS 143HL ONIONTION - ¥IHLO - 143H) 0€:00 $00Z/60/YC ST:00 v0o0Z/60/bT | YO/EGBEOT/HD 6
ONIGNI4 A8 113HL DNIGATON - ¥3HL0 - 143HL 0t:Z? v00Z/60/6T Ov-TZ v00Z/60/6T | O/9ELEOT/HD €6
IV 1d J19A0d ¥ NI ATHIGHOSH ONY ANNYd ST:TZ v00T/80/6T vI:TZ vO0z/80/6T | ¥0O/SYOEOL/HD 43
: §SIULSIA
YO INHYTY LNFNSSYHYH 3SMvD OL ¥NOIAVHIE / SHOM DNINZLYIHHL 35N 57T v007/80/6T OT:1Z ¥00Z/80/6T7 | #0O/¥E0EOT/¥D 16
INIVIOT - ¥ SSV1D 40 ©NH¥A a3 TIOHLNOD ¥ §53550d p0T0 Y00Z/BO/8T 05:00 #00%Z/80/87 | #0/I8LY0T/HD 06
FINITOIA HOAOYd OL/ 40
YV34 ISAVD OL INILNI HAIM NOLLYINISIHAIY T18ISIA AV1dSIA / ILNEIYLSIT 9€:00 v00T/80/8T 6¢:00 ¥00Z/80/87 | ¥0/TL6T0T/4¥D 63
YIHLONY 40 NOSHId FHL WOHL 143HL DEI00 t00T/80/TC 07:00 t00Z/80/c | ¥0/vSLT0T/4D 28
ONIONIH A9 LIFHL DNIGMIDINI - ¥3HLO ~ i43HL 00:£¢ v00Z/80/ST 00:0C v00Z/80/ST | #0/1TSTOT/YD 18
ONIONH AS 1d3HL DNIGMTIONE - ¥3HLO - 143HL 10:00 ¥00Z/L0/8T 00:€7 v00T/L0/LT | vO/¥SSTOT/HD 98
. AVHAIY STIL0 ¥00T/90/LE 0T-TO ¥002/90/LT | ¥0/v8900T/4D <8
T 1INYSSY NOWINDD 70:00 ¥007/90/0¢ 10:00 v¥002/90/07 | ¥0/LE600T/¥D 8
ONIANIH AG LI3HL ONIGATINI - YIHLO - 143HL 10:00 ¥00T/50/62 00'€7 vOOT/S0/82 | PO/TL9660/42 £8
: S53YLsHa
YO INHVTV LNIASSYHYH 35NYD 0L HNOIAYHIE / SAHOM ONINILVIHHL 350 00:ZZ ¥00T/Y0/0¢€ 0$:T7 v00Z/¥0/0E |  v0O/rP9860/4d 78
5534151a
YO IWHYTY ENIWNSSYHYH ISNVYD 0L YNOIAVHIE / SGYOM DNINILVIYHL 35N 0£:02 v00Z/v0/0E S0I07 $00Z/¥0/0E | ¥0/9¥9860/4D 18
3IIV1d H18Nd ¥ NEATHIAHOSIO GNV INNYA TS€Z vO0T/V0/TT SPE7 vO0Z/¥0/TT | vO/LLERBE0/HD 08
AEYH A11G0E TYNLOV IWIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYHEd V LINVSSY §¢iET Y00T/¥0/8T 00:2Z #00Z/¥0/8T | ¥0/957860/4D 6L
ONIANIE A9 LAFHL ONIANTION] - ¥3HL0 - 143HL 65:E¢ YOOT/VO/LT 0S:€7 YOOZ/VO/LT | vO/YTTBE0/MD 84
DNIONI A8 143HL ONIAQNTONI - Y3HLO - 143HL 00:T0 00T/ ¥0/0T 00:TZ v00Z/¥0/60 | ¥0/968460/4D LL
DONIONIH AG 14IHL DNIGATIONT - ¥3HLO - 153HL 00:€7 vOOT/Y0/80 0£:7¢ vO0Z/¥0/80 | ¥0/LL0860/4D 9/
WHYH AT1008 TYNLOY WIHL DNINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSHId V LINVSSY 00:2Z H00Z/E0/9¢ 0T:17 v00T/£0/97 | PO/OTSLE0/4HD (¥4
ONIANI A8 LdTHL ONIGATONE - ¥IHLO - L4IHL 00:z¢ Yo0Z/S0/TE 00:TZ vOOZ/€0/Tz | ¥0/E0TL60/4¥D YL
FINVSSY NOWINDD OT:TZ +00Z/E0/vT 00:TZ Y00Z/E0/PT | ¥0/0S6960/4D £/

Page 62



NYYH A0S 1YN1IDY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3¥IHL NOSYId ¥V LINVSSY 07:EZ S00Z/11/8T OT:EC SO0T/TT/8T | SO/LTL660/42 | OVT
INYYH ANCOS VNIV W3HL ONINOISYII0 AGFHIHL NOSYId V LINVSSY 6S:€C S00Z/1T/ST 00:6T S00Z/TEL/8T | G0/968660/4D | GET
WNYVH ATQ08 1vNLOV WIHL DNINOISYDI0 AGIHIHL NOSYId ¥V LINVSSY 0710 500Z/11/81 ST10° S00Z/TT/8T | S0/069660/¥D | BET
ONIANIH A9 143HL ONIGNTINI - HIHLO0 - 143HL BSIEZ S00Z/TT/TT DEET S00Z/TT/IT | S0/965660/43 | LET

WYYH ATIG08 TWNLDY WIHL DNINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSHAd V L1NYSSY 12:20 S00Z/TT/90 €1:20-500T/1T/90 | SO/6L5660/42 | 9ET
WHVH ATIG0E WMLV WIHL DNINOISYIIO AGIHIHL NOSHId V L1NVSSY S0:00 S00Z/TT/90 1000 S00T/TT/90 | SO/ETE660/HD | GET
I0Y1d 2118Nd ¥ NEATHIQYOSIT ONY JINNYQ 00-10 S00Z/0T/72 £5:00 S00Z/0T/TT | S0/TZ88GO/YD | ¥ET

NHYH AT1008 TYNIDV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVSSY 00°T0 S00Z/0T/ST 0510 500T/0T/ST | SO/9£9860/4) | EET
WHVH AC08 TVN1OY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSYId V LINVSSY 0S:00 §002/0T/10 St:00 S00¢/0T/10 ¢ SO/Z81860/¥D | ZE€T
ONIAONI4 A8 L43HL ONIGMNTINI - YIHLO ~ L43HL 0%:T0 S00Z/60/61 0EITO S002/60/6T | S0/S98L60/d4D | T£%

WHVH A0S T¥N10V WIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSHId ¥ L1NVSsY 65:00 S60Z/60/0T 0v:00 S00Z/60/0T | S0/0SSZ60/4D | OfFT
£00Z VYOS - HIAC HO 35V 40 SHVIA 9T NYWOM vV 3dvY 0ET0 S002/80/ST 00°T0 S00Z/80/SZ | SO/TS0L60/dD | 671

ONIANIE A9 L43HL DNIGNTINI - ¥IHLO - 143HL 0ET0 S00¢/80/6T DO'T0 S00T/80/6T | S0/E08960/4D | 8TT

WHYH A11Q08 TvNLOV WIHL DNINOISYIO0 AGIHIHL NOSYId V L1NVSSY OF:£T 5002/80/90 OE:E7 S00Z/80/90 | GO//98960/4D | LTI
ONIONI4 A8 143HL ONIGNTINL - HAHLO - 143HL 00:ZT S00¢/L0/L2 00:6T S00Z//0/LT | GSO/ES0960/4D | 9TT

WHVYH ATIQ08 TYNIDY WIHL DNINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSYId ¥ LINVSSY 60°€7 S00T/L0/¢E2 00:E¢°SO0Z/L0/€T | SO/P9RSE0/WD | STT
ONIONH A8 143HL DNIGMIONE- Y3IHLO - 143HL 00'TZ S00Z/10/1Z 0017 S00Z/L0/TT | GO/ST8S60/4D | Wil

I0V1d D118Nd ¥ NI ATHIAHOSIO GNY MNMEd 95:07 $00Z/L0/€0 0€:07 S00Z/L0/€0 | S0/8TZS60/4D | €71

WHVH ATIQOS 1YNLIV WIHL ONINOISYIIO AGIHIHL NOSYHId ¥ LINVSSY Q€TI0 S00Z/L0/T0 OT 10  500Z/40/20 | SO/SPIsSe0/dD | 72T
ONIANI A9 143HL DNIGNTINE - ¥IHLO - L43HL 00:Z¢ 500Z/90/97 0€:8T §002/90/57 | SO/8/6Y¥60/43 | 12T

INYYH ATIQOE TYNLDY WIHL DONINDISYIO0 ABFHIHL NOSHId v LINYSSY £:00. S00Z/90/01 0€:00 S00T/90/0T | SO/9TVYE0/YD | QT
- IINVSSY NOWWWOD €€:1€7 500Z/90/%0 0E:€7 S00Z/90/v0 | SO/E9Z¥60/YD | 61T

NHYH ATQ0g VN1V WIHL ONINOISYII0 A9FHIHL NOSHId V L1NVSSY 00:Z¢ S002/40/6T 6517 S00Z/v0/67 | SO/TZZEG0/HD | 81T
ONIONIZ AG L3HL ONIGOTINE - H3HLO - J4THL OE:ET S00T/v0/vE GO/990E60/4D | LIT

NYVH AT1008 TYNLDY INTHL ONINOISYII0 A9IHIHL NOSYId V L1NYSSY $T:70 S00Z/90/22 0T:20 S00T/v0/Z¢ | S$0/0/6260/d4D | 91T
30V 1d D8NG ¥ NIEATYIAHOSIT ANV ANMEA ST:Z0 S00%/v0/TT 00°20 S00%Z/v0/ZE SO/T/6T60/4D | STT

YAHLONY 40 NOSHId JHL WOHA 143HL p0Zz S00Z/£0/5C 00:6T SO0Z/S0/ST | GO/8LET60/¥D | VIT

I5Y1d 2018Nd ¥ NI ATHIQYOSIT GNY ¥NNYd 10:00 S00Z/E0/E€T 6G:€T S00¢/€0/ZT | SO/TOGTEO/MD | E1IT

I9V1d JN9Nd ¥ N ATHIAHOSIT ANV ANNMEA 6G-€7 SO0Z/E0/ET GSIEZ S00T/E0/ZT | GO/ZOGTRO/HD | 21T

©EINVSSY NOWWOD $2:00 500Z/20/92 07:00.500T/20/9¢ | SO/LESTEO/MD | TIT

WHVH A11J09 TYNLDY WIHL ONINOISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVSSY G710 5002/20/S0 ST:TO S00Z/¢0/s0 | 50/9bz660/4D | OTT
WHYH ATIG0S TYNLOY WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSHId ¥ LTNVSSY 9112 S00T/T0/ET SHTZ S00Z/T0/ET | SO/696460/4D | 60T
SA00D NIT0LS HNIAIFDIY 07:£Z S00Z/10/%1 STIEZ SO0Z/TO/PT | SO/P6ZE60/4D | 80T

INYYH ATIQ0E TYNLDY WIHL ONINGISYII0 AGIHIHL NOSYHId V LTNVSSY €7:ZT vO0T/TT/ve 0T:TT: ¥00T/2T/vT | YO/8G9S60/dD | LOT
WHYH ATIQ0E TYNLOV WIHL ONINOISYIIO AGIHIHE NOSHId V L1INVSSY 6F:6T YO0Z/ZT/LT OE:6T ¥00C/CL/LT | vO/PEYSE0/YD | 90T
INHYH ATIA0E TYNLOV WIHL DNINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSHId ¥ LINYSSY ZT:00 v00Z/2T/S0 10:00 ¥00T/21/50 | t0/85TS60/4D3 | SOT

Page 63



YIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOYd Ld3HL

00°£0 900¢/£0/5T 10:00 9002/€0/57 | 90/€TSEBO/MD | SLT
1INYSSY NOWWOD SE:00 900Z/E0/1C 0£:00 9007/€0/tT | 90/66EE€60/4D | ¥L1
ONIONIH A8 143HL DNIGNTONI - YIHLO - 143HL 00:70 9002/€0/6T ODEZ 900Z/€0/8% | 90/6SEE60/¥D | ELT
39Y1d DNaNd v NI ATHIAYOSIA OGNV ANNYD STIZD 9002/80/1T 01:Z0 S00T/€0/TT op/ECTEBD/MD | TLT
ARIVH ATIA0E VALY WAL DNINOISYII0 ASIHIHL NOSHId V1INVYSSY 00:Z0 900Z/€0/11 QETO 900Z/€0/TT g90/IFTEE0/MD | TLT
19V 1d 219N d V NLATHIGHOSHT GNY INNYHA ST:00 9007/€0/11T €1:00 9007/€0/TT |  90/9ZTEGO/MD | 0L1
30V1d 2118Nd ¥ NI ATHIAHOSIJ ANV INNYD 3100 9007/20/11 60:00 900Z/€0/1T | 90/6TTE60/MD | 691
IV d I8N ¥ N ATHITHOSIO GNY INNYd 60:00 900Z/€0/1T 1000 9007/£0/TT | 90/0ETE60/HD | 89T
WHVH ATI0E TYNIDY WIHL DNINOISYID0 AgT4IHL NOSHId ¥V LINVSSY 7SIET 900Z/€0/0T Cyiez 9007/€0/0T | 90/TETE60/MD | L9T
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId 3HL WOYd Jd4aHL 0S:€Z 900T/€0/60 0€:€7 9007/€0/60 1 90/TiTE60/HD | 8991
NUYH ATIGOE VALV WIHL ONINCISYI20 AG3HIHL NOSYAd V LINVSSY 0T:00 900Z/€0/S0 S0:00 9002/50/50 | 90/9ZveE60/HD | S9T
NHYH ATTAOg TWNIDV W3HL ONINOISYDD0 AG3HIHL NOSHId V LINVSSY 01:00 9002/£0/S0 G000 B00Z/E0/S0 | 90/056760/4D | 91
SNIANIE A9 143HL ONIANION] - 4IHL0 ~ i43HL OT:TO 900Z/£0/£0 00°T0 9007/€0/€0 | 90/v88Z60/HD | €91
YIHLONY 40 NOSHId 3HL INOYHA L43HL 0€:§7 9002/70/5T 0o:€z 9007/z0/sz | 90/8T6T60/dd | 91

: S5IHLSIT
HO INYYTY LNINSSYHYH ISAVD CL ¥NOIAVHEE / SCHOM ONINILVIYHL 351 S0:TO 9002/20/5T 00:TO 9002/70/52 | 90/159260/40 | 191
NHYH ATIG0E YNV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AG3Y3HL NOSHId V 1INVSsY T0:T0 9007/70/ST 00°T0 900Z/T0/Sz | 90/059Z60/¥D | 05T
INYYH ATI00E 19N10V INIHL ONINOISYIZ0 A3HIHL NOSYHd ¥ L1NVSSY OF:0C 900%/70/ST 0€:00 9002/zo/sz | 90/6¥9T60/4d | 6S1
NHVH ATIA0E TWNLOV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYId ¥V LINVSSY 0z:€7 9002/20/0T STIE7 900¢/70/0T | 90/155¢60/HD | BST
WHYH ATI001 T¥N1OV W2HL ONINOISYID0 A8343HL NOSH3d V L1NVSSY ST:E£7 9007/20/0% OT'€Z 900Z/z0/0T | 90/8559260/¥0 | LST
INALNI LMOHLIM WYYH A1A0g SNOAZIYD LOINI / GNNOM ST:I0 9007/10/6¢ 0£:00 900Z/T0/6C | 90/98Y00T/HD | 9ST
ANVH ATG08 1¥N10Y WIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYId ¥ LINVS5Y 5510 5007/10/LT 0510 9002/T0/L7 | 90/07I660/8D | 5§1
ONIANI AS L43HL ONIGNTINT - HIHLO - 193HL 50:00 9007/10/vT 00:00 900Z/10/¥T | 90/€6E560/dD | ST
INIVIOD - ¥ SSY1D 40 DNY¥A G3TI0YLNOD ¥ 5535504 SEIT0 900¢/10/80 DE:T0 900Z/10/80 | 90/8T/E60/HD | EST
NUVH AIa0g VNIOV WIHL DNINOISYID0 A93Y3HL NOSHId V LINVSSY gT:E0 900Z/10/T0 0£:70 900Z/T0/I0 1 90/SSL060/4D | ST
NYVH ANA08 1YV WIHL DNINOISYDI0 AG3Y¥IHL NOSYHId V LINVSSY 0T:T0 900%/10/10 S%:00 900¢/T0/T0 |  90/60.860/40 | 1IST
ONIAN|H AG L43HL ONIGNTINI - Y3HLO - 143HL S¥:00 900¢/10/10 c:00 900Z/10/T0 | 90//494v60/¥4D | 0ST
YIHLONY 40 NOSH3d JHL INOYd E4IHL 0EI00 §00Z/ZT/ET €7.00 S00Z/2T/5T | SO/SL8060/4D | 6Y1L
WRYH AIa08 WALV WIHL ONINOISYIDO0 A9IHIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVSSY ¥5:00 sooz/er/ee Sv:00 5007/T3/7T | 90/TYZE60/WD | 8YL
DNIANIE A9 143HL ONIGNTONT - 43HL0 - Ld3HL 00:ET 500%/2T/T¢ 0061 S00Z/71/Tz | SO/v00T6Q/HD | L¥T
ENILNEHLIA IWHYH ATIQ0™ SNOATIMO-- 8T NOILD3S 0£:00 S00Z/ZT/9T 0E:€7 SO0Z/ZT/ST | 90/167760/4D | 9vT
ONICANIE AG 143H1 DNIAMONI - ¥3HLO - JdIHL Q000 S00T/TT/ST 00:£7 SO0Z/TL/YT | S0/Z9060/4D | SPL
YIHLONY 40 NOSYHId IHL INOYd 143HL 00:20 S00Z/tT/60 0077 S007/TI/80 1 SO/0TVO60/dD | vl
ONIONI A9 143HL ONIANTON] - YIHLO - L43HL 6S:E¢ S00T/TT/T0 00:€Z S00Z/2T/e0 | SO/86£060/4D | EVI
ONIANIH A LJ43HL ONIGNIINI - Y3HLO0 - 143HL 0D:€0 §00Z/71/70 10°00 S007/2T/T0 | 90/Tvioe0/dD | vl
10100 S00Z/1T/9T 0£:ZZ SD0Z/TT/ST | SO/P60060/HD | IFL

ONIONIS AS LH3IHL DNIGATONE- ¥IHLO - H3HL

Page 64



DNIANID A8 143H1 DNIGMTIONE - HIHLD - Ld43HL 00:z0 800T/¥0/50 0G:10 8002/F0/50 | B0/CT89620/4D 2
ONIANIH AH 143HL DNIQNIDNI - 43HLO - 143HL 5000 800T/E0/0€ 00:00 B00Z/£0/0F | 80/00S640/4D eT
ONIONI A8 L43HL ONIGMIDNI - ¥3HLO0 - 143H1 ST'TO 8007/£0/5¢ 00:T0 800Z/€0/€7 | BO/98T6L0/4D 4
ANIVIOD - ¥ SSY1D 40 BNYA GITIOHINOD V S$3850d 8EIET 800T/E0/80 0T:€7 B00Z/€0/80 | 80/E8L8.0/4D Tt
ANIVIOD - ¥ SSY1D 40 SNHA 3TIOHINOD V §53550d Q€00 800Z/10//T ST:00 8002/10/42 | 80/GLSER0/YD 0t
INIYI0D - ¥ SSYTD 40 5NYA G3TIOYINOD V 5535504 0S:00 800Z/10/1T0 0£:00 800Z/I0/10 | RBO/ESB6L0/ED 6
INIVIOD - ¥ SSV1D 40 9MHA GITIOHINOD ¥ §53550d 0£:00 £00T/T1/5¢ ST:00 L00Z/LT/sT LO/TLLEBD/UD g
ONIGNIH AG LJFHL ONIGNTONI - ¥3HLO0 - 143HL 0D:€0 L00Z/60/67 0020 £002/60/6% | LD/SLOTE0/4¥D L
WHYH ATIGOT TYNIDV WIHL ONINOISYII0 Ag3HIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVSSY 6110 LOOZ/60/L0 QO-T0 £002/60/40 L0/S8V060/4D 9
INIINI LNOHLIM WYYH ATIQ08 SNOATIYD LOIT4NI / ONNOM 0T:€0 L00¢/30/VT 0080 £002/80/t2 | L0/L90060/4D g
- LINVSSY NOWINDD 0T:E0 £00T/30/PT 000 Z00Z/80/vE | 80/6SBER0/4D v
INIYI0D - ¥ 5SV1D 40 DNHEG GITIOHINDD v §53550d 81:70 LOOZ/10/6T 0020 £00Z/L0/68 | LO/SLZ680/4D 3
TV3LS OL LNILINI HLIM ONITIIMO NYHL HIHL0 AHVTIOHNE 0£:60 £00T/L0/70 00:40 £00Z//0/10 |  LO/F0S8R0/¥D z
Y3IHIONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOHS 143HL 00:00 L00Z/L0/10 007z Z00Z/90/08 | L0/8TSBRO/ YD 1
STNIYD /8 = 6002 90130 0L L00Z INNT ~ AY1d
HIHIONY 40 NOSHId JHL IWOYL 143HL 0£:20 900T/80/8T Q€ TO 900¢/30/8T | 90/6LE860/4D | €61
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOY4H 143H1 00:£0 9007/80/90 T0:00 S00Z/80/90 | 90/TT6460/4D 1 6T
ONIONIH AS 143HL1 ONIGNTINI - YIHLO - 143HL 00:ET 9008/L0/5T Of:TZ 900Z/L0/ST | 90/ivPLi60/4D | 16T
ONIANIA AG L4THL ONIGATING - YIHLO - 143HL SvE7 9007/L0/TT OF:€7 800Z/L0/22 | 90/.62L60/4D . 061
{60/10/92
T40438 GILLIWINGD) ~ ONYA AITTOBLINGD 2 5SY1D ¥ SIIYNNYD §53550d LT:0Z 9007/L0/6T 00:07 S00Z/L0/6T | 90/£9T/60/¥D | 681
. (s0/T0/9T
40439 QI LLIANGD) - DNYA Q3TIOULNOD I SSVID V SIGVNNYD §53550d ¥7:00 900Z/40/9T 00:00 900¢/L0/9T | 90/0¥0.60/4D | 88T
WHVH ATIA0E TVNLDV INTHL ONINOISYID0 AS3HIHL NOSYId ¥ L1NVSSY 61:00 900¢2/90/91 TO:00:900Z/90/9T | 90/L£0960/4D | (LRT
ONIANIS AB 193HL ONIGNTINI - YIHLO - L43HL 0€:Z0 9002/50/0T 0€:'TZ 9007/S0/6T | 90/£95560/4D | 98T
VIAGIA - ¥ 5SV12 40 9NYA GITIOHLINOD ¥ 535504 Ly:00 5007/50/vT SH:00 9007/S0/vT | 90/756560/4D | GBT
INIVI0D - ¥ SSY12 40 2NY¥a GITIOHLNOD ¥ $53550d 0€:00 9002/50/v1 S7:00 9002/S0/tT | 90/2STS60/MD | 8T
WHVH ATIQ0E TYNIDY INIHL DNINOISYIIO0 AG3HIHL NOSHId v LINVSSY O£ T0 9002/50/40 0Z:TO 9007/S0/40 | 90/v96v60/4D | €81
WHVH ATIQ08 VNIV INTHL ONINOISYI20 AB3YIHL NOSHId V L1NVYSSY 00°T0 9007/S0/10 0£:00 9002/50/10 | 90/916¥60/4D | T8T
ONIANIE AG 143HE ONIGATONI - YIHLO - L43HL 0£:€Z 900¢/v0/LE 00:€2 9002/v0/£2 | 90/SE6E0/MD | IS8T
INYYH ATIJOE TVYNLDY INHL ONINOISYII0 ASIHIHL NOSHIAd ¥ L1INVSSY OETO 9002/v0/€e 00:TO 9007/v0/€Z | 90/TSSY60/4D | 08T
WHYH ATIJOE YLDV WIHL ONINOISYD20 AGIHIHL NOSYHId ¥ 11NVSSY 0¥ €0 900T/v0/9T 0€:£0 9002/v0/9T | 90/9¥bbe0/d4D | 6LT
ONIANI A8 L43HL SNIGNTIONI - HIHLO - 143HL 00°€0 900Z/¥0/ST 1000 900Z/v0/ST | 90/S9T¥6e0/d4D | 8T
WYVH ATIA0E TYNLDV INTHL DNINOISYID0 AG3HIHL NOSYHId V 1INVSSY 0Z:10 8007/10/60 ST:TO 900T/v0/60 |  90/veTye0/dd | L1
INIVI0I - ¥ SSVI2 40 DNUT Q3T10HINOD v 553550d 00:TG 800¢/v0/CC SY:00 900T/v0/20 1 90/8ELE60/43 | 9LT

Page 65



INSVH ATIGOS TYNLOV INTHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSYId V LINVYSSY Q€70 600Z/L0/30 ST'70 6002/L0/90 | 60/690¥L0/4D 8
HIHLIONV 40 NOSHId FHL INOYS L43HL 00160 600¢/L0/10 00:00 600Z/L0/£0 |  60/6€0VL0/4D A%
YINGIN - ¥ 551D 40 DNYA GITIOHLNOD ¥ SSA550d DT-€¢ 600Z/90/2T 00:€7 6007/90/ZT | 60/6L¥ELO/HD 8y
ONIANI AG 143HL ONIANTON] - 43HL0 - 143HL 0£:Z0 6002/90/10 00:70 600Z/90/10 | 60/SETELO/UD oy
NYVH ATIQ0E VNIV WIHL DNINOISYII0 AHIYIHL NOSHId vV LINVSSY 00:TO 6008/50/1¢ $1:00 6007/50/IE | 60/9YTEL0/HD 7
SNICONIH AS LITHL ONITIIN] - 43HLO - L43HL TOI00 6002/50/9% B%:EC 600Z/50/6¢ |  BO/YYOELO/YD £t
INIFINT HLIM WYYH ATIG0E SNOAIND - 8T NOLLD3S OF:€7 6007/50/9T 0Z:€Z 6002/80/91 60/ET8TL0/¥D v
INYVH A0 TYNLIIV WIHL ONINOISYII0 A93HIHL NOSYId V LINVSSY 0€:10 600Z/50/TT S7'I0 600Z/SO/IT | 60/8E9T/0/4D 1t
W3AHLO - 000ST HIANN ALHIdOUd OL IDVINVG TYNIAIND 0€:T0 6002/50/20 SZ'TO 600Z/S0/20 ¢  60/9TvTL0/HD Ot
HIHLONY 40 NOSHId 3HL NOHL L33aHL 00:Z0 600Z/V0/ET 00'27 6007/v0/ZT | 60/8L6TL0/HD 6%
INNYH AT304 TYNLDV INTFHL ONINOISYID0 AG3¥IHL NOSYHId V L1NVsSY TT:E0 600Z/€0/8¢T 00:£0 6002/£0/8¢ | 60/LSSTLO/¥D 8¢
INIYI0D - ¥ SSVTD 40 DNYA QI TIOHLNOD ¥ S53550d 0¥:70 6002/€0/ST 0T:70 600Z/€0/ST | 60/L1TTLO/4D LE
ALOQ 40 NOILND3XT NI 318VASNOD V 451S3d / 1DNY1SE0 5Z:E7 600Z/€0/80 CT'€Z 600Z/€0/80 | 60/890TL0/UD 9¢
INIVDOD - ¥ SSYT1D 40 DNYA G3TI0ELNOD V¥ 5535504 077 6002/£0/80 GT°€7 600T/E0/80 | 60//90TL0/4¥D ge
SNIGNIE A8 143HL ONIGNIIN] - 43H10 - J43HL 65:€7 600Z/T0/VT 0E:€7 600Z/Z0/¥T | 60/8850L0/4D P&
60/1/5T
WALV 3501 - NISTY SIGYNNYD - § SSV1D 40 9Ndd A3TT0HINOD V §53550d GEIET 600T/TO/T0 0.7 600Z/70/10 | 60/856LL0/¥D £€
WHYH AT08 I¥NL10Y WKL ONINOISYIDI0 AGIHIHL NOSHId ¥V LINVSSY 01:T0 600Z/T0/6T S0°T0 600Z/T0/6T | 60/96ESL0/4D 43
£007 VOS ~ ONIHL
v / AQOE 40 L¥Vd HLIM NOILYYLINId A8 ¥IAO ANV ET JTVINEL V LTNYSSY D020 600T/T0/F0 0ST0 600Z/T0/F0 . 60/TS90L0/43 1€
VINGW - ¥ SSY12 40 ONYA Q3TT08LNOD v §535504d 0S:ET 800T/CT/ET Gy:€7 8007/CL/ET | 80/T8VBLLO/MD 0t
INIVI0D ~ ¥ SSV1D 40 ONYA GITI0ELINOD V¥ $53550d QF:€7 800T/7L/1T OE:E7 BOOZ/ZL/TZ | BO/9Y6LLO/HD 67
INIYI0D - V¥ SSYID 40 DNYHA QITIOWINOD V S53550d 0%:£7 BO0Z/TI/1T 0E:E7 B00Z/ZT/TT | 8O/¥v6LL0/HD 9z
VINGIA - V SSY1D 40 DNHa a3ITIOUINOD ¥ §535504d 80:E7 800T/¢T/Z1 SO'€Z 800Z/ZT/TL | 80/9VLLLO/HD Lz
ANIAYLIHAWY - § SSY1D 40 SNHA G3TI0HINGD ¥ S535504d O£ T0 800¢/21/80 02'T0 8007/Zt/80 | 80/St9LL0/4D 9z
INHVH ATIG08. TYNLIY IWIHL DNINOISYII0 AG3HIHL NOSHId ¥ LINYSSY 00:20 800Z/TIT/0T 00°T0 800Z/TL/OT | 80/TZ0980/4D az
ONIGNIE AS 143HL DNIGNION] - 43HLO0 - 143HL 00:20 800¢/TT/80 0£:TO 800T7/TI/80 | 80/SLLS80/HD vz
ONIANIE AE 1J3HL ONIGNIONT - Y3HL0 - 143HLE 0E:10 800T/TT/10 00:T0 BOOZ/IT/TO | 80/979580/40 €T
ONIGNIH AS 143HL ONICNTIONI - YFHLO - LA3HL SHE7 800Z/0T/TE DE'E7 800Z/0T/TE | 80/965580/4D ze
YIHLIONY 40 NOSY3d IHL WOHH L43HL 55177 800Z/60/L7 0S:ZZ 800Z/60/LT | 80/9T9¥80/4D 1z
INIVIOD - ¥ 5SV1D 40 ONY¥A aaTIOHLNOD V §53550d ST:T0 800Z/60/ET 00:T0 800Z/60/€T |  80/SETVBO/YD 0z
HIHLONY S0 NOSHId IHL WOYd L13HL 00:Z0 800Z/80/57 5700 8007/80/S7 1 80/TELEBO/MD 61
Y3IH10 - 000SF HIANN ALYIJONd OL IDVINYG TUNINIYND 00:Z0 800%/L0/61 GG TO 8002/L0/6T | 80/L8580/4D 3T
INHVH AA08 YNV WIHL ONINOISYID0 AGIHIHL NOSHId v L1NVYSSY 00:E0 8007/v0/LT 00:Z0 800Z/¥0/L7 |  80/00S080/42 LT
ONIANIL A L43HL ONIANTIONG - YIHLO - L43HL 00:v0 800Z/10/90 D£:Z7 800Z/v0/S0 |  80/T99640/4D 9T
6L:E0 BOOT/¥0O/S0 00E0 BO0T/PO/SO | 80/LTI6L0/4UD ST

ONIANIH A8 143HL ONIGNIONE - HIHLO0 ~ LdaHL

Page 66



YINGW - ¥ SSYT1D 40 DNY¥A G3TI0HLINOD ¥ 553550d T1:00 £10¢/80/0T OT:00 £T02/80/01 | ET/¢50990/4D .

IANIVYI0D - ¥V SSYID 40 BNYA QI TI0UINOD W 553550d S0T0 €102/L0/LT vO'T0 £T0T/L0/4T | E1/VELSS0/¥D €

ONIANIH AS L4THL DNIGNION] ~ H3H10 - 143HL 0ETO £T02/10/12 0€27 £T0Z//0/0Z | €1/509590/4D F

ANIYIOD - V SSYT1D 40 BNMA Q3 TIOUINOD V¥ §53550d S¥'Ze £107/50/%0 pE T ETOT/S0/P0 | ET/68T80T/HD T

STNIMD 9 = €107 Y390100 OL £I0Z AVIN — ¥vd 39

INIYIOD - ¥V SSVYT1D 20 DNYA GITIOYAINOD V $53550d $£:10 0T0EZ/80/0¢ STTO OTOZ/80/0E | OT/PDEBS0/ YD 6

JAILYAIYIT INONIHLYD - 8§ SSVTD 40 9MHG QITT0ULNOD ¥ 5535504 02:Z0 0T0Z/80/vT 0T:Z0 0T0T/80/¢T | OT/v¥6/90/4D ]
VINGQIA - ¥ SSY12 40 9NYa 431T0UINOD V $53550d 0€:ZZ 0TOZ/80/€T 00:zZ OTOT/B0/ET |  OL/EV6/90/4D L

JALLYAIYIC ANONIHLYD - 9 S5V 40 9NYd a3 TI0HANOD ¥ $535504d $¥:00 0T0Z/80/20 S£:I00 0T0T/80/20 |  OT/259.90/4D g
ONIGONIH A8 L43HL ONIGNTON] - YIHLO - 153H1 SyiTT 010¢/L0/cT 00:2Z OT0Z/L0/S0 1 OL/6TYLS0/4D g

HIHLO - I SSVID 40 BNHA Q3TIONLNOD ¥ AlddNS OL LNIINI H1IM $53550d STIET 0T0Z/L0/20 Q0:€T 010T/40/20 1  0OT/956950/4D ¥
FALYAIEIA INONIHLYD - § SSVID 40 DNYA d3TT0HLNOD V $53550d OT:€2 0T0Z/10/T0 00:€Z OTOZ/L0/20 1 O1/£50£480/4D £
ANPNYLIN - 3 SSYID 40 9DNYAa G3TI0HLNOD ¥ §535504 OP'EC 0TOZ/90/1T 0£:£Z OTOZ/90/IT | OT/89¥950/4D 4

WHVH ATIC08 TYNLDY WIHL ONINOISYII0 AG3YIHL NOSHId ¥ L1NVSSY ST:T0 0T0Z/S0/ET SFITO 0I0Z/S0/E2 | OT/270950/4D T
: SANIYD 6 = 0TOZ L1SNODNY 0L 0T0Z AVIN —34¥Nd

WHVH ATIA0E YN0V WIHL ONINOISYID0 ASIHIHL NOSY3d V 1INVSSY 00:€0 6002/0T/0T 0S:Z0 600Z/0T/0T |  60/ZER9L0/4D 9
DNIANH A8 L43HL ONIGNTONI - HIHL0 - 143HL 00:T0 600¢/0T/S0 00:€Z 600Z/0T/V0 i  60/SSESL0/MD 99

HIHLIONY 40 NOSHId 3HL WOYHH 143HL DE:T0 600T/60/8T 00:T0 600Z/60/82 | 60/T8T9L0/4D 59

3DV1d 2119Nd ¥V NI NOdVIA JAISNIH40 NV SSI5504d OF-00 6007/60/8¢ SE00 600Z/60/87 | 60/TST940/4D ¥9

WHVH ATIA0E TYNLOY IWIHL ONINDISYIDO AGIYIHL NOSHAd ¥ L1NVYSSY 00:20 6002/60/L2 0ET0 6002/60/L7 1  6O/ETTILO/YD £g
WHVH ATAOY TYNUOY WIHL DNINDISYIIO A9IHIHL NOSHId ¥ LINVSSY 0070 600Z/60/L2 0£TO 6U0Z/60/LT 1 60/VTZOL0/YD z9
WHVH AH008E TYN10V WIHL ONINOISYIIO ABIYIHL NOSHId V L'INYSSY St:€Z 600T/60/ZT 0£IEZ 600T/60/21 |  60/E685L0/4D 19
INIYIOD - V¥ §SVI1D 40 DNYA GITTOHINOD V $53550d §SIEZ 600T/60/50 0S:£2 6007/60/50 |  60/8L9GL0/4D 09

YINGIAL - V SSY1D 40 9NYa GITI0HINGD V $535504d S&IET BOQZ/E0/S0 08:€7 6002/60/50 60/6/95/0/42 65

INFLINE HLIM WHYH ATIA0S SNOAZIND - T NOILDAS S€T0 600T/80/tE 0€:TO 600Z/80/TE | 60/V9S5L0/4D 35

DNIANI A9 1439HL ONIGMIONT - ¥3HLO - 143HL 00:Z0 600T/80/TE O0:TO 60DZ/B0/TE | 60/T9SSL0/4D L5

INIVD0D - ¥ §SVT1D 40 DN AITIOHINGD ¥ $53550d 05:00 600Z/80/0¢ 0700 600Z/80/0E | 60/8TSSL0/UD 9%

ONIONIE AS 143HL ONIGIONT - YIHL0 - 143HL STLO 600Z/80/¢t ] 0010 600Z/30/2Z |  60/¥TESL0/4D =S

ONIGNI A8 143HL DNIGNIIN] - HIML0 - 143ML 00:T0 6002/80/80 0¢:00 600Z/80/80 1 60/SR6HL0/MD vs

ONIAONIA A8 143HL ONIGNTIONT - 43HL0 - 143HL 000 600Z/80/€0 0020 600T/80/S0 1 60/0T8VL0/MD €5

ONIANIZ A8 143HL ONIGMTONT - 43HL0 - 143HL 00:20 6007/80/70 05 T0 6007/80/20 1  60/98tL0/4D 7§

YIHLONY 40 NOSHId IHL WOYHS 143HL 00:10 600Z/80/20 00:7Z 6007/80/I0 | 60/8787/0/¥D 15

WHYH ATIA0E TVNLIV IWIHL ONINOISVIZ0 AGTYIHL NOSHId V L1NVSSY 0010 600Z//0/8T TO:00 600Z/L0/8T 680/YThbL0 4D 05
YIHLONY 40 NOSHId JHL NOYd 143HL 00°ZT 600Z/L0/TT ST'ET 600T/L0/0T | 60/4TEV/0/4D &t

Page 67



Page 68

LT/9T0T A pa1edwiod uaum %z'SS Aq paseasau] 6T/ST0T Ul $1UBpIdul 3U3|01A 1eY3 593835 A0 1edil] SAITBINWAYD

30U8[0IA SIA[OAU 518DA TT Ul S3siWaid S} 18 SLULD PApIedal 1B J0 %8L°0F = BSE 40 9FT

TNILNI TILIM IN8VH ATIG0d SNOAJIND - 8T NOILDAS | S5°6T Z102/50/90 | 0G'6T L102/S0/90 | LT/TESYE0/¥d | T |

HJIAIYD T = 6102 O1 ¢10Z —~ 28V SHORUYM

© LINVSSY NOWIWOD OET0 ET0Z/0T/90 0010 -€T0Z/0T/90 £1/66€L90/4D 9

ONIANI AS L43HL DNIAGOTON -~ ¥3HLO - diddHL 0£:Z0 €1T0T7/80/5T §1:20 £T07/80/5% ET/E¥F990/4D S




From: Adz

Ta: SMART Julle 50403
Subject: Re: Possible License extension 26 Vidoria parade
Date: 17 September 2019 12:45:48

Good afternoon Juiie

Apologies it has taken so long to get back to you as I'm sure you can imagine I have had a
lot of things to consider.

There are only 2 directors in The Quay Nightclub Ltd. Our details are as follows:

Adam Ayman Hamade

I have no experience in the late night entertainment industry, however I am a director of
multiple companies in various fields none of which have ever breached any rules or
legistation.

Kirsti Garnet-Thomas

ICirsti has a long standing clean personal license as well as experience managing casinos, |
will forward you her cv and a brief introduction on a separate email. It is our intention she
is DPS initially due to the substantial investment required we feel nobody will manage it as
well as us.

I understand your concerns about increased crime and disorder in the CIA, This is by far
the most difficult objective to deal with, however I am confident that with correct
measures in place we could work logether and have the opposite affect and actually
reduced crime and disorder ultimately reducing police workload. By Placing more
responsibility on Private security companies employed by licensed premises to ensure
there patrons get Home safely in a orderly manner ultimately preventing incidents before
they occur or escalate into crimes. Due to the significant investment required in the
building T will be meeting with Karl Martin at the building to discuss acoustic surveys
before any work commences it would be great to meet you at the same time if you can both
be available. Although I know it is unlikely I am hopeful we can work with you to come
up with a proposal that would at least gain your support for a couple of temporary
extensions to see the positive and negative effect on the late night crime and disorder
statistics, We are certainly willing to go above and beyond to gain your support however
we can only counteract the issues we see and read about personally. whilst I am sure a
licensing consultant can tick a lot of boxes we are particularly interested in combating
Jocal issues that create problems for the police and waste your time on a weekly basis. No
matter what your concerns are I will work tirelessly to find suitable preventive solutions,
agree them with yourself and implement them prior to applying for any extension.

Thanks again for your time

Best regards

Page 69



Adam Hamade

On 12 Aug 2019, at 10:18, SMART Julie 50403
<Julie. SMART@devonandcornwall. pnn.police.ule> wrote:

Hi Adam

 did received your email on Wednesday 7 August 2018, and | apologise for not
getting back to you sooner, but with staff shortages and important application
deadlines to meet | have been extremely busy.

Thank you far sending the attached document which is useful but doesn’t contain
suficient information on which | can give vou a definite answer. it would be usefu!
if you could supply with me details of all persons involved in the business, in
particular | would need the names, home addresses, dates of birth, places of birth,
and details of the licensing experience of the DPS and Premises Licence Holders, or
“diractors, so that this-can be considerad in conjunction with the information you
nrovided.

Asyou are already aware of the Cumulative Impact Policy, I have to advise you that,
even if ali persons involved in the business have good track records, | think itis
unlikely that the police will support any application for a 3.00 am licence at 26
Victoria Parade as such a premises is likely to lead to increased crime and disorder
within the CIA. However, you are of course stiil entitled to apply for a variation but,
if there were any representations, the application would be dealt with by the
Licensing Authority at a hearing, where they would hear from all parties and make
their decision based on the information provided to them.

Additionally, | am aware that when the premises were last cpen as a nightclub,
there were several noise issues and { think the building needs guite a lot of work
doing toit. You therefore need to consider the Prevention of Public Nulsance
licensing objective and consult with Karl Martin at Torbay Councll if you have not
aiready done so. His email is karl.martin@torbay.gov.uk

| lock forward to hearing from you again in due course with the above inforenation.

Kind regards

Julie Smart

Alcohol Licensing

Drug and Alcohol Harm Reduction
Prevention Department

Dorset, Devon and Cornwall Police Alliance

Julie.smart@deyonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk

Page 70




01803 218800
07921 833874
Internal, 304000

<image001.png><image002 png>

How to contact the police ~ ClickBAUCal)

includes: online crime reporting, 101 email, help from other grganisations,
community messaging, British Sign Language videos, thicd pariy reporting,
Police Encuiry Offices

in an emergency always call 999

From:AdzEiees -0y i s e
Sent: 12 August 2019 09:44
To: SMART Juiie 50403 <julle SMART@ devonandcornwall.pnn.nolice.uks
Subject: Possible License extension 26 Victoria parade

Subject: Paossible License extension 26 Vietoria parade

Good morsing lulie

[ hope you haven’t received this twice

One of your colleagues Mandy guy recommended 1 contact you
regarding the license relating to 26 Victoria parade currently
warriors boxing gym and possibilitics of a extension, before I
agree to take on the lease,

We are aware of the cumulative impact zone and fully intended to
go above and beyond expectations with all the licensing
objectives.

I have put together a brief outline of some details of controls that
would be put in place. And would also be happy to add anything
else you feel would help improve late night safety and police
workload locally. 1do not intend on personally being the licensec
or Responsable for the day to day management all potential
parties have a long standing clean personal license and a good
reputation locally.

You will find a brief proposal attached below In addition

one thing I personally believe makes a big difference is I have
noticed the security that was previously at the taxi rank on
Saturday and Sunday morning is no lenger available, we would
be happy to provide this at both Hackney ranks along with a
welfare officer to assist with any vulnerable or intoxicated people,

Page 71



in the event of a.3_am extension being granted.

I really appreciate your time and advice with this one. I am
hopeful that working together we can improve late night safety on
torquay harbour and set a standard for the future

Best regards
Adam Hamade

If in doubt FLAT OUT

*******i*h************i***ﬁ*****k*********ﬁi*i*kﬂ**t******k*ﬁt******t*&*

This e-mail is intended for the named recipient(s) only and may contain privileged
information, which is protected in law. If you have received this e-mail in error, please
contact the sender to advise them and delete this e-mail. Unauthorised use, disciosure,
copying or distribution is prohibited.
****#a******iﬁ&*i*****ﬁ******k*a*ﬂ*****tﬂi**f*ﬁ**ﬁt****kk*k****ﬁ*ﬁ**ti*w

E-mail should not be regarded as @ secure means of communication, we take all
reasonable steps to ensure that e-mails are protected from malware, but cannot accept
fiability for any loss or damage, howsoever arising, as a result of thair transmission to
the recipients’ computer or network.
*&*i**********ﬁ*ﬁtk**x*k*ﬁ******ktt***ik**k*****ﬁ*kl****kﬂﬁ**i*****k*i***
Far more information, of to contact us, please visit us at wyww.devon-cornwaill. police yk
or www . dorset.police. Uk or e-mait 101@d ic or

rset. ice U

<attachment 1.docx>

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit hitp://www.symanteccloud.com

Page 72



THE QUAY NIGHTCLUB LTD.
OPERATIONS SCHEDULE —

Our deor entry policy is challenge 30, where anyone under 30 will be
challenged for identity by our fully contracted SIA security. Anyone under 21 or
showihg the effects of alcohol or drugs will not be admitted.

Our SIA security team will be equipped with the latest body scanners, drugs
wipes for use with ion track drugs detection machine on the premises, and will
be accompanied on the door by a trained sniffer dog wherever possible,
Previously this premises has used 1 SIA security guard per 75 patrons, we
would not consider opening without 1 SIA security guard per 50. On an average
night we will have a capacity of 500 and use 12 SIA security guards.

At no point will premises exceed capacity (500}, with door staff using clickers or
other suitable equipment to record customers entering or exiting premises.
The capacity figure must make allowance for any and ali advance bookings.
Campany Policy is to not allow Club to reach in excess of 90%, however should
farge queues begin to develop outside the premises, then the Premises
manager in conjunction with the security team, may make a risk assessment in
regards to public safety and adjust accordingly.

Any guette or line that may form outside of the club will be monitored and
maintained by door security staff, to ensure there is no overcrowding. Any
cordons or barriers that may be required will be installed at the approvali and
recommendation of Torbay Council

We will have a no re-entry policy so anyone leaving the premises via the front
door will be charged full re-admission — this is to prevent people gathering on
the street to see friends. Whenever open we will have 3 -5 private hire
vehicles contracted to the club to take our patrons home and increase our ViP
experience. We would expect these cars to take 150 to 250 patrons home at
the end of every evening. We would propose to remove the “closing time rush”
by stopping the serving of alcohol at 3AM, however keeping the premises open
and continuing to serve soft drinks to stop a sudden exodus onto Victoria
Parade and allow those who have booked our private hire to wait in comfort.

We would also propose to move our SIA security staff to the street in
proportion to the movement of people to ensure our patrons leave the

Page 73




harboutside in a peaceful and safe manner without adding to the workload of
street pastors or police and making sure that they are available to help with
other problems if required.

All security staff will periodically breathalise and drugs test patrons on the
premises during the evening to ensure the safety of all patrons.

The club rules including a zero tolerance policy on drugs and psycho active
substances will be displayed clearly at the door and accompanied by the use of
a police drugs box and register that accompanies the jon track drugs detection
machine.

Al fire safety equipment and its regulation and management. Including risk
assessments will be sub-contracted to West Country Fire Protection or similar
organisation.. .. .

Security staff will ensure that any fire exits are clear and free and accessible at
all times.

All relevant Health and safety regulations will be adhered to, to ensure staff
and customers alike can work and play in a safe environment, We aim to
minimise risk wherever possible.

We will minimise noise emitted from the premises by the way of periodic
sound checks, from specified locations during opening hours. We will replace
the previous smoking solution by a much smaller, controlled environment on a
diffarent elevation that offers natural soundproofing from the rock face. This
will be separated from the main club by two sets of doors to reduce noise
pollution and there will be no drinks outside and an SIA security guard ensuring
a maximum of 20 people in smoking area at any one time with a one in, one
out policy.

it is our intention to he members of Nightnet and descriptions of all persons
refused entry, other than for reasons of dress code, will be forwarded to all
other clubs as will descriptions of anyone removed from the premises should
this ever prove necessary. '

We hope this proposal will be successful and look forward to working very
closely with licencing and police in the future to increase the late night
entertainment experience of Torquay Harbour without compromising safety or
the comfort of local residents.

Page 74



NOTES FROM MEETING AT THE QUAY NIGHTCLUB ON 20 SEPTEMBER 2019 WITH MS GARNET-
THOMAS AND MR HAMADE

| have been carresponding with Adam Hamade re this matter and this morning met with him and his
ca-director, Kirsti Grant Thomas, together with Karl Martin.

discussions Kirst] said that as she has a family she will not be at the premises every Friday and
Saturday night, but with modern technology she can set up an office in her house and monitor CCTV,
sound levels, accounting processes and manage this from there, This may be a concern if she is
nominated as DPS, as suggested, as to have good controt she will need to see the premises in
operation or ensure she has a trustworthy and experlenced management team in place. Both Kirsti
and Adam admitted that they do not have experience in running a nightclub but will be reliant on
myself and Karl to advise them. At one point Adam indicated that he thought | would be giving him a
list of matters that will need addressing within the application and i advised them both that it is their
responsibility to demonstrate within their application that there will be no negative impact from the
prefmises.

will be sufficient to get the club up and running. They intend to properly open under a licence at
Easter 2020 but want to run an event at Halloween and some over the Christmas and New Year period
and use these events to formulate their business plans and policies moving foward.

| asked what sort of capacity they envisaged and Adam said that they were looking at about 500, but
® | (current tenant) advised that when she has baxing events, 500 do not fifi the premises and
therefore there will be no atmosphere and that she is aware that the premises had a capadity of 1200
when it lasted operated as a club. Kirsti said that they would have to consider increasing the number
attending, but from their business plan it was a viable business with 500 customers,

We discussed the lack of trade in the winter months and | advised that some of the ficensed premises
do not open in January and February. Adam said that they would probably not open in November,
January and February as it would not be viable in they only attracted 50 customers.

We briefly discussed the decoration of the premises and they said that they want to put in some
baoth seating around the main area and keep a quieter bar/VIP area to the right, possibly attracting
businessmen who could sit and chat. | advised them to start drawing up some plans and do a fire risk
assessment taking the layout of the premises into consideration. In relation to the refurbishment of
the premises it was apparent that they had no firm plans on style/furnishings etc and Kiesti indicated
that this was a work in progress and did not have to be decided immediately as they will not be
properly open until April 2020. In relation to the TENs for Halloween and Christmas Kirsti said that it
would be dark and they would put up plenty of decorations which would disguise the poor and
outdated internal decoration, Kirsti said that initially they will be renting the sound and fighting
systems that they need and after the events at Halloween and Christmas they would hopefully have
some profit to invest back into the business so that they could purchase at a later date.

When discussing their proposals, Kirsti said that it will be unlikely that the premises will be open
during the week but they will want to open on Friday and Saturday nights. They said that they want to
: | who have a monopoly and would therefore want similar hours to offer
the public somewhere different o attend. Kirsti said that she was looking at packages that holiday
makers could book including admission and a taxi home for about £30, and that they want to offer a

Page 75

| cach into the business and it is hoped that this



variety of packages to bring in guaranteed income and numbers rather than relying on walk-in
customers. They also said that they want to put on niche events and appeal to an older clientele.

| advised that taxi's would not be permitted to stop directly outside the premises and Kirsti said that
they could use the taxi rank further down the road. Kirsti said that she is also thinking of putting a
burger van out the front of the premises in the Pavement Cafe Permit area and Karl advised that that
would not be possible, as a street trading permit would also be required, in addition to a premises
licence, but the potato van has the authority of the harbourmaster to use the land.

We had a walk around the building and outside areas. Adam said that in relation to a small room off
the balcony area he is intending to remove the roof, push a wall back and use this as a smoking

area. Myself and Karl indicated that this area is directly undemeath residents accommodation and
therefare there were likely to be noise concerns,

Karl raised concerns in relation to the decorative ceiling and advised Adam of a case where plaster
had fallen onto a customer resulting in all such ceilings to be certified as safe and advised him to get

the ceiling checked. | raised concerns regarding the handrail around the balcony which does not meet

safety requirements. Adam stated that he would have to give the ceiling and handrail further
cansideration but he may consider putting in a false cetling and not using the upstairs area.

We wert to the outside terrace and Karl advised Adam of the noise complaints that he had received in

relation to this area.

Karl discussed noise outbreak concerns. Adam and Kirsti said that their first priority is to make the
building watertight and thatE8 Bl had tried but failed at this. Kirsti said that the roof needs
repairing and Karl advised her to speak to naise consultants in order to repair and soundproof at the
same time. Adam indicated that the roof did have some rockwool (?) in it but it appeared cheap and
not soundpraofing quality.

Discussions took place concerning the CIA. Adam said that he felt the taxi marshalls were very good
but he is disappointed that they are nat there anymore. Both indicated that they are keen to help

with the funding of the taxi marshalls and | explained that this costs between £7,000 - £9,000 a year,
and Kirsti said that they should be able to afford that and asked why other premises don't assist with

funding. -1 told her that the taxi marshalls have been funded through BBN but the money has dried up

and BBN has other initiatives to fund. | advised them that in addition to funding issues, it has been
difficult to secure sufficient stewards to run the taxi marshalls due to the hours they are required and
avaitability for premises takes priority.

Adam said that in relation to. the premises would have the strictest policy in the whole of Torbay

and he hates drugs. Karl advised him that despite

having strict poitcaes it will be difficult to control drug use and | advised him that the police will expect

the premises to support passive drugs dog operations and other initiatives.

Karl advised them both that due to previous noise concerns in relation to the premises they need to
employ a noise consultant and follow their advice prior to opening and send a copy of the

recommendations to him. He further advised that even with this report he may object to the granting

of the licence.

Page 76



| advised them that as the premises are within the CIA it is likely that the police will object to any
application for a late ficence at the premises as all licensed premises selling alcoho! after midnight
contribute to the crime and disorder levels around the harbourside and therefore it is envitable that
their premises will also impact on crime and disarder.

As a result of our discussions | am concerned that if Adam and Kirsti do not make significant financial
investment in the structure and refurbishment of the premises to a high standard,with a good lighting
and sound system as expected by customers, particularly if they want to be competitionf -
: , their business rmay not be as successful as they hope. History has shown
dlfflcult to build a customer base and sustain customer numbers at this premises and the last operator
in the premises only lasted a matter of weeks. | don't think tha will go far, particularly when
they need to sort out a new roof, get the ceiling certlfied and sort out the handrail, or cover the ceiling
and block off the first floor area. _ Adam had thought that he would buy a sound
system for £25,000 and was surprised when | g .
is over £100,000. | alsa think their business will s rugg!e with only 500 customers on
Saturday night and to start with they will probably attract no-where near that number.

Page 77



From: GEAKE gamuel 16247

To: Llcanslng Team

Cc SMART Julip 50403; STEVENS Jan 13440; HARVEY Robert 17016
Subject: m & Quay Club

Date! 27 Decernber 2019 01:44:16

Hi all

Just a couple of issues for you to be aware of from the weekend:

Quay Club — Victorla Parade Torquay

We received reparts from SB900 that the doors to the premises were open and people were
going inside to drink without door otaff In attendance. We attended however were unable to get
into the premises. A male who identified himself as the manager of the Quay Club confirmed the
premises was not open to the public but conceded that the owner was inside in order ta carry
aut some ‘work’ to the business and it was hoping to officially open its doors nearer £aster 2020.
Itis highly likely they have used the premises for some type of private party as nefghbouring
door staff saw approximately 10-12 peopla who had previousty left 80's bar and were let into
Quay Club.

Kind regards
Sam

PC 6247 Samuel Geake
Neighbourhood Beat Manager

Torquay Police Station

Repark non-gmergency crimes online

Emall 101@dc.palice.uk for non-urgent reports and queries

Police Encuiry QFi

Ask NED online if yvou're not sure whao to call

Devon and Cornwall Alert — keeping our commuynities in the know
In an emergency always call 999

Page 78

&



NOTES ERONM MEETING AT THE QUAY NIGHTCLUB ON S JANUARY 2020 WITH MR HAMADE AND
MS GARNET-THOMAS

PC Harvey has provided further details and | have sent a CCTV request to the CCTV Control Room
asking them to review footage and advise me of anything of relevance. Simaon Cheetham has advised
me that the camera for Victaria Parade is on a timer and changes between 5 locations. On each
occasion that it was facing the premises there appear to be people outside the premises but having
watched the footage he cannot say whether they went in or came out of the Quay Nightclub.

Myself, Sgt Dave Curtis and Karl Martin attended the premises esterda morning and met WIth Kn—stl
' sncrdent and Adamtold me that ey

: P : e 8 heinvited his fnends to
have a few drinks in the premises and he said they 'fell out at about 3.00 am in the moming. When 1
told them that it had been reported that about 10-15 persons came out of Seamus O'Ponnells and
went into the Quay Nightclub he said that they came from the direction of the car park at Beacon
Quay and therefore it may have looked like they came out of Seamus O'Donnells.

We had a ook around the premises and discussed various works taking place. | took a copy of the

_ _p|an attached to the licence, dated August 2012 with me and checked this against the premises and
therefore they cannot carry out any Ilcensable activities until an application had been submitted to
authorise the work. Kirsti sald that some of the work had been carried out before they took over and
asked how this could have taken place without us knowing and | told her that unfotunately some
people carry out alterations without applying befare they do the work and don't realise that if the
application is not granted they might not be able to use the premises or might have to put it back to
its original layout. Kirsti stated that she has new plans that she used for the 'change of use’ and will
therefore ensure these are submitted with their application in due course.

We discussed CCTV and Kirsti stated that there was & system in place but it only had 16 cameras and
the previous tenants removed this fram the building. Kirsti stated that she doesn't knaw anything
about CCTV systems but has been doing research and has compiled a list of systems that she thinks
will be suitable. She stated that she was haping to buy one of these 2nd hand from ebay for a few
hundred pound but it is looking like she will need to spend more. She stated that Tom Sharpe is

- going to be helping her with this and | asked whether Tom's company deals with CCTV and she said
that they don't but he's got some knowledge of systems. Myself and Sgt Curtis advised her that she
needs to make sure that the system is capable of providing good images in all lighting conditions
which is problematic and she needs to ensure there is good coverage, but the ability to increase
cameras in the future,

The roof leaks and ceiling certificate were discussed. Adam said that they have had 3 different people
Jook at the roof and carry out work but it is still leaking. Kirsti said that the ceiling has now been
repaired but they haven't had it inspected ar certified due to the ceiling still leaking.

(n respect of the proposed smaking area off the first floor balcony, Adam said that they were not
going ahead with this now as they had been told it would cost £20,000 and they haven't got the
money for it. We went to the outside area and Adam szid that they cannot affard to improve this area
so will ensure it meets the standard required for a fire exit but it will not be used. | advised him that in
the past there have been issues with the fire exit as the gate near the back of the Crime Museum
(formerly the Graen Room) was often locked.

Page 79




Sgt Curtis asked Kirsti what the anticipated capacity of the premises will be and she said if all they can
get all the exits up to fire exit standerd it will be about 1200 but she thinks this amount of customers
sounds scary so she is anticipating setting a limit of 500 to start with untii the business takes off.
{irsti indicated that they are hoping to open at Easter next year.

Karl and Kirsti discussed 'change of use’ which has now been applied for.

Kirsti ssked Karl whether they should submit ali the safety certificates with the premises licence
application or whether the premises licence application could be submitted separately and Karl

advised they submit together but male sure they are sent on separate emails as the certificates are
not actually part of the application.

Page 80



NOTES FROM MEETING AT THE QUAY NIGHTCLUB ON 19 JUNE 2020 WITH MR HAMADE AND
M5 GARNET-THOMAS

Attandad this premises last Friday with Sgt Curtis, Karl Martin, Jonathan Edwards. Also present was
Kirsti Garnet-Thomas, Adam Hamade, DJ Dec B and Neil Carpenter.

Karl and Jonathan had discussions with Neil Carpenter and Adam Hamade whilst myself and Sgt Curtis
spoke to Kirsti Garnet-Thomas about people drinking in the premises on the previous Saturday
avening. She said that there were 2 x DJ's doing a live stream event, a potential new employee
attended the building for an interview and both her and Adam’s family's and a couple of friends
attended to have a few drinks and listen to the entertainment. { told her that | had received a
complaint on the Saturday night that people were drinking in the premises as this was clearly visible
on the live stream on their Facebook page. Kirsti said she had been thinking about it since the
Saturday night and she didn't think she had done anything wrong. | advised her that her premises has
a licence for a leisure premises with a bar and the coronavirus reguiations currently prohibit the
consumption of food or drink on the premises. She said that it was a private party of invited friends
and family only and | advised her that as a licensed premises she has a responsibility to ensure that
the business is promoted in a responsible light and advertising the fact that people are drinking on
the pramises during a period when they should be closed is not advisable. | also pointed out that the
' coronavirus guidelings aflow for her to meet with 5 other people not within her household but outside
only, not inside and whilst it is possible to mest for work purposes she had afready admitted that her
friends and family were there to enjoy the entertainment. Karl then advised Kirsti that as the ceiling
has not got a safety certificate the premises should not be used for any forms of entertainment and
recommended that no social/entertainment activities take place in the premises until the ceiling is
corractly certified.

We discussed the classification of the premises - the licence indicates that it is a bar but the
structure/iayout of the premises is more like a nightciub. | told her that this may be significant when
the government announce businesses re-opening and we would have to agree on the type of
premises, She told me that the premises is definitely a nightchib and she will not consider opening
unless it is operating as a nightciub,

Discussions took place about the proposed opening date of the premises and she said she would be
submitting an application on or around 8 July 2020. | told her that as the police would probably be
making representation the application would take about 56 days so they could not open until around
the beginning of September. DJ Dec B stated the premises wanted to be open for the August Bank
Holiday and | explained the CIA policy to him and advised there is no reason why they could not
submit their application earlier,

Kirsti mentioned that there is currently a licence in place but | informed her that as the structure of the

premises has changed from the approved plan, 2 minor variation for change of fayout would he
required and therefore this licence could not be used until the alterations had been authorised.

Page 81




From: Adz

To: SMART Julle 50403
Subject: Re; Celling Inspection
Date: 08 July 2020 12:31:28
Thank you both,

The floor plan is in progress, | assure you we are a still a fare way away from licensable
activities. Feel fiee to pop in on Saturday if you wish I will be there between 21:00 and
00:30

Regards

Adam Hamade

If in doubt FLAT OUT

On 8 Jul 2020, at 12:14, SMART Julie 50403
- <Julie,. SMART@devonandeormwali.pon.police ule> wrote:

Hi Adam

As Karl said vou need to make sure you comply with the current covid restrictions
and guidance, and don't forget you cannot carry out licensabiz activities as the
premises doesn't reflect the approved plan.

Kind regards
Julie

From: Adz
Sent: 08 July 2020 11:28

To: Martin, Karl <Karl.Martin@torbay.gov.uk>; SMART Julie 50403
<Julie. SMART@devonandeomwall pnn.police,ik>

Subject: Re: Celling Inspection

Thank you Kari

Jutie, Can you confirm there’s nothing else required on your side
Best regards

Adam Hamade

if in doubt FLAT QUT

On 8 Jul 2020, at 10:37, Martin, Karl <Karl.Martin@torbay.gov.uk> wrote:

Hi Adam

Page 82




In principle no, but if you could send a copy when you receive the
certificate as | can put on file and happily tick that one of the list.

Just insure you are complying with the latest covid19 guidance.
All the best,

Kart,

From: Adz e
Sent: 08 July 2020 10:33
Ta: Martin, Karl <KarlMartin@torbay.goy.uk>;
lie SMART @d ! I el
Subject: Fwd: Celillng Inspection

il hope'you aré bothweli o . o
The celilng is certified at last see email attached below. ls there
anything else you wilt require in order for us to do a live stream from
the club on Saturday night
Best regards
Adam Hamade
If in doubt FLAT OUT

Begin forwarded message:

Date: 8 July 2020 at 10:20:44 85T

Subject: Ceiling Inspection
Morning Adam,

Just to let you know that we are happy to issue a 12
maonth ceiling certificate for 26, Victaria Parade, Torquay,
TO1 2BD0. I've forwarded a draft copy of my report to our
Chairman for final sign off and we will send a copy of the
certificate electronically by end of play on Friday with
the complete report to follow within a couple of weeks |

Kindest regords

Page 83




Theatre Manager
Hayles and Howe Ltd
Mob: &

Templegate
Mead Rise
Bristo!

BS3 4RP

www. haviesandhowe co.uk

Please consider your environment before printing this e-
mail

" Please note: Communications with Torbay Concil may be monitored -
and/or recorded for lawful purposes. This electronic email Is
eonfidential and may also be privileged. If you are not the intended
recipient, please notify the sender, and please delete the message
from your system immediately. The views in this message are
personal; they are not necessarily those of Torbay Council

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Emall Security.cloud service.
For more infarmation please visit hitp://www, symanteccloyd.com

***k**t******##i****ti*i*h*k*tﬁ**W**t*ﬂﬁ*k*t*k**ﬁ******ﬁ*ii****ﬁ*ﬁ****ﬁ*

This e-mail is intended for the named recipient(s) only and may contain privileged
infarmation, which is protected in law. If you have received this e-matl in error, please
coniact the sender to advise them and delete this e-mail, Unauthorised use, disclosure,
copying or distribution is prohibited.
*t****k******ﬁ*kkk**l**k*ﬁ***ﬁk****k*****kﬁ*i********i***k*kﬁ#*k*tti****

E-mail should not be regarded as a secure means of communication, we take all
reasonable steps to ensure that e-mails are protected from malware, but cannot accept
liability for any loss or damage, howsoever arising, as a resull of their transmission to
the recipients' computer or network.
kﬁi*********ﬁ****k*****k*kt*kkﬁ**i**kﬁ*t******&iw**kit***ﬁ*t*i****i*tﬁk**

For more information, or to contact us, please vislt us at www.devon-cornwall.police uk
or www, dorset.police uk or e-mail 101@devonandcornwall.pnn nolige uk or
101@dorset.pnn.palice. Uk

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

Page 84



From: SMARY 1ulle 50403

To: Adam Hamade; Krst EREEEEE el &
o ar MAR kearl. Atorhay gov
Subject: RE: 26 Victorka Parade

Date: 13 July 2020 08;51:00

Hi Adam

Sorry 1 didn't respond to your message but I don't work weekends unless T am specifically requested to.

As you should be aware the current covid restrictions are that you can only meet with one other househald
indoors but you can meet up to 5 friends outside,

In my last email to you, T did advise you to ensure you comply with the current covid guidelines so 1
recommend that you huve a read of the advice on the gov.uk website and refresh your memory on these.

Kind regards
hiie

emeaOrigingl Message---e-
From: Adam Hamadef
Sent: 11 July 2020 20:23
To: S
Subiect: 26 Victoria Parade

SMART Julie 50403 <Julie. SMART@devonandcornwall.pan.police.uk>

Hi Julie

Please can you confirm your position regarding me and my friends having a few beers in the club tonight as far

as ! am aware this shoulda’t be a problem as fong as nothing is for sale Best regards Adam Hamade

This email has been scanned by the Symentec Email Security cloud service,
For more information please visit hiip/fwww symanteceloud,.com

Page 85



From: Martin, ¥arl

To: Offlee at.the Ouay

cc Adam Hamads; (ERuaesmeantmes «. SMART Julle 50403

Subject: RE: Quay Nightclus - potentiat breaches of the Heatth Protection Regufations
Date: 25 February 2021 10:26:34

Attachments: Intapeg03.ong

Good Morning Kirsti

Thank you for the prompt reply. I've just spoken to Adam, so this email is really a repeat of aur
telephone conversation.

It is surprisingly easy on occasions for operators to unwittingly step over the line, especially in
clrcumnstances where a licensed premises is being used for socialising with family members/friends. At
the moment for example you can't even offer a contractor a pint at the end of the shiftas away of a
thank you for their hard work as the Gavernment wants Us to avoid all non-essential contact.

As you have not had any conversations with us previously about the current leckdown rules | though
best just be direct so we can avoid any misunderstandings which could lead to fines being issued. From
your email and talking with Adam | confident that you all understand what has been asked of licensees.

OF course the Gavernment have now giver us a suggested date of the 215 June as time that nightclubs
might be abfe to re-open, but what they haven't provided yet is any meaningful detail of exactly how a
nightclub must operate, As we approach the 21% June we ne will need to work closely together with all
nightclub operators to ensure any specific Covid requirements for nightclubs are met by othering any
suppart or guidange where possible,

Adam also confirmed he would like to send CCTV footage and suggested if | could send specific times to
Nell Carpenter which i will do shartly for you.

Thank you bath for your co-operation.

Kind regards
Karl.

From: OFice at the vy NN

Sent: 24 February 2021 16:51

To: Martin, Karl <Karl Martin@torbay.gov.uk>

Cc: Adam Hamade_—; SIMART Julie 50403
<Iulle. SMART@devonandcornwall.pnn.police.uk>

Subject: Re: Quay Nightclub - potential breaches of the Health Protection Regulations

Dear Karl,

Thank you for your email which is indeed quite concerning! However, I can alleviate some of
your concerns by confirming that there has been no socialising or providing food or drink to
anyone within the premises. At all.

Nor has there been any "Saturday Night Activity". We have quickly ffwd through CCTV footage
of the past two weekends to check there was nothing going on outside of our knowledge, and can
confirm that there has not been. We will forward the CCTV footage to you ASAP so that you can
be confident that there was no activity on the weekend nights you have mentioned.

The majority of the renovation work is happening during normal business hours, although

Page 86



sometimes 1 have noted some passionate contractors working info the early evening, but there are
no late night or weekend contractors.

However, due to COVID, there are now often times when Adam and myself are Lone Workers, so
it is our company policy to have lights in both hallways on at all times and there is a radio in my
office (near the cellar entrance) that is on alf at all times too, so it is possible that might be heard
from outside if someone was listening really hard. Additionally, if I have to use my office for an
extended period, it is on a Sunday afternoon, when | am ensured that there are no contractors on
the premises,

I think it would be safe to say that it just would not be in the best interests of the company to be
getting tripped up by COVID regulations or any other breach of anything at this stage after the
time and expense we have put in so far, and Adam and myself have been diligent in ensuring that
that has not and will not happen.

I hope this alleviates some of your concerns. We will get the CCTV of the past couple of Saturday
nights to you ASAP, and do get in touch if there's anything else we can do that will help to rule a
line through this.

Kind Regards

Kirsti Garnet-Thomas
Director
Email: &= :
Address; 2t victora Parade, |orquay, TQ1 2BD

www,quayclub.co.uk

On Wed, 24 Feb 2021 at 12:51, Martin, Karl <Karl Martin@torbay.gov.uk> wrote:
Dear Adam and Kirsti

I have been passed intel that indicates your premises is being used for activities currently not
permitted under Tier 4 restrictions. [ do not wish to see you falling foul of the current
restrictions imposed by the Government on licenced premises and therefore would like to take
an opportunity to offer some words of advice and guidance.

The Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) {All Tiers) (England) Regulations 2020,
regulation § and Part 3 of Schedule 3A, peragraph 10 requires a ‘restricted business’, which
your premise meets the definition of a restricted business, must close and remain close.
Furthermore Paragraph 11 specifically requires businesses providing food and drink for
consumption on the premises must cease.
This regulations applies to your business despite the premises has yet to open to the public.
What this means for you is that you cannot provide and allow the consumption of drink (alcohol
and non-alcoholic) and food on the premises under any circumstances. This include gratis.

You cannot socialise in the building with anyone not from the same household and to travel
with household members to sacialise in the premises would be deemed non-essential travel.

There are only a few permitted reasons why you or anyone may be in the building:-

=  Maintenance and repatr/renovations -
* Security arrangements

»  Use of office/work space.

Page 87



Clearly the premises is towards the end of the renovation work and it is reasonable to expect
you or contractors to be in the building undertaking such works. In which case you a have a
legal obligation to ensure work undertaken is conducted to minimise the transmission of Covid-
19 and you are required to write a Covid secure risk assessment to ensure you have considered
and implement suitable controis measures.,

1 would reasonably expect works to be undertaken during normal working hours and not on a

Friday or Saturday night. Police Officers visited your premiscs on the evening of 20%
February. They noted lights were on and noise could be heard inside and despite knocking on
the doors no one answered. This was similar to what [ experienced at your premises the
previous Saturday night and on both occasions Officers felt that people may be inside. To be
clear, this is a cause of concern and further visits will take place,

I would urge to review any CCTV footage, if available, and consider your security procedures
if you suspect the premises is being used without your knowledge or consent. If you are in the
premises outside of normal work hours [ strongly suggest you let Officers inspect the premises
so any that any doubt to why you or others are in the building can easily be extinguished. Ifit
helpfully, you may wish to provide CCTV footage to alleviate concerns of Officers.

Further guidance can be found heret-

Closine certain businesses and venues in Bngland - GOV UK (www. gnyv.uk)

The Government has instructed Local Autherities and the Police to enforce the Covid
Regulations and both Authorities will issue Fixed Penalties Notices in cases where breached of
the regulations occur.

If you have any doubt about the lawfulness of your activilies at the premises please confact me
by email or by phone on 01803 207282 if you need further guidance and support.

Kind regards
Karl.

TORBAY COUNCIL

Karl Martin | Public Protection Officer | Licensing
and Public Protection Team

Torbay Councii, Community & Customer Services,
Lower Ground Floor, Town Hall, Torquay TQ1
DR

& 01803 208025 | karl.martin@torbay.gov.uk

www torbay. gav.uk
Eacebook | Twitter | LinkedIn | Instagram

Page 88




Page 89



pni 5 AgERgRtem €

Memorandum

To: From :  Community Safety
c.c Contact 1 MrKarl Martin
c.c. Ext : 01803 208025
c.c My Ref 1 QuayclubREP
%or the attention of: Sarah Clarke Your Ref

Date 18 May 2021

Premises Name & Address: Quay Night Club, Victoria Parade, Torguay.

Subject: Variation application — Licensing Act 2003

a) { have no comments to make on the above application O
"4} The application does not meet the following licensing abjectives:
i} Prevention of crime and disorder O
i} Protection of children from harm m|
i) Pubtic safety X
iv) Prevention of public nuisance X

1. The location of the proposed variation apalication occupies part of the building complex

known locally as "Harbour point building’. Please see Appendix 1 for maps and google street
view imagery.

2. The harbor point building is occupied by commercial business but flanking either side and
above is a mixture of residential and commercial properties. In one case the building is
physically attached to a neighboring residential property,

3. The building lower ground leveis has for many decades on and off been used as a ‘nightclub’

venue, More recently the premises has been used as boxing club with a terminal hour for
alcohol at 11pm.

4, The most recent use is reflected in the current planning class of D2, which includes indoor
boxing clubs. To operate a nightclub the Sui Generis class is required and to date the
applicants have not submitted z planning application for change of use.

5. In the last 15 years the premises has been occupied by a number of operators running
nightclubs with the fast one closing in 2014. All these premises attracted noise nuisance
complaints frem nearby residents and businesses. Historical noise nuisance issues can be
grouped into two points:-

Page 90



- Noise breakout from live or recorded amplified music leaving the premises due to poor
sound attenuation properties of the building.

- Post 2007 noise from customers using an adjacent outdoor smoking area.

Attempts to reduce noise breakout has been made and in some cases resolved, however
largely due to successive rebuifds the current state of the building when the applicants took
over at best can described as ‘poor’ and not fit for purpase as a modern venue for late night
entertainment.

The current applicants | understand took on the leasehold in the summer of 2019 and in
September 2018 contacted myself and fulie Smart regarding re-opening the premises as a
nightclub. Mr Adam Hamade was advised by email of the historical noise issues and at a
meeting with him and his business partner Kirsti Garent-Thomas in in late September 2019.
During the site visit it was evident the premises was in a poor state of repair.

During the meeting it become evident neither of them had any experience of running
entertainment venues of this nature. Whilst they appeared enthusiastic and confident they
could succeed they could not perceive what lay ahead. They hoped the nightciub would be
apen to the public by Christmas 2019 and this seemed naive and foolhardy to expect the
necessary works to be completed by this date with the proposed budget. it was mentioned

~ they may apply for A ‘Temporary Event Notice’ for Halloween 2019,

The appficants submitted a TEN for the 1%-3 November 2019. | objected to the TEN, please
see Appendix 2, but as the applicant agreed to withdraw the TEN no committee hearing was
required.

Prormotion of Public Safety

9.

10.

11.

12

Members of Committee should be aware the building contains a fibrosis ceiling. in this case
plaster of Paris was directly applied aver a wire maess framework which in turn is support by
the ceiling trusses with wooden and metal ties between the two. Prolonged contact with
water can weaken the plaster and ties.

in the last decade a number of partial collapses have occurred on theatre audiences. In
response the HSE in conjunction with the ABTT pubiished an industry guidance together
with a certification scheme. Any building used for the purpose of entertainment must be
certified by a competent contractor and any remedial works undertaken. Failure to do
would result in the service of a prohibition natice by the Local Authority under the Health
and Safety at Work Act 1974.

The ceiling was finally certified by a competent contractor in July 2020. The certificate last
12 months and is subject to a clause that the roof must be watertight. The appiicants have
supplied the certificate but not a FENSA certificate demonstrating the roof is watertight.
The applicants will also be required to renew the certificate in july 2021.

The applicant has yet to provide an electrical safety certificate (EICR) for the building, This
was asked for as part of any submission due largely to the poor conditions of the building

when the applicants took over and to reflect additional changes they have undertaken.

Failures in buildings used for entertainment can have catastrophic consequences if attention
to public safety is not given due consideration. I'm not aware at the time of writing this

Page 91



report if the Fire Service has raised an objection but | would urge the applicant to provide a
copy of the fire safety risk assessment ahead of the hearing in addition to the EICR report,

Prevention of Public Nuisance

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

is.

20.

21.

The applicant appointed 2 tondon based noise consultant and | met onsite with the
consuitant and Chris Widdecombe SEHO Torbay Councii with Adam Hamade in November
2019. The consultant identified several weaknesses with the fabric of the building including
air ventilation vents which had minima! attenuation or existing attenuation was in poor
repair.

The consultant advised he would provide a written report for Mr Hamade and pass to
myself. However this repart did not materialise.

in the summer of 2020 the applicants appointed Future Technical Solutions {FTS) as their
noise and sound engineering consuitant.

Since this time | have corresponded with the director of FTS, Mr Neil Carpenter with regards
to additional remedial repairs, noise attenuation salutions to the fabric of the building and
the seiection and controf of PA equipment including noise limiters,

The previous smoking area located to the north of the building could hold over a hundred
people. The applicants did explore using this area but agreed it would not be possible {o
control noise. Since this area was last used further residential properties have been
built/converted and now have line of sight with this area.

Neither | nor the applicants desired the street to be used as a smoker area. The back of the
building overlooks the cliff wall. A small single skinned annex was accessible from the first
floor balcony. BDue to its poor conditions it was removed. On viewing this area with Mr
Hamade in August 2020 ! suggested to him this could work as a2 smoking area using he cliff
walls to deflect sound away from the residential accommodation above.

Mr Carpenter has developed and installed noise monitoring equipment which can be
remately accessed at any time for the purpose of monitoring sound levels. An additional
lobby has been instalied to prevent amplified music breaking out and | understand a limit on
the numbers of customers in the area has been established.

I am confident that noise breakout from the building has addressed through a combination
of works to the building and careful selections of PA equipment and noise limiting contrals,

However at this time the noise limiter remains untested but has been set by Mr Carpenter in
consultation with myself,

As with all licensed premises who provide entertainment the physical and software controls
can fail if poor management practices are systematic within the business. With regards to
the prevention of public nuisance | do not have confidence in the management and
therefore this forms the basis of this representation.

Authorities experience of the applicants.

22,

Mr Hamade in particular exhibits much enthusiasm but has described running a nightclub as
dream and occasional as a habby. | do not wish to be critical because he passion has led to
an application but ¢ have concerns the operators have not approached the refurbishment

Page 92



23.

24,

25,

26,

27

28.

28,

30.

3L

32

and running of a nightciubs with a solid business plan or professional approach required to
run a high risk licensed premises.

The club despite being advised was not ready for an opening in November 2021 but they still
applied for a TEN.

In December 2020 the Police passed information to the Council suggesting the premises had
been accessible to members of the public. Ms Kristi Garnet-Thomas during a follow up
meeting at the premises argued it was a party for the builders as they had meet a deadline.
This is despite making it clear in writing the building could not be used as a place of
entertainment without the roof been certified.

t am aware they applied for a business grant during the first national lockdown despite never
actually trading. The claim was dismissed.

On several occasions Mr Hamade has been discovered using the premises to entertain
family and friends despite national covid rules being in place. In June 2020 licensed premises
where not allowed to open but despite this the applicants live stream 2 DJ performance and
people could been seen drinking alcohol on the live stream. The Authority did not have
ahifity to serve FPN’s at this time.

On the 30th August 2020 myself, Julie Smart, Mr O'Shea and Councilor Darling were

undertaking compliance visits along Torguay Harbourside and was approached by a person
who informed us the club had been open on the 28" August. They heard music and checked
their CCTV footage which captured people leaving the premises.

On the 13" of February 2021 myself and a colleague visited the harbor side area and
observed Mr Hamade with several other males in the immediate vicinity of the premises, it
appeared like they had exited from a fire escape to the side of the buiiding. The premises
does hoid a premises license and should at this time been closed. The only legitimate
reasan to visit is for maintenance or security reasons.

The Police reported lights were on the Friday 19" and 20" and despite knocking no one
answered the door.

The applicants were contacted by email and advised it may be usefui for them to review
their CCTV in case the premises was being used without their consent. They were also
welcomed to submit any footage. They did and footage of the 19 and 20" showed no
breaches of the Covid regulations took place but the footage from the 13% was no longer
available. The current licensing canditions requires only 14 days of CCTV shall be kept.

t commend their co-operation but | remain skeptical that they have not used the building for
socialising on multiple occasions in contradiction of the Government wishes at the time. |
assert this view because | do not believe the applicants have taken the running of this
business seriously.

As a potential late night premises, located in a cumulative impact area and a type of venue
recognised in the Licensing Statement of Principies as high risk, one would imagine applying
for the correct licence would be a priority. Instead the applicants have actively promoted the
club in the local news and on social media oblivious to the fact the premises is not currently
licensed for such advertised activities. In other words the application had yet to face public
scrutiny.

Page 93



33. Mr Hamade and Ms Garnet-Thomas have also been polite and showed willingness to work
with the Local Authorities but | feel at times they believe this is just a ‘bureaucratic’ process
they must follow to get a licence before the funs starts. This is evident in the application,
one example is the taxi pick up service they wish to promote. There is no rank ouiside the
premises. Vehicles would have to park on double yellow lines or ioading bays.

Unofficial ranks can also encourage unlicensed drivers/vehicles to the area and put at risk
their customers. | argue this is an example of a poorly conceived ‘sweetener’ for members
of the licensing committee but actually reveals poor judgement and business planning.

34. Mr Hamade and Ms Garnet-Thomas are both the only active directors of the Quay Nightclub
Ltd, the applicant. However neither intends to be the DPS. They claim they will take an
aciive role in the day to day management of the ciub but neither seeks to be the DPS. Will
the potential DPS have a say in how the premises is management? How can the responsible
authorities be reassured this wilt be the case. Mr Hamade describe this venture as a dream,
a hobby and 1 don't doubt his ambition but | do doubt about handing contral of his project
to another individual,

Conclusion

35, | do believe noise outhreak from amplified music and customer noise has been addressed

- and with a professional management approach the premises can operate as a late night

avenue whilst being able to promote the licensing objectives. However | do not believe the

current management has the experience necessary and underpinned by a weak and ever
changing business plan that offers no resilience to the operation of nightclub.

36. There are many tragic accidents involving premises iike the Quay Club in this country and
around the world where safety of the public has not received proper attention. The ceiling
will require re-certification in July 2021 and no further information has been provided in
relation to electrical and fire safety. Are the applicants and the building ready to receive a
licnece to sell aicohol untii 3:00am in a building designed in a different time?

Recommendation

There can be no doubt the applicants have invested a large sum of their own money, time and life
into restoring a former nightclub. Not an easy task during a global pandemic which has hit the Late
Night Economy hard. However nearly two years have passed since they took over the iease and | do
not believe all necessary safety works have been completed. Planning permission has not been
applied for yet and sound checks are still required prior to opening.

At this time | argue to grant as applied for risks undermining more than one of the licensing
objectives.

Mr Karl Martin

Public Protection Officer
Torbay Council

Page 94



Page 95



Dear Sir/Madam,

Apper\o\i x b

BAY COUNCIL

TOR

{ g MAY 2021

e mam
-

R R S oL
AN -

COwME

s o

Executive Head of Community Safety,
Torbay Council,

C/0 Torquay Town Hall,

Castle Circus,

We notice a condition on the application stating:
“A ‘traffic light’ decibel measurement system is instalied at the entrance/exit to the smoking
area to measure sound levels outside. The noise level is closely monitored and should the
volume in the smoking area reach certain levels, security staff will investigate and take
measures, either through verbal warnings or removal of patrans from the smoking area.”

Page 96

Agenda Item 6
Appendix 6

1 am a resident of the above address writing to you to make a representation against the
premises licence application 059249 for The Quay Nightclub, 26 Victoria Parade, Torguay,

I would like to make representation first and foremost in relation to the serious concern
over high levels of noise that will subsequently be emanating from the premises should a
variation be approved.

The building has a history of loud noise break out, including during the recent lock down
where businesses were supposed to be shut by law. The noise outbreak residents will
experience and the disturbance of music from the building until 4am every night would be
completely unreasonable and not fair to all residents who live around the property.

This problem we feel would further be exacerbated should the building operate an autdoor
smoking area once again. We live directly behind this premises and a congregation of
people not only in frant but also immediately below our property until the early hours of
the morning potentially every day would have a serious negative impact on the quality of
living for all residents residing in the vicinity and we feel would be irresponsible for Torbay
Council to approve. We feel that no measures a venue takes would be able to prevent
people congregated in an outside area from making noise that would be a nuisance to the
surrounding properties including our own,

This condition Is under the heading Prevention of Public Nuisance; however this will not



prevent any nuisance as the actions involved in this condition are retrospective to the
nuisance being made.

Furthermore, we notice that the owners of the property successfully applied for planning
permission in 2014 to change the use of the premises from a nightclub into a community
boxing gym. No subsequent planning permission has been applied to change the use of the
premises legally and safely back into a nightclub. As the premises is still a boxing gym, we
would question the need for a community boxing gym to operate past the hours of midnight
as per their current licence.

Thank you for taking this representation into account

Yours Sincerely”

Page 97



Executive Head of Community Safety,

Torbay Council, — -
C/0 Torquay Town Hall, rORBAY COUNCIL

Castle Circus,

Torquay 1 8 MAY 2021
T0.1 3DR
Dear Sir/ Madam, COMMUNITY SAFETY

Licence Application 058249

| am a resident of the above address writing 1o you to make a representation against the
granting of premises licence application 059246 for The Quay Nightclub, 26 Victoria
Parade, Torquay, TQIl 2BD.

| would like to make representation first and foremost in relation to my serious concern in
relation to the high levels of noise that will come from the premises should application be
approved.

The noise outbreak we residents who live around the property will experience from noisy,
inebriated customers, together with music from the building until 4am every night would be
completely unreasonable.

This problem we feel would further be exacerbated should the building operate an outdoor
smoking area once again. We live directly behind this property and a congregation of people
immediately below our property until the early hours of the morning, potentially every day,
would have a serious negative impact on the quality of living for al} residents residing in the
vicinity and we feel it would be irresponsible for Torbay Council to approve this. There is
also the guestion of smoke drifting up into our property’

We feel that no measures a venue takes would be able to prevent people congregated in an
outside area from making noise that would be a nuisance to the surrounding properties’
including our own.

We notice a condition on the application stating:

"A ‘traffic light' decibel measurement system is installed at the entrance/exit to the smoking
area to measure sound levels outside. The noise level is closely monitored and should the
volume in the smoking area reach certain levels, security staff will investigate and take
measures, either through verbal warnings or removal of patrons from the smoking area.”

This condition is under the heading Prevention of Public Nuisance; however this will not

Page 98



prevent any nuisance as the actions involved in this condition are retrospective to the
nuisance beingmade.

Furthermore, we notice that the owners of the property successfully applied for planning
permission in 2014 to change the use of the premises from a nightclub into a community
boxing gym. No subsequent planning permission has been applied to change the use of the
premises legally and safely back into a nightclub. As the property is still a boxing gym, we
would question the need for a community boxing gym to operate past the hours of midnight
as per their current licence.

Thank you for taking this representation into account

Yours fzithfully

Page 99



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Quay Nightclub 26 Victoria Parade, Torquay TQ21 2BD
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6


